APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
June 17, 2019

Agenda Item I
Public Comment

Agenda Item II
Introductions

Agenda Item III
Review and Consideration for Approval of the April 8, 2019 Appraiser
Certification Board Meeting Minutes

Agenda Item IV
Pursuant to NRS 361.224, Review Department Report Regarding Appraisers
Failing to Meet Requirements for Continuing Education

APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
DRAFT MINUTES
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION
1550 COLLEGE PARKWAY
LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 8970
APRIL 8, 2019
Board Members Present:
Sorin Popa, Department of Taxation, Chair
Chris Sarman, Washoe County Assessor’s Office, Member
Shannon Silva, Department of Taxation, Member
Jane Seddon, Storey County Assessor’s Office, Member (present via Teleconference)
Kelson Powell, Department of Taxation, Member
Board Member Excused:
Jeff Payson, Clark County Assessor’s Office, Member
Staff Present:
Jeffrey Mitchell, Deputy Director, Department of Taxation
Denesa Johnston, Department of Taxation
Guests Present:
Neysa Maano, Department of Taxation
Peggy Cole, Department of Taxation
Hector Sepulveda, Department of Taxation
Christina Griffith, Department of Taxation
Jonathan Roberts, Department of Taxation
Ruby Camposano, Department of Taxation
1.

Roll Call and Opening Remarks
Chair Popa proceeded with Roll Call. Quorum was verified. There were no opening remarks.

2.

Public Comment.
There were no public comments.

3.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review, Amend and/or Approval of Appraiser’s Certification Board
Minutes for December 13, 2018 meeting.
Member Sarman motioned to approve minutes as submitted.
Member Silva seconded the motion.
All members present voted in favor of approving the December 13, 2018 Minutes as submitted.

4.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review of Draft of Appraiser’s Certification Board Bylaws and
consideration of disbanding said Bylaws.
Deputy Director Mitchell explained the history of this project. It has been an ongoing project for
the past 1 ½ years and has been forestalled a couple of times due to pending regulations
addressing the three year milestone requirements. Also, staff recently attended training sponsored
by the Attorney General’s Office. During the training it was mentioned that if a Board or
Committee had Bylaws, they are held to them and they should be reviewed and/or amended
consistently. The Appraiser’s Certification Board (ACB) Bylaws have not been reviewed since
around 2006 and the current Bylaws, as they are written, contradict current state statutes. Also
shared during the training was the recommendation that Committees and Boards don’t have
Bylaws because they are guided by regulation and statute which are what should be adhered to.
He suggested the Board either refine the Bylaws which the Board has been working on or disband
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them. His recommendation is if the Board looks at disbanding them, he would prefer moving this
item to future agendas so more discussion can take place. He also stated he would be willing to
have a Deputy Attorney General speak at a future meeting. If the Board chooses to continue with
the Bylaws, they can review recommended changes at a future meeting.
Member Silva asked if it would be the Boards option to continue with reviewing the Bylaws but
not having them be as extensive and making sure they cover items not reflected in statute.
Deputy Director Mitchell explained the Bylaws should explain procedures, clarify laws,
regulations and statutes and how this Board and future Boards should interpret certain items. The
document the Board Members currently have could be condensed. The more extensive the
Bylaws are the more Members need to be aware of them and adhere to them.
Member Silva pointed out a lot of the items in the current Draft document are related to classes
and credits and are also well addressed in statute. There are some items in the draft document
she felt would be beneficial to keep because they are not particularly addressed within statute.
One example is dealing with contractors. She suggested having the Board look at what should be
kept in the Bylaws and what could be deleted and also ensuring some of the items are in line with
statutes.
Member Sarman asked if the Board could have guidelines without it being a Bylaw.
Deputy Director Mitchell said this would be a question for the Attorney General’s Office. His
interpretation is the guidelines are what would be adhered to. If they are written guidelines
approved by the Board, this is what would have to be followed. If the Board wanted to keep the
Bylaws and condense them, he suggested they form a sub-committee to work on them. This
would allow a couple of Board Members to work on what has been started and also present the
changes at the next ACB meeting.
Chair Popa agreed with Deputy Director Mitchell’s recommendation.
Member Sarman asked the Members if they would like to see this item discussed at the winter
meeting, which would allow the Department time to schedule a representative from the Attorney
General’s office to attend.
Deputy Director Mitchell noted he would like to have the representative from Clark County in
attendance when the issue is discussed and explained if a sub-committee was formed, it would be
considered an Open Meeting, an Agenda would have to be posted and minutes taken.
Member Seddon said she would be in agreement to forming a sub-committee to work on the
Bylaws, condense them and present the condensed version at an upcoming meeting.
Chair Popa asked what Board Members would be willing to volunteer for the sub-committee.
Members Seddon & Silva both volunteered. Member Seddon asked if Member Payson would be
contacted in case he wanted to serve. One of the sub-committee members will follow up with
Member Payson.
5.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: Approval of continuing education
credit hours reviewed and submitted by the Department of Taxation Local Government Services
Deputy Director and for discussion and/or approval by the Appraiser’s Certification Board.
a.

Nevada Assessors Association

b.

Appraisal Institute

c.

IAAO

d.

IAAO

e.

Maryland Dept. of Public
Safety
IAAO

f.

Residential Site Valuation & Cost
Approach
Solving Land Valuation Puzzles
Appraisal of Mineral Rights &
Mining Property
Valuation of Agricultural Lands
USPAP
Preparing the Mega Case:
Successfully Prepare, Defend and
Manage Large Appeals
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Hours on
Certificate
Hours on
Certificate
Hours on
Certificate
Hours on
Certificate
Hours on
Certificate
Hours on
Certificate

Member Silva motioned to approve all courses on the agenda for “hours on certificate” (which is
reflected on the above list).
Member Seddon seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve the motion.
The motion passed.
6.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and approval of continuing education credit hours for the
following courses:
a.

Internal Revenue Service

Disclosure Awareness Training

Hours on
Certificate
b. Internal Revenue Service
Safeguards Security Awareness
Hours on
Training
Certificate
Peggy Cole was in attendance and explained why these courses are required for state employees
and how they relate to what appraisers/auditors do. These courses deal with confidentiality and
ensuring taxpayer information is safeguarded. She shared as auditors, they deal with federal tax
information daily and this course is required by the Internal Revenue Service.
Chair Popa agreed with Ms. Cole’s statement.
Deputy Director Mitchell explained to the Board the Auditing Section has, historically, only been
in place since the 2011 or 2013 legislative session. He added this Section deals with sales and
use tax and modified tax. A lot of revenue officers have access to social security numbers and
other confidential information which transferred between the Department of Taxation and the
Internal Revenue Service.
Member Sarman motioned to approve Disclosure Awareness Training and Safeguards Security
Awareness Training.
Member Seddon seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve the Internal Revenue Service - Disclosure Awareness
Training & Safeguards Security Awareness Training for 30 minutes.
The motion passed.
e.

IAAO

2018 Annual Conference

Hours on
Certificate
Member Sarman asked since IAAO is the standard, if anyone had been to a conference.
Member Silva explained she had attended one that was held in Washoe County and she
remembered there was a Managing People, the Flip Flop Generation course offered. This course
dealt more with personnel, managing people and managing an office rather than the actual
appraisal part. She said she had reviewed the material submitted for this conference and noticed
IAAO did not break out the courses as they had in the past, for example, administrative
management verses appraisal courses.
Member Sarman shared he has been to several of the conferences and he felt all the courses he
attended were applicable in some way. He felt it was still applicable to the management of
assessment. He added the classes/sections were defined as: management; property appraisal or
ethics.
Member Silva agreed but shared she didn’t see the classes defined on the material that had been
submitted.
Member Sarman reviewed the material and agreed. He added when individuals receive the
conference agenda, the classes are broken out.
Member Sarman motioned to approve IAAO Annual Conference courses that are related to
Assessment Technologies, Merging Issues, GIS and Math, Legal and Legislative matters,
Personal Property and Real Property for the minutes listed in the schedule. Any classes
associated with Leadership, Management or Exhibitors Solutions would not be approved.
Member Silva seconded the motion.
All Members present voted in favor of the motion with the exception of Member Powell, who
voted against the motion.
The motion passed.
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c.

McKissock

That’s a Violation: Appraisal
Standards in the Real World
Online-Forecasting Revenue

Hours on
Certificate
d. Appraisal Institute
Hours on
Certificate
Member Sarman motioned to approve That’s a Violation: Appraisal Standards in the Real World
and Online-Forecasting Revenue.
Member Silva seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve McKissock - That’s a Violation: Appraisal Standards in
the Real World and Appraisal Institute - Online-Forecasting Revenue for the hours on the
certificate.
The motion passed.
f.

University of San Carlos-Cebu Various College Course
Semester Credit
City Philippines
Hours.
Member Seddon asked the Board Members if they had approved some of the courses listed on the
transcript in the past.
Member Silva explained that she compared the courses being submitted on the transcript with
those already on the ABC Approved Course List. If the course was approved through another
school, she had no problem with it but if the course had not been approved through another
school and since there was no course description provided, she would not consider approval.
Deputy Director Mitchell stated the two individuals who submitted these courses were in
attendance at today’s meeting and would be willing to answer any questions the Board Members
had.
Ruby Camposano, who works in the Local Government Services Division, Audit Section,
introduced herself to the Board. She explained that she was requesting the Boards approval of
courses she took in at the University of San Carlos-Cebu City Philippines. She shared these were
the classes which allowed her to take the CPA exam in the United States. She also stated she had
taken the time to cross reference her courses with the ACB Approved Course List.
Chair Popa asked Ms. Camposano if these were semester hours.
Ms. Camposano replied “yes”, the courses were semester based.
Member Silva stated she didn’t see an issue with any of the courses except Partnership
Corporation Accounting and the Specialized Accounting; she would like to have seen a course
description on these two before considering them for approval. The Managerial Accounting,
College Algebra and Elementary Accounting have all been approved in the past. Member
Seddon shared she had no issue with the Accounting courses either.
Member Silva motioned to approve the Accounting and Algebra courses as submitted.
Member Seddon seconded the motion
All Members present voted to approve University of San Carlos-Cebu City Philippines
Accounting and Algebra courses.
The motion passed.
g.

University of the East – Manila Various College Courses (Appraiser Semester Credit
Philippines
in Attendance)
Hours
Member Silva explained items 11 through 15 on the Request for Continuing Education Credit
were general courses and could apply to anything and were courses she would like to have seen
course descriptions before considering them for approval.
Ms. Neysa Maano, who works in the Local Government Services Division, Audit Section,
introduced herself to the Board. She stated she compared the ACB Approved Course List against
her transcript and would like credit for the following courses:
Fundamentals of Accounting, Part 1 & Part 2
Modern College Algebra, Part 1
Financial Accounting, Part 1
Managerial Accounting
Member Seddon asked Ms. Maano if these courses were being submitted for the initial 180 hours.
Ms. Maano replied “yes” they were.
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Member Silva motioned to approve the following based on previously submitted and approved
courses:
Fundamentals of Accounting, Part 1
Introduction to Macroeconomics
Partnership and Corporation Accounting
Introduction to Microeconomics
Modern College Algebra, Part 1
Financial Accounting, Part 1 & Part 2
Elements of Business Statistics
Cost Accounting
Advanced Accounting, Part 1 & Part 2
Managerial Accounting
Member Seddon seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve University of the East – Manila Philippines.
The motion passed.
h.
i.

Norfolk State University
Norfolk State University

Business Statistics
36 Credit Hours
Principles of Economics I
36 Credit Hours
(Microeconomics)
j. Norfolk State University
Principles of Economics II
36 Credit Hours
(Microeconomics)
Member Silva motioned to approved Norfolk State University Agenda Items 6 “h through j”.
Member Seddon seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve Norfolk State University Business Statistics, Principles of
Economics I & II for the credit hours submitted.
The motion passed.
k. IAAO
Measuring Marijuana
36 Credit Hours
Member Powell questioned since the course description mentioned Maricopa County, Arizona,
was this course only applicable to Arizona or is it general?
Member Sarman stated it was his impression the reference was general. He also said some of the
appraisers in Washoe County would be taking this course in the future. He further stated Washoe
County recently had an appeal before the County Board of Equalization, which will be going
before the State Board of Equalization, regarding a marijuana facility. This is a growing issue
and it is important for appraiser to understand the value.
Member Silva commented she feels this would be a great class; a lot of the decisions being made
are going to be reflective of what is taking place in other states.
Member Sarman motioned to approve this course.
Member Silva seconded the motion.
All Members present voted to approve IAAO Measuring Marijuana for the hours on the
certificate.
The motion passed.
7.

Discussion: Posting of all continuing education hours to Assessor’s/Appraisers transcripts.
Member Seddon asked if all hours being submitted could be placed on the individual’s transcript
even if they are not used towards the milestone hours. This would be beneficial for those who do
not have college degrees and would give individuals a transcript of classes taken even if the
transcript reflected zero hours.
Member Silva said she thought all the courses were being listed on the transcript, even those
reflecting zero hours.
Christina Griffith, Supervisor of the Board & Commission Section of Local Government
Services, explained one of the issues with this request is Statute states basically there must be a
three year lapse since the person last attended the class to receive credit. Some people were
trying to get around this by saying they didn’t want any contact hours reflected on their transcript
but wanted the course entered onto their transcript thinking a year later, they could receive
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contact hours for the same course. In statute it says regardless of whether you take the course
within the three year period, you can’t receive credit for it.
Member Silva explained if the course is listed on the transcript as being taken regardless of
whether or not credit hours are given, the course cannot be taken again per statute.
8.

Briefing to and from Appraiser Certification Board and Department Staff.
Deputy Director Mitchell stated he had no items for the Appraiser’s Certification Board.

9.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Schedule date and Review Agenda Topics for the Next Appraiser’s
Certification Board Meeting.
Deputy Director Mitchell stated staff would be glad to send an email to Board Members for dates
at the end of July.

10.

Public Comment
There were no public comments.

11.

Adjourment
The meeting was adjourned at 10:06 am.
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APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
June 17, 2019

Agenda Item V
Review and Consideration for Potential Changes of Appraiser’s Certification
Board Bylaws

APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
June 17, 2019

Agenda Item VI
Consent Agenda Items
1. Review and Consideration for Approval of Continuing Education
Credit Hours Reviewed and Submitted by the Department of
Taxation Local Government Services Deputy Director

a)
Form 5310LGS
Nevada Department of Taxation

Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education
New Course Application
Return this form to:
Division of Local Government Services
1550 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
Please Print or Type:

COURSE INFORMATION(A person who wishes to receive contact hours for a course of continuing education
that has not been previously approved by the Department must apply to the Department for such approval
BEFORE taking the course.)

I

Name of Requester

Title

Property Aprraiser I
TITLE OF COURSE

Managerial Accounting
DELIVERY METHOD - CHECK ONE

DClassroom

D/nternet

DHome Study

1. Course objective:
Identifying, gathering, and interpreting
performance ora business

I

SPONSORING ORGANIZA TlON

Western Governors University

information

that will be used for evaluating and managing the

2. What are the expected hours of instruction?

_

3. What is the expected completion date?_C_o_m~p~l_e_te_d_F_eb_r_u_a_ry~2_0_19_.

_

SUBJECT CLASSIFICATION - CHECK ALL THAT APPLY

o Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
o IAAO Standards
o Residential Appraisal
o Commercialllndustrial Appraisal
o Unitary/Centrally

0 Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
Nevada Department of Taxation
0 Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
Techniques
0 Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
0 Professional Ethics
0 Administrative Procedures
0 Other

Assessed Property Appraisal

o Principles of Accounting
o Principles of Finance
o Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations

If other, please describe why the course is applicable to appraisal for property tax purposes.
Course is already listed on the approved list. However, Western Governors University (WGU) is a new college.

REQUIRED MATERIALS TO BE SUBMITIED WITH APPLICATION:

o Detailed Course Outline or Syllabus
o Books or Course Materials

For Deoartment Use 0 DIy
I
NUMBER OF CREDIT
HOURS GRANTED

NUMBER OF CREDIT HOURS
APPEARING ON TRANSCRIPT

MilESTONE

APPLIED

TO:

TOTAL CE'S FOR THIS
MilESTONE

REASON

FOR DENIAL OF CREDIT, IF ANY

Verified by:

~
Division of Local Government Services

Title

Date

Form

5310lGS. Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education New Course Application
Revised 11712019

b)
Form 5310LGS
Nevada Department of Taxation

Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education
New Course Application
Return this form to:
Division of Local Government Services
1550 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
Please Print or Type:

COURSE INFORMATION (A person who wishes to receive contact hours for a course of continuing education
that has not been previously approved by the Department must apply to the Department for such approval
BEFORE takinQ the course.)

I

Name of Requester

Tille

Property Aprraiser I
TITLE OF COURSE

Principles of Accounting
DELIVERY

I

METHOD - CHECK ONE

o Classroom

D/nternet

1. Course objective:
Learn and understand
ledgers, and journals

SPONSORING

DHomeStudy

ORGANIZA TlON

Western Governors University

the basics of accounting

including how to use generally accepted accounting

principles,

2. What are the expected hours of instruction?

_

3. What is the expected completion date?_C_o_m~p~l_et_e_d_F_eb_r_u_a_ry'__2_0_18

_

SUBJECT CLASSIFICATION - CHECK ALL THAT APPLY

o Mass Appraisal

Concepts and Applications

0 Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
Nevada Department of Taxation
0 Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
Techniques
0 Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
0 Professional Ethics
0 Administrative Procedures
0 Other

o IMO Standards
o Residential Appraisal
o Commercial /Industrial Appraisal
o Unitary/Centrally Assessed Property Appraisal
o Principles of Accounting
o Principles of Finance
o Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations

If other, please describe why the course is applicable to appraisal for property tax purposes.
Course is already listed on the approved list. However, Western Governors University (WGU) is a new college.

REQUIRED MATERIALS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION:

o Detailed Course Outline or Syllabus
o Books or Course Materials

1:\\ \\0\ \9
Date

\

For DepartmeDt Use 0 Diy
1
NUMBER OF CREDIT
HOURS GRANTED

Verified

NUMBER OF CREDIT HOURS
APPEARING ON TRANSCRIPT

MILESTONE

APPLIED

TO:

TOTAL CE'S FOR THIS
MILESTONE

REASON

FOR DENIAL OF CREDIT, IF ANY

by:

~
Division of Local Government Services

Title

Date

Form 5310LGS,

Property Tax Appraiser

Continuing

Education

New Course Application
Revised 1n12019

c)
Form 5310LGS
Nevada Department of Taxation

Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education
New Course Application
Return this form to:
Division of Local Government Services
1550 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
Please Print or Type:

COURSE INFORMATION (A person who wishes to receive contact hours for a course of continuing education
that has not been previously approved by the Department must apply to the Department for such approval
BEFORE taking the course.)

I

Name of Requester

Title

Property Appraiser I

TITLE OF COURSE

Accounting

II CZCl

I SPONSORING ORGANIZA TlON

DELIVERY METHOD - CHECK ONE

o Classroom

D/nternet

DHomeStudy

Western Governors University

1. Course objective:

Understand

how accounting

principles are used in business operations,

inventory, liabilities, and budgets.

2. What are the expected hours of instruction?
3. What

_

. the expected completIon
. date? Completed July 2018

_

IS

SUBJECT CLASSIFICATION - CHECK ALL THAT APPLY

o Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
o IAAO Standards
o Residential Appraisal
o Commercial/Industrial Appraisal
o Unitary/Centrally Assessed Property Appraisal
o Principles of Accounting
o Principles of Finance
o Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations

0 Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
Nevada Department of Taxation
0 Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
Techniques
0 Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
0 Professional Ethics
0 Administrative Procedures
0 Other

If other, please describe why the course is applicable to appraisal for property tax purposes.
~!rse
is already listed on the approved course list However, Western Governors I Iniversity (WGI I) is a new

co ege.

REQUIRED MATERIALS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION:

o Detailed Course Outline or Syllabus
o Books or Course Materials

ReQUeStOrSig~USe
For Department
NUMBER OF CREDIT
HOURS GRANTED

Blue Ink)

~------

Use 0 my
1
NUMBER OF CREDIT HOURS
APPEARING ON TRANSCRIPT

MILESTONE

APPLIED

TO:

TOTAL CE'S FOR THIS
MILESTONE

REASON

FOR DENIAL OF CREDIT, IF ANY

Verified by:

~
Division of Local Government Services

Title

Date

Form 5310LGS,

Property Tax Appraiser

Continuing

Education

New Course Application
Revised 1n1201g

d)
Form 5310LGS
Nevada Department of Taxation

Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education
New Course Application
Return this form to:
Division of Local Government Services
1550 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
Please Print or Type:

COURSE INFORMATION (A person who wishes to receive contact hours for a course of continuing education
that has not been previously approved by the Department must apply to the Department for such approval
BEFORE taking the course.)

I

Name of Requester

TITLE

Til/e

Property Appraiser I

OF COURSE

Macroeconomics
DELIVERY

I

METHOD - CHECK ONE

DClassroom

D/nternet

SPONSORING

ORGANIZA TlON

Western Governors University

DHomeStudy

1. Course objective:
Learn/understand
how the economy operates and how society manages its costs, benefits, trade-oEEs when
allocating scarce resources through market demand and supply
2. What are the expected hours of instruction?

_

3. What is the expected completion date?_C_o_m~p_l_et_e_d_S_e~p_t_em_b_e_r_2_0_1_8

_

SUBJECT CLASSIFICATION - CHECK ALL THAT APPLY

o Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
o IAAO Standards
o Residential Appraisal
o Commercialllndustrial Appraisal
o Unitary/Centrally Assessed Property Appraisal
o Principles of Accounting
o Principles of Finance
o Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations

0 Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
Nevada Department of Taxation
0 Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
Techniques
0 Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
0 Professional Ethics
0 Administrative Procedures
0 Other

If other, please describe why the course is applicable to appraisal for property tax purposes.
Course is already listed on the approved course list. However, Western Governors University is a new college.

REQUIRED MATERIALS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION:

o Detailed Course Outline or Syllabus
o Books or Course Materials

For Department
NUMBER OF CREDIT
HOURS GRANTED

Use 0 DIy
I
NUMBER OF CREDIT HOURS
APPEARING ON TRANSCRIPT

MILESTONE

APPLIED

TO:

TOTAL CE'S FOR THIS
MILESTONE

REASON

FOR DENIAL OF CREDIT, IF ANY

Verified by:

~
Division of Local Government Services

Title

Date

Form 5310LGS,

Property Tax Appraiser

Continuing

Education

New Course Application
Revised ln12019

e)
Form 5310LGS
Nevada Department of Taxation

Property Tax Appraiser Continuing Education
New Course Application
Return this form to:
Division of Local Government Services
1550 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
Please Print or Type:

COURSE INFORMATION (A person who wishes to receive contact hours for a course of continuing education
that has not been previously approved by the Department must apply to the Department for such approval
BEFORE takin the course.
Name of Requester

Title

Property Appraiser I
TITLE OF COURSE

Microeconomics
OELIVERY METHOD - CHECK ONE

DC/assroom

D/nternet

1. Course objective:
Understand opportunity

SPONSORING ORGANIZA TlON

DHome Study

Western Governors University

costs and the importance

of competition,

demand/supply

to determine equilibrium.

2. What are the expected hours of instruction?

_

3. What is the expected completion date?,_C_o_m--'-p_le_t_ed_O_c_t_0_b_er_2_0_18

_

SUBJECT CLASSIFICATION - CHECK ALL THAT APPLY

o Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
o IMO Standards
o Residential Appraisal
o Commercial/Industrial Appraisal
o Unitary/Centrally Assessed Property Appraisal
o Principles of Accounting
o Principles of Finance
o Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations

0 Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
Nevada Department of Taxation
0 Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
Techniques
0 Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
0 Professional Ethics
0 Administrative Procedures
0 Other

If other, please describe why the course is applicable to appraisal for property tax purposes.
Course is already listed on the approved list. However, Western Governors University is a new college.
REQUIRED MATERIALSTO BE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION:

o Detailed Course Outline or Syllabus
o Books or Course Materials

For DepartmeDt Use 0 Diy
I
NUMBER OF CREDIT
HOURS GRANTED

NUMBER OF CREDIT HOURS
APPEARING ON TRANSCRIPT

MILESTONE

APPLIED

TO:

TOTAL CE'S FOR THIS
MILESTONE

REASON

FOR DENIAL OF CREDIT, IF ANY

Verified by:

~
Division of Local Government Services

Title

Date

Form 5310LGS,

Property Tax Appraiser

Continuing

Education

New Course Application
Revised 1 12019
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Program Guidebook
Bachelor of Science, Accounting
The Bachelor of Science in Accounting is a competency-based
program that enables professionals in accounting to earn a Bachelor of
Science degree. The Accounting degree is great preparation for a
career in accounting in a public company, non-profit entity, or other
organization. Thisprogram consists of twelve balanced areas of study,
WGU competency-based assessments, and a capstone project.

Understanding the Competency-Based

Approach

Practically speaking, how do competency-based programs like those offered at Western Governors
University (WGU) work? Unlike traditional universities, WGU does not award degrees based on
completion of a certain number of credit hours or a certain set of required courses. Instead, you will earn
your degree by demonstrating your skills, knowledge, and understanding of important concepts.
Progress through a degree program is governed not by the amount of time you spend in class but by
your ability to demonstrate mastery of competencies as you complete required courses. Of course, you
will need to engage in learning experiences as you review competencies or develop knowledge and
skills in areas in which you may be weak. To help you acquire the knowledge and skills you need to
complete your courses and program, WGU provides a rich array of learning resources. Your program
mentor will work closely with you to help you understand the competencies required for your program
and to help you create a schedule for completing your courses. You will also work closely with course
instructors as you engage in each of your courses. As subject matter experts, course instructors will
guide you through the content you must master to pass the course assessments.
The benefit of this competency-based system is that enables students who are knowledgeable about a
particular subject to make accelerated progress toward completing a degree, even if they lack college
experience. You may have gained skills and knowledge of a subject while on the job, accumulated
wisdom through years of life experience, or already taken a course on a particular subject. WGU will
award your degree based on the skills and knowledge that you possess and can demonstrate-not

the

number of credits hours on your transcript.

Accreditation
Western Governors University is the only university in the history of American higher education to have
earned accreditation from four regional accrediting commissions. WGU's accreditation was awarded by
(1) the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities, (2) the Higher Learning Commission of the
North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, (3) the Accrediting Commission for Community and
Junior Colleges of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges, and (4) the Accrediting
Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges.
The university's accreditation status is now managed by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and
Universities (NWCCU), which reaffirmed WGU's accreditation in February 2017. The WGU Teachers
College is accredited by the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education (NCATE). The
nursing programs are accredited by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE). The
Health Information Management program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation for Health
Informatics and Information Management Education (CAHIIM). The College of Business programs are
accredited by the Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP).

The Degree Plan
The focus of your program is your personalized Degree Plan. The Degree Plan is a detailed blueprint of
the courses you will need to complete in order to earn your degree. The Degree Plan also lays out the
accompanying learning resources and assessmentsthat compose your program. The list of courses in
the Degree Plan is often referred to as the standard path. The amount of time it takes to complete your
program depends on both the amount of new information you need to learn and the amount of time
you plan to devote each week to study. Your program mentor and course instructors will help you assess
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your strengths and development needs to establish a study plan.
Students vary widely in the specific skills and information they need to learn. For example, some
students may be highly knowledgeable in a particular subject matter and would not need to engage in
new learning opportunities. Other students may find that portions of the program require them to learn
new information and that they need to take an online class or participate in a study module to acquire
the knowledge and skills needed to fulfill program competencies in that area. Some individuals may be
able to devote as little as 15-20 hours per week to the program, while others may need to devote more
time. For this reason, pre-assessments are there to help your program mentor form a profile of your prior
knowledge and create a personalized Degree Plan.

How You Will Interact with Faculty
At WGU, faculty serve in specialized roles, and they will work with you individually to provide the
guidance, instruction, and support you will need to succeed and graduate. As a student, it is important
for you to take advantage of this support. It is key to your progress and ultimate success. Upon your
enrollment, you will be assigned a program mentor-an

expert in your field of study who will provide

you with regular program-level guidance and support from the day you start until the day you graduate.
Your program mentor will set up regular telephone appointments (weekly at first) with you, which you
will be expected to keep. The mentor will review program competencies with you and work with you to
develop a plan and schedule for your coursework. Your program mentor will serve as your main point of
contact throughout your program-helping

you set weekly study goals, recommending specific learning

materials, telling you what to expect in courses, and keeping you motivated. In addition to regular calls,
your program mentor is available to help you resolve questions and concerns as they arise.
You will also be assigned to a course instructor for each course. Course instructors are doctoral-level
subject matter experts who will assist your learning in each individual course. When you begin a new
course, your assigned course instructor will actively monitor your progress and will be in touch to offer
one-on-one instruction and to provide you with information about webinars, cohort sessions, and other
learning opportunities available to help you acquire th: competencies you need to master the course.
Your course instructor can discuss your learning for the course, help you find answers to content
questions, and give you the tools to navigate the course successfully. In addition, you will communicate
with course instructors by posting in the online learning community and participating in live discussion
sessions such as webinars and cohorts.
For many of the courses at WGU, you will be required to complete performance assessments.These
include reports, papers, presentations, and projects that let you demonstrate your mastery of the
required competencies. A separate group of faculty members, called evaluators, will review your work to
determine whether it meets requirements. Evaluators are also subject matter experts in their field of
evaluation. If your assessment needs further work before it "passes," these evaluators, who review your
work anonymously, will provide you with instructional feedback to help you meet evaluation standards
and allow you to advance.

Connecting with Other Mentors and Fellow Students
As you proceed through your Degree Plan, you will have direct contact with multiple faculty members.
These communications can take a variety of forms, including participation in one-on-one discussions,
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chats in the learning communities, and live cohort and webinar opportunities. As a WGU student, you
will have access to your own personal MyWGU Student Portal, which will provide a gateway to your
courses of study, learning resources, and learning communities where you will interact with faculty and
other students.
The learning resources in each course are specifically designed to support you as you develop
competencies in preparation for your assessments.These learning resources may include reading
materials, videos, tutorials, cohort opportunities, community discussions, and live discussions that are
guided by course instructors who are experts in their field. You will access your program community
during your orientation course to network with peers who are enrolled in your program and to receive
continued support through professional enrichment and program-specific chats, blogs, and discussions.
WGU also provides Student Services associates to help you and your program mentor solve any special
problems that may arise.

Orientation
The WGU orientation course focuses on acquainting you with WGU's competency-based model,
distance education, technology, and other resources and tools available for students. You will also utilize
WGU program and course communities, participate in activities, and get to know other students at
WGU. The orientation course must be completed before you can start your first term at WGU.

Transferability of Prior College Coursework
Because WGU is a competency-based institution, it does not award degrees based on credits but rather
on demonstration of competency. However, if you have completed college coursework at another
accredited institution, or if you have completed industry certifications, you may have your transcripts and
certifications evaluated to determine if you are eligible to receive some transfer credit. The guidelines
for determining what credits will be granted varies based on the degree program. Students entering
graduate programs must have their undergraduate degree verified before being admitted to WGU. To
review more information in regards to transfer guidelines based on the different degree programs, you
may visit the Student Handbook found at the link below and search for "Transfer Credit Evaluation."
Click here for the Student Handbook
WGU does not waive any requirements based on a student's professional experience and does not
perform a "resume review" or "portfolio review" that will automatically waive any degree requirements.
Degree requirements and transferability rules are subject to change in order to keep the degree content
relevant and current.
Remember, WGU's competency-based approach lets you take advantage of your knowledge and skills,
regardless of how you obtained them. Even when you do not directly receive credit, the knowledge you
possess may help you accelerate the time it takes to complete your degree program.

Continuous Enrollment, On Time Progress, and Satisfactory Academic Progress
WGU is a "continuous enrollment" institution, which means you will be automatically enrolled in each of
your new terms while you are at WGU. Each term is six months long. Longer terms and continuous
enrollment allow you to focus on your studies without the hassle of unnatural breaks between terms that
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you would experience at a more traditional university. At the end of every six-month term, you and your
program mentor will review the progress you have made and revise your Degree Plan for your next sixmonth term.
WGU requires that students make measurable progress toward the completion of their degree programs
every term. We call this "On-Time Progress," denoting that you are on track and making progress
toward on-time graduation. As full-time students, graduate students must enroll in at least 8
competency units each term, and undergraduate students must enroll in at least 12 competency units
each term. Completing at least these minimum enrollments is essential to On-Time Progress and serves
as a baseline from which you may accelerate your program. We measure your progress based onthe
courses you are able to pass, not on your accumulation of credit hours or course grades. Every time you
pass a course, you are demonstrating that you have mastered skills and knowledge in your degree
program. For comparison to traditional grading systems, passing a course means you have
demonstrated competency equivalent to a "B" grade or better.
WGU assigns competency units to each course in order to track your progress through the program. A
competency unit is equivalent to one semester credit of learning. Some courses may be assigned 3
competency units while others may be as large as 12 competency units.
Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP)is particularly important to students on financial aid because you
must achieve SAP in order to maintain eligibility for financial aid. We will measure your SAP
quantitatively by reviewing the number of competency units you have completed each term. In order to
remain in good academic standing, you must complete at least 66.67% of the units you attempt over the
length of your program-including

any courses you add to your term to accelerate your progress.

Additionally, during your first term at WGU you must pass at least 3 competency units in order to remain
eligible for financial aid. We know that SAP is complex, so please contact a financial aid counselor
should you have additional questions. *Please note: The Endorsement Preparation Program in
Educational Leadership is not eligible for federal financial aid.

Courses
Your Degree Plan includes courses needed to complete your program. To obtain your degree, you will
be required to demonstrate your skills and knowledge by completing the assessment(s)for each course.
In general there are two types of assessments: performance assessments and objective assessments.
Performance assessments contain, in most cases, multiple scored tasks such as projects, essays, and
research papers. Objective assessments include multiple-choice items, multiple-selection items,
matching, short answer, drag-and-drop, and point-and-c1ick item types, as well as case study and videobased items. Certifications verified through third parties may also be included in your program. More
detailed information about each assessment is provided in each course of study.

Learning Resources
WGU works with many different educational partners, including enterprises, publishers, training
companies, and higher educational institutions, to provide high-quality and effective learning resources
that match the competencies you are developing. These vary in type, and may be combined to create
the best learning experience for your course. A learning resource can be an e-textbook, online module,
study guide, simulation, virtual lab, tutorial, or a combination of these. The cost of most learning
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resources are included in your tuition and Learning Resource Fee. They can be accessed or enrolled for
through your courses. Some degree-specific resources are not covered by your tuition, and you will
need to cover those costs separately. WGU also provides a robust library to help you obtain additional
learning resources, as needed.
Mobile Compatibility:
The following article provides additional details about the current state of mobile compatibility for
learning resources at WGU. It includes a list that can be referenced to determine-the mobile friendliness
of all core course materials used in a program.
Student Handbook article: Can I use my mobile device for learning resources?

Standard Path
As previously mentioned, competency units (CUs)have been assigned to each course in order to
measure your academic progress. If you are an undergraduate student, you will be expected to enroll in
a minimum of 12 competency units each term. Graduate students are expected to enroll in a minimum
of 8 competency units each term. A standard plan for a student for this program who entered WGU
without any transfer units would look similar to the one on the following page. Your personal progress
can be faster, but your pace will be determined by the extent of your transfer units, your time
commitment, and your determination to proceed at a faster rate.
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Standard Path for Bachelor of Science, Accounting
. ~"--- - - -- ~
- -

~--

-

Course Description

CUs

Organizational Behavior

3

English Composition I

3

Spreadsheets

3

Intermediate Algebra

3

Integrated Physical Sciences

3

2

English Composition II

3

2

College Algebra

4

2

Business Law

3

2

Principles of Accounting

4

3

Macroeconomics

3

3

Microeconomics

3

3

Introduction to Communication

3

3

Global Business

3

4

Accounting II

3

4

Managerial Accounting

3

4

Principles of Management

4

4

Business Strategy

3

5

Principles of Finance

3

5

Business Law for Accountants

3

5

Business Communication

3

5

Marketing Fundamentals

3

6

Intermediate Accounting I

3

6

Quantitative Analysis For Business

3

6

Introduction to Human Resource Management

3

6

Introduction to Sociology

3

7

Intermediate Accounting II

3

7

Survey of United States History

3

7

Operations and Supply Chain Management

3

7

Project Management

3

8

Information Systems Management

3

8

Taxation I

3

8
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Course Description

CUs

Term

Introduction to Probability and Statistics

3

8

Business Ethics

3

9

Taxation II

3

9

Accounting Information Systems

3

9

Auditing

3

9

Introduction to Humanities

3

10

Cost and Managerial Accounting

3

10

Accounting Capstone

5

10

Changes to Curriculum
WGU publishes an Institutional Catalog, which describes the academic requirements of each degree
program. Although students are required to complete the program version current at the time of their
enrollment, WGU may modify requirements and course offerings within that version of the program to
maintain the currency and relevance of WGU's competencies and programs. As these changes are
implemented, WGU will ensure that the length of the student's degree program (i.e., total competency
unit requirements) will not increase and that competency units already earned will be applied to the
updated program version. When program requirements are updated, students readmitting after
withdrawal from the university will be expected to re-enter into the most current catalog version of the
program.
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Areas of Study

for

Bachelor of Science, Accounting

The following section includes the areas of study in the program, with their associated courses. Your
specific learning resources and level of instructional support will vary based on the individual
competencies you bring to the program and your confidence in developing the knowledge, skills, and
abilities required in each area of the degree. The Degree Plan and learning resources are dynamic, so
you need to review your Degree Plan and seek the advice of your mentor regarding the resources
before you purchase them.

Business
Organizational Behavior
Organizational Behavior and Leadership explores how to lead and manage effectively in diverse business environments.
The course requires students to demonstrate the ability to apply organizational leadership theories and management
strategies in a series of scenario-based problems.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate can describe the effects of specified influences on individual behavior.

•

The graduate can analyze leadership theories, methods, and tools in given situations and select the appropriate
behavior of the leader.

•

The graduate can develop and recommend how to implement effective performance

•

The graduate can determine which type of team and team leadership should be used to accomplish a task or project.

•

The graduate analyzes the culture within an organization to determine how to work effectively within that
organization.

•

The graduate can recommend

evaluation processes.

appropriate principles or techniques for guiding the development

of a group.

Business Strategy
Strategy, Change and Organizational Behavior Concepts addresses complex material in the areas of organizational
behavior and strategic quality management. Topics include strategic planning, and competitive advantage.
This course focuses on models and practices of strategic management, including developing and implementing a strategy
and evaluating performance to achieve strategic goals and objectives.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate analyzes the key components
environments.

of strategic planning within industry as well as internal and external

•

The graduate formulates a strategic plan.

•

The graduate analyzes the organizational environment that supports the implementation

of a strategic plan.

Business Communication
Business Communication is a survey course of communication skills needed in the business environment. Course content
includes writing messages, reports, and resumes and delivering oral presentations. The course emphasizes communication
processes, writing skills, message types, and presentation of data. The development of these skills is integrated with the
use of technology.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate applies effective communication

•

The graduate composes multiple types of business messages in response to scenarios.
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•

The graduate creates messages using technology and/or social media to communicate in a business environment.

•

The graduate applies business research and writing sktlls to present information in a business environment.

•

The graduate applies the principles of business writing to communicate in a business environment.

•

The graduate creates professional communication documents for employment
opportunities.

and career advancement

Business Ethics
Business Ethics is designed to enable students to identify the ethical and socially responsible courses of actions available
through the exploration of various scenarios in business. Students will also learn to develop appropriate ethics guidelines
for a business. This course has no prerequisites.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate analyzes ethical and socially responsible courses of action in a given business situation.

•

The graduate analyzes ethical considerations that shape business leadership.

•

The graduate evaluates ethical policies in a given business scenario.

•

The graduate applies ethical principles to employment.

•

The graduate applies ethical principles to environmental concerns confronting business.

•

The graduate applies ethical principles to international business.

General Education
English Composition

I

English Composition I introduces learners to the types of writing and thinking that are valued in college and beyond.
Students will practice writing in several genres with emphasis placed on writing and revising academic arguments.
Instruction and exercises in grammar, mechanics, research documentation,

and style are paired with each module so that

writers can practice these skills as necessary.
Comp I is a foundational course designed to help students prepare for success at the college level.
There are no prerequisites for English Composition I.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate integrates credible and relevant sources into written arguments.

•

The graduate uses appropriate writing and revision strategies

•

The graduate composes an appropriate argumentative essay for a given context.

•

The graduate composes an appropriate narrative for a given context.

•

The graduate appropriately uses a given writing style.

•

The graduate selects appropriate rhetorical strategies that improve writing and argumentation.

•

The graduate applies appropriate grammatical rules, sentence structure, and writing conventions.

Intermediate

Algebra

This course provides an introduction of algebraic concepts and the development of the essential groundwork for College
Algebra. Topics include: A review of basic mathematical skills, the real number system, algebraic expressions, linear
equations, graphing, exponents and polynomials
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate solves linear equations and applications.
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•

The graduate translates, simplifies, and evaluates algebraic expressions.

•

The graduate determines absolute values, adds and subtracts integers, multiplies and divides real numbers, and
determines whether or not a particular integer is a solution.

•

The graduate graphs ordered pairs and lines on the Cartesian coordinate system.

•

The graduate identifies, evaluates, and multiplies exponents and polynomials.

English Composition II
English Composition II introduces undergraduate students to research writing. It is a foundational course designed to help
students prepare for advanced writing within the discipline and to complete the capstone. Specifically, this course will help
students develop or improve research, reference citation, document organization, and writing skills. English Composition I
or equivalent is a prerequisite for this course.
This course covers the fol/owing competencies:

•

The graduate applies steps of the writing process appropriately to improve quality of writing.

•

The graduate composes an argumentative research paper.

•

The graduate evaluates the quality, credibility, and relevance of evidence in order to integrate evidence into a final
research paper.

College Algebra
This course provides further application and analysis of algebraic concepts and functions through mathematical modeling
of real-world situations. Topics include: real numbers, algebraic expressions, equations and inequalities, graphs and
functions, polynomial and rational functions, exponential and logarithmic functions, and systems of linear equations.
This course covers the fol/owing competencies:

•

The graduate simplifies and factors polynomial expressions, and solves polynomial equations.

•

The graduate solves systems of linear equations and their related applications.

•

The graduate simplifies rational, radical, and quadratic expressions, solves corresponding equations, and extends this
knowledge to the study of functions.

•

The graduate combines functions, finds inverse functions, solves exponential and logarithmic equations and functions.

•

The graduate classifies and performs operations on real numbers; solves linear equations and inequalities; connects a
linear equation to its graph; and identifies a function.

Introduction to Communication
This introductory communication course allows students to become familiar with the fundamental communication theories
and practices necessary to engage in healthy professional and personal relationships. Students will survey human
communication on multiple levels and critically apply the theoretical grounding of the course to interpersonal, intercultural,
small group, and public presentational contexts. The course also encourages students to consider the influence of
language, perception, culture, and media on their daily communicative interactions. In addition to theory, students will
engage in the application of effective communication skills through systematically preparing and delivering an oral
presentation.

By practicing these fundamental skills in human communication, students become more competent

communicators as they develop more flexible, useful, and discriminatory communicative practices in a variety of contexts.
This course covers the fol/owing competencies:

•
•
•

The graduate applies foundational elements of effective communication .
The graduate applies appropriate communication strategies in interpersonal and group contexts
The graduate utilizes appropriate presentational communication strategies in personal and professional settings .

BSAC 201801

@ 2018 Western

Governors University

9/28/18

11

Introduction

to Sociology

This course teaches students to think like sociologists, in other words, to see and understand the hidden rules, or norms, by
which people live, and how they free or restrain behavior. Students will learn about socializing institutions, such as schools
and families, as well as workplace organizations and governments. Participants will also learn how people deviate from the
rules by challenging norms, and how such behavior may result in social change, either on a large scale or within small
groups.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate explains the approach of those who observed society in the past including European and American
thinkers.

•

The graduate assesses where one resides within the broader context of a stratified society.

•

The graduate analyzes the impact of major social institutions on society.

•

The graduate analyzes the impact of conformity and resistance to society's norms.

•

The graduate evaluates the social forces that produce one's Identity.

Survey of United States History
This course presents a broad and thematic survey of U.S. history from European colonization to the mid-twentieth

century.

Students will explore how historical events and major themes in American history have affected a diverse population.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate explains significant international and domestic challenges that the United States confronted since World
War I.

•

The graduate analyzes the colonial experience and the foundations of the American Revolution.

•

The graduate analyzes the challenges of partisan politics and sectionalism in the Early Republic and Civil War eras.

•

The graduate examines the major changes that defined the United States in the late-nineteenth
centuries.

Introduction

and early-twentieth

to Probability and Statistics

In this course, students demonstrate competency in the basic concepts, logic, and issues involved in statistical reasoning.
Topics include summarizing and analyzing data, sampling and study design, and probability.
This course covers the following competencies:

•

The graduate applies theoretical or empirical probability to a situation to quantify uncertainty.

•

The graduate evaluates the sampling methods used in studies including the effect they have on conclusions that can
be made.

•

The graduate evaluates the relationship between two variables through the creation and interpretation of numerical
summaries and visual displays.

•

The graduate determines the probability of events using simulations, diagrams, and probability rules.

•

The graduate evaluates categorical and quantitative data using appropriate numerical measures and graphical
displays.

•

The graduate designs and conducts observational studies, controlled experiments, and surveys to explore population
characteristics.

Introduction

to Humanities

This introductory humanities course allows students to practice essential writing, communication, and critical thinking skills
necessary to engage in civic and professional interactions as mature, informed adults. Whether through studying literature,
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C248 -Intermediate Accounting I
Course of Study

This course supports the assessment for Intermediate Accounting I. The course covers 6
competencies and represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview
Intermediate Accounting I is the first of two courses encompassing more advanced accounting
concepts. This course offers a more comprehensive treatment of concepts learned in the
Fundamentals of Accounting course, and covers accounting standards, the conceptual
accounting framework, preparation of selected financial statements, time value of money,
receivables, fixed assets, intangible assets, and both long- and short-term liabilities.
Getting Started
Welcome to Intermediate Accounting I. Intermediate Accounting I is a crucial course in the
accounting program and a bridge into the accounting profession. It is important to spend time
reading about and working through all of the concepts. This course uses a VitalSource e-text,
as well as WileyPLUS and ORION. Activities in WileyPLUS include readings, videos, exercises,
practice questions, and self-assessment quizzes. Each of these activities have been selected
specifically for this course; it is important for you to complete all of them in preparation for the
objective assessment. WileyPLUS resources also include ORION, which provides additional
practice questions by chapter and objective. You will utilize ORION once you have completed
the other activities. As you work through each topic, you will use links to access the VitalSource
e-text along with the WileyPLUS activities.
The pacing guide is a great resource to help you stay on track, and a printable checklist will
enable you to track your progress through the course. Be sure to reach out to your course
instructor for support and guidance.
Watch the following welcome video for an introduction to this course:

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 6 competencies:
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate

3021.1.1: Accounting Standards
explains the scope and purpose of accounting standards.
3021.1.2: Conceptual Framework
uses the conceptual framework for accounting .
3021.1.3: Income Statement and Balance Sheet
prepares an income statement and balance sheet.
3021.1.4: Time Value of Money
applies the time value of money concept.

C248 - Intermediate Accounting I
Course of Study

• Competency

3021.1.5: Assets

The graduate accounts for assets.
• Competency

3021.1.6: Liabilities

The graduate accounts for liabilities.
Course Instructor Assistance

As you prepare to demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course instructors
stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts, mentors enjoy
and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers, and critical
thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to help you prepare for another attempt. You should
expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, and you are
encouraged to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to
your success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to enroll manually in or acquire other resources independently. Read the full
instructions provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically

Enrolled Resources

You can access the learning resources listed in this section by clicking on the links provided
throughout the course. You may be prompted to log in to the WGU student portal to access the
resources.
VitalSource

E- Text

The following textbook is available to you as an e-text within this course. You will be directly
linked to the specific readings required within the activities that follow. You can also download
the text to read it while offline .
• Kieso, D. E, Weygandt, J. J., & Warfield, T. D. (2013). Intermediate
accounting (15th ed.). New Jersey: Wiley. ISBN: 978-1118147290
For further information about using a Vita/Source text, visit the following help page:
• Vita/Source: Help

C248 -Intermediate Accounting I
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Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
purchase hard copies at your own expense through a retailer of your choice. If you choose to do
so, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you receive the correct edition.
WileyPLUS
WileyPLUS is a research-based online environment for effective teaching and learning.
WileyPLUS includes a digital text, videos, study resources, auto-graded assessments, and a
grade book. All of the content in WileyPLUS, including the rich multimedia resources, is mapped
to learning objectives. WileyPLUS reports students' grades, progress, and results by learning
objective for each course, which both mentors and students can view.
View the "WileyPLUS Navigational Video" to become familiar with using WileyPLUS and
ORION.

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

Yi.d.e.Q
Navigating WileyPLUS
The links provided throughout this course of study will take you to the WileyPLUS assignment
page. The links in the assignment page give you access to the different assignments that you
will need to complete for this course.
Question Help in WileyPLUS
Assignments in WileyPLUS include a variety of learning aides to support you as you work
through the problems. You can access these learning aides directly below the question or
problem text. Below is a description of the learning aides. The available learning aides vary
depending on the question.
Show List of Accounts provides a list of accounts related to the question.
Link to Text directs you to the related topic in the textbook.
Video Similar Exercise provides a video that demonstrates solving a similar problem.
Video Applied Skills provides video support for answering the question.
Show Answer and Show Solution provide the correct answers for the question or exercise.
All of the assignments have multiple attempts. For longer problems, you can use the Submit
button midway through to check your answers and see if you are on the right track.
Minimum Technical Requirements
Obtain a Calculator
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You will need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel,
for computational problems throughout this course. The recommended financial calculator is the
Texas Instruments BA-II Plus. You may only use an approved financial calculator during the
pre-assessment and assessment for this course. You are unable to use Excel during the
assessments.
Other Learning Resources
Financial Accounting Standards Boards Database
For more general information on accounting concepts and your general reference, we have
included the below link to the FASB database. Please contact your course instructor with more
specific questions .
• FASB Accounting Standards Codification Database
Log in at the link above using the following:
• Username: AAA52071
• Password: 2EXZr8V

Pacing Guide
The pacing guide suggests a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities. It is
provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow the pacing
guide carefully to complete the course in the suggested timeframe.
Use the printable checklist to track your progress through the course:
• C248 Intermediate Accounting I Course Checklist

Week 1
• Preparing for Success
• Financial Statements
• Accounting Standards
Week 2
• Building the Conceptual Framework
• Preparing an Income Statement
Week 3
• Preparing the Balance Sheet
• Time Value of Money
Week 4
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• Cash and Cash Equivalents
• Inventory: Cost-Based Valuation
WeekS

• Inventory: Market or Gross Profit-Based Valuation
• Property, Plant, and Equipment
Week 6
• Depreciation
• Intangible Assets
Week 7

• Current Liabilities
• Long-Term Liabilities
WeekS

• Review
• Pre-Assessment
• Assessment

Accounting Standards
Accounting standards explain the objectives of financial reporting, the role of accounting
information in the efficient use of scarce resources, and the need of accounting standards. Also
identified are the four major financial statements in financial reporting and descriptions of
various users of financial statements. Additionally, the role of various entities in setting
accounting standards, the accounting standards setting process, and the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification framework are discussed. An
explanation of and the purpose for generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) is detailed
along with the major types of FASB pronouncements, challenges, and issues associated with
financial reporting.

Financial Statements
After completing this section, you will be able to describe the objectives of financial reporting
and various users of financial statements, explain the need for accounting standards, and
identify the four major financial statements.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency

3021.1.1: Accounting

Standards

The graduate explains the scope and purpose of accounting standards.
This topic highlights the following objectives:

C248 - Intermediate Accounting I
Course of Study

•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Describe the objective of financial reporting.
Describe how various stakeholders will use financial statements.
Explain the need for accounting standards.
Describe the purpose of the four major financial statements.
Explain how accounting assists in the efficient use of scarce resources.
Chapter 1: "Financial Accounting and Accounting Standards"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
• Objectives of financial reporting
• The need for accounting standards
Read the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 4-7 in Chapter 1: "Financial Accounting and Accounting Standards"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 01A (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills Video
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 01A (b) Practice Questions

Accounting Standards
This topic will help you to describe the role of various entities in setting accounting standards
and to acquire knowledge of the accounting standards setting process. Additionally the material
covered helps you gain an understanding of the FASS Codification framework and the purpose
of GAAP. After completing the activities below, you should be able to explain the purpose of
GAAP and identify major types of FASS pronouncements, challenges, and issues associated
with financial reporting.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.1: Accounting Standards
The graduate explains the scope and purpose of accounting standards.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•

Describe the role of entities involved in setting accounting standards.
Describe the process by which accounting standards are set.
Identify major types of FASS pronouncements.
Explain the purpose of GAAP.
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• Describe the FASB Codification framework.
• Identify challenges and issues associated with financial reporting.
Read: Chapter 1: "Financial Accounting and Accounting Standards"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The role of various parties involved in standard-setting
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
FASB Codification system
Issues in financial reporting
IFRS and its setting process
Convergence of IFRS with GAAP

Read the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 7-21 in Chapter 1: "Financial Accounting and Accounting Standards"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 01B (a) Readings and Resources
a Review Study Guide
a Review PowerPoint Review
a The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 01B (b) Practice Questions
• Chapter 01B (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 01 ORION

Conceptual Framework
The conceptual framework is the foundation of financial reporting, as it guides the development
of accounting standards. This subject explains the need of the conceptual framework, the
objectives of financial reporting, qualitative characteristics of accounting information, basic
elements of financial statements, and basic assumptions and principles of accounting.
Additionally, the discussion compares the conceptual frameworks underlying GAAP and IFRS.

Building the Conceptual Framework
After reviewing the assigned material, you will be able to explain the conceptual framework that
guides accounting standards by examining the need of the conceptual framework and by
describing the objective of financial reporting, the qualitative characteristics of accounting
information, basic elements of financial statements, and basic assumptions and principles of
accounting. You will also be able to compare the conceptual frameworks underlying GAAP and
IFRS.
This topic addresses the following competency:
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• Competency 3021.1.2: Conceptual Framework
The graduate uses the conceptual framework for accounting.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Explain the need for a conceptual framework.
Describe the qualitative characteristics of accounting information.
Describe the basic elements of financial statements.
Define the basic assumptions and principles of accounting.
Compare the conceptual frameworks underlying GAAP and IFRS.
Chapter 2: "Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The need of the conceptual framework
Objectives of financial reporting
Qualitative characteristics of accounting information
Recognition and measurement
Basic principles of accounting
Constraints in providing accounting information
Conceptual framework underlying IFRS

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 42-63 and 78-80 in Chapter 2: "Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "Conceptual Frameworks Underlying GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 02 (a) Readings and Resources
a Review Study Guide
a View Applied Skills videos
a Review PowerPoint Review
a The e-text has been included in this section as well for easy access.
• Chapter 02 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 02 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 02 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 02 ORION

Income Statement and Balance Sheet
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The income statement and balance sheets are two of the most important financial statements of
the four major financial statements. The income statement provides information regarding the
financial performance of companies for a given period of time, and the balance sheet helps
users measure the financial position of companies by reporting the assets, liabilities, and
stockholders' equity on a specific date. This subject covers the recognition of the elements and
the preparation of the income statement. It also covers the major elements, classification, and
preparation of the balance sheet.

Preparing an Income Statement
The income statements provide the financial information to measure success of the operations
of companies for a given period of time. After studying this topic you should be able to describe
the elements and structure of the income statement, explain how to report special items in the
income statement, and prepare an income statement. Additionally you will be able to explain
how to present the earnings per share information on the income statement.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.3: Income Statement and Balance Sheet
The graduate prepares an income statement and balance sheet.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Describe the elements of the income statement.
• Describe the structure of income statements .
• Explain how to report unusual or irregular items in income statements.
• Explain how the earnings per share information is presented on the income statement.
• Explain how accounting changes and errors are reported.
• Explain how to report other comprehensive income.
• Prepare the income statement.
• Compare GAAP and IFRS standards for income statement presentation.
Read: Chapter 4: ?Income Statement and Related Information?
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Usefulness of income statements
Limitation of income statements
Format of income statements (single-step and multiple-step)
Reporting irregular items
Earnings per share
Income statement reporting issues under IFRS

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
Pages 162-184 and 205-207 in Chapter 4: "Income Statement and Related Information"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences.
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• "GMP and IFRS Standards for Income Statement Presentation"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 04 (a) Readi.ngs and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 04 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 04 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 04 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 04 ORION

Preparing the Balance Sheet
A balance sheet can help accountants measure the financial position of companies by reporting
the assets, liabilities, and stockholders' equity on a specific date. This topic covers the
usefulness, limitations, and major classifications of the balance sheet. After reviewing this topic,
you will be able to explain the usefulness of balances and how to report the balance sheet.
Additionally you will be able to explain balance sheet reporting issues under IFRS.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.3: Income Statement and Balance Sheet
The graduate prepares an income statement and balance sheet.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Explain the usefulness and limitations of the balance sheet.
Identify the major classifications of the balance sheet.
Explain how current assets are reported and valued on the balance sheet.
Describe how noncurrent assets are presented on the balance sheet.
Identify examples of the classification of liabilities.
Describe the components of the owner's equity section of the balance sheet.
Prepare a balance sheet.
Compare GAAP and IFRS standards for balance sheet presentation.
Chapter 5: "Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•

Usefulness of a balance sheet
Limitations of a balance sheet
Classification of a balance sheet
Balance sheet reporting issues under IFRS
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Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 214-228 and 277-282 in Chapter 5: "Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash
Flows"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "GAAP and IFRS Standards for Balance Sheet presentation"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 05 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 05 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 05 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 05 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 05 ORION

Time Value of Money
The time value of money concept states that a dollar received today is worth more than a dollar
promised at some time in the future. This is very important in financial reporting because of the
many elements of financial statements that are measured and reported at the present value of
expected cash flows. This subject covers present value techniques, which have many
applications in accounting.

Time Value of Money
At the start of a company's existence, the measurement of its assets and liabilities are less
complex; however, when time has passed, the measurement of assets and liabilities are more
complex because the value of assets change. Financial reporting uses different measurements
in different situations. More elements of financial statements are required to be reported at fair
value. The present value using time value of money represents an estimate of fair value.
After reviewing this topic, you will be able to identify accounting topics where the time value of
money is relevant and will know how to compute present value in various situations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.4: Time Value of Money
The graduate applies the time value of money concept.
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This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Identify accounting topics where the time value of money is relevant.
Define the variables in interest computations.
Distinguish between simple and compound interest.
Explain how to use the various compound interest tables.
Solve various time value of money problems.
Chapter 6: "Accounting and the Time Value of Money"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Nature of interest
Simple interest
Compound interest
Future value
Present value
Ordinary annuity
Annuity due
Expected cash flow approach

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 288-309 and 334-343 in Chapter 6: "Accounting and the Time Value of Money"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 06 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Solution Walkthrough Video
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 06 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 06 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 06 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 06 ORION

Assets
Assets are defined as probable future benefits obtained or controlled by a company as a result
of past transactions or events. It sounds straightforward, but there are many challenging issues
to measuring assets and reporting them on a balance sheet. Additionally, different types of
assets are to be measured differently, which results in more challenges in reporting assets. This
subject covers various assets and their measurements and reporting issues.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents are the most liquid assets. The company needs to have cash to pay
its suppliers and various expenses. Receivables are claims held against customers and others
for money, goods, or services. This topic covers how to report cash-related items and
receivables. After reviewing this topic, you will be able to report cash and cash related items,
recognize receivables with various discounts, and value receivables when collectability is
uncertain. You will also be able to value notes receivable and report the disposition of
receivables.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe how to report cash and related items.
Define the different types of receivables.
Explain how accounts receivables are valued.
Record write-offs and recovery of an uncollectable account.
Explain how notes receivable are valued and recorded.
Describe the disposition of accounts and notes receivable.
Describe the differences between GAAP and IFRS as they apply to cash and
receivabl es.
Read: Chapter 7: "Cash and Receivables"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Cash and cash related items
Recognition of accounts receivable
Valuation of accounts receivable
Recognition of notes receivable
Valuation of notes receivable
Fair value option
Disposition of accounts and notes receivable

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages in 346-371 and 408-411 in Chapter 7: "Cash and Receivables"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "GAAP and IFRS as They Apply to Cash and Receivables"
Apply
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Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 07 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 07 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 07 (c) Practice Problems
• Chapter 07 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 07 ORION

Inventory: Cost-Based Valuation
Inventories are assets that a company holds for sale in the ordinary course of business, or
goods that it will use or consume in the production of goods to be sold. Companies use two
alternative inventory systems to track inventories: a perpetual and a periodic system. This topic
covers what costs or goods are included in inventory, cost flow assumption to determine ending
inventory and cost of goods sold, and special issues with the last in, first out (LIFO) cost flow
assumption. After studying the topic, you will be able to distinguish a periodic system from a
perpetual system, explain how to determine ending inventory value and cost of goods sold, and
describe special issues with the LIFO cost flow assumption.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Identify the major classifications of inventory.
Describe the differences between the major inventory systems.
Explain when goods should be included in inventory.
Describe the effects of inventory errors on the financial statements.
Id,entify examples of items that are included in the cost of inventory .
Calculate the cost of goods sold and ending inventory based on various cost flow
assumptions.
• Describe special issues with the LIFO cost flow assumption.
• Identify the impact of various cost flow assumptions used to account for inventories.
Read: Chapter 8: ?Valuation of Inventories: A Cost-Basis Approach?
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•

Inventory classification
Inventory systems: perpetual and periodic
Goods and costs that are included inventory
Cost flow assumptions

1_-
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• Special issues in LIFO
Read the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
•. Pages 416-443 in Chapter 8: "Valuation of Inventories: A Cost-Basis Approach"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 08 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Interactive Tutorial and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 08 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 08 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 08 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 08 ORION

Inventory: Market or Gross Profit-Based Valuation
Purchasing cost based inventory value may not reflect market value of inventories. This topic
covers other valuation issues of inventory. After reviewing this topic, you will be able to describe
the lower-of-cost-or-market (LCM) rule and compute inventory value using LCM rule. Also, you
will be able to explain when companies report inventories at net realizable value and at relative
sales value.
In this topic, necessary disclosures related to the presentation of inventory in financial
statements and key differences in the accounting procedures related to valuation of inventories
under GAAP and IFRS are also covered.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Calculate the value of inventory by using the lower-of-cost-or-market rule.
Determine the effect of the lower-of-cost-or-market rule.
Explain when companies would value inventories at net realizable value .
Explain when companies use the relative sales value method to value inventories.
Determine ending inventory by applying the gross profit method.
Identify necessary disclosures related to the presentation of inventory in financial
statements.
• Identify key differences in the accounting procedures related to valuation of inventories
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under GMP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 9: "Inventories:

Additional Valuation Issues"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lower-of-cost-or-market rule
Net realizable value
Relative sales value
The gross profit method
Disclosures and presentation of inventory in financial statements
Key differences in the accounting procedures related to valuation of inventories under
GMP and IFRS

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 474-496 and 525-532 in Chapter 9: "Inventories; Additional Valuation Issues"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GMP and
IFRS.
• "Valuation of Inventories Under GMP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 09 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 09 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 09 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 09 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 09 ORION

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Companies need to have assets of a durable nature for their operation. Such assets are called
property, plant, and equipment. This topic covers acquisition, valuation, cost of subsequent
acquisition, and disposition of property, plant, and equipment. After studying this topic you will
be able to report the acquisition cost of property, plant, and equipment; report cost of
subsequent of acquisition; and report disposition transaction of property, plant, and equipment.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
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The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Identify the costs to include in initial valuation of property, plant, and equipment.
• Explain the process and procedure of capitalizing interest costs for self-constructed
assets.
• Explain how to account for acquiring and valuing plant assets.
• Explain how to account for exchange transactions .
• Describe the treatment for costs subsequent to the initial acquisition.
• Explain how to account for the disposition of assets.
Read: Chapter 10: "Acquisition and Disposition of Property, Plant, and Equipment"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•

Acquisition costs of property, plant, and equipment
Capitalizing interest costs for self-constructed assets
Exchange transactions of nonmonetary assets
Costs subsequent to the initial acquisition
Disposition of assets

Read the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 538-562 in Chapter 10: "ACQuisitionand Disposition of Property. Plant. and
EQuipment"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 10 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Author Lecture and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 10 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 10 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 10 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 10 ORION

Depreciation
Depreciation is the accounting process of allocating the cost of tangible assets to expense in a
systematic and rational manner to those periods expected to benefit from the use of the asset.
This topic covers factors involved in the depreciation process, methods of deprecation, and
recognizing impairments. It also covers depletion of natural resources and key differences in
accounting for property, plant, and equipment under GAAP and IFRS.
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This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Describe the purpose of depreciation.
Describe the major depreciation methods .
Calculate depreciation expense using various depreciation methods .
Explain how to account for impairment of property, plant, and equipment assets.
Explain the accounting procedures for depletion of natural resources .
Explain how to present property, plant, equipment, and natural resources in financial
statements.
Describe the procedure for changing the depreciation method.
Describe the difference between book and tax depreciation.
Identify key differences in accounting for property, plant, and equipment under GAAP
and IFRS.
Chapter 11: "Depreciation, Impairments, and Depletion"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Purpose of depreciation
Major depreciation methods
Impairment of property, plant, and equipment assets
Depletion process of natural resources
Presentation of property, plant, equipment, and natural resources in financial statements
Key differences in accounting for property, plant, and equipment under GAAP and IFRS

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 590-612, 617, and 637-643 in Chapter 11: "Depreciation. Impairments,. and
Depletion"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "Property. plant. and Equipment Under GAAp and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 11 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Interactive Tutorials, and the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough
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•
•
•
•
•

videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
Chapter 11 (b) Exercises
Chapter 11 (c) IFRS Self-Test
Chapter 11 (d) Practice Questions
Chapter 11 (e) Self-Test Quiz
Chapter 11 ORION

Intangible Assets
For many companies, the most important assets are intangible in nature. A good example is the
brand value of Coca Cola or Apple Inc. Intangible assets do not have physical substance and
are not financial instruments. Due to these unique characteristics, valuation of intangibles is
often challenging. The topic primarily covers the valuation of intangible assets. It identifies types
of intangible assets, and covers the impairment of intangible assets. Also, it covers accounting
for research and development cost, the presentation of intangible assets, and key differences in
accounting for intangible assets under GAAP and IFRS.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3021.1.5: Assets
The graduate accounts for assets.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe the major characteristics of intangible assets .
Identify the costs that are included in valuation of intangible assets .
Identify examples of several types of intangible assets.
Explain how to account for the acquisition of goodwill.
Explain how to account for impairments of intangible assets.
Identify examples of research and development activities.
Explain how to account for research and development and similar costs.
Describe the presentation of intangible assets and research and development costs in
financial statements .
• Identify key differences in accounting for intangible assets under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 12: "Intangible Assets"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Characteristics of intangible assets
Types of intangible assets
Acquisition cost of goodwill
Amortizations and impairments of intangible assets
Research and development activities
Accounting for research and development and similar costs
Presentation of intangible assets and research and development costs in financial
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statements
• Key differences in accounting for intangible assets under GAAP and IFRS
Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 650-676 and 693-697 in Chapter 12: "Intangible Assets"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "Intangible Assets Under GAAp and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 12 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 12 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 12 (c) IFRS Self-Test
• Chapter 12 (d) Practice Questions
• Chapter 12 (e) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 12 ORION

Liabilities
Liabilities are defined as probable future sacrifices of economic benefits arising from present
obligations of a company to transfer assets or provide services to other entities in the future as
a result of past transactions or events. There are two basic divisions, based on due date of such
obligations, which liabilities are classified by: current liabilities and long-term debt. The subject
of liabilities covers measurements and reporting issues of both current liabilities and long-term
debt.

Current Liabilities
If due dates of obligations are within a single operating cycle or a year, those obligations are
classified as current liabilities. A contingency is an existing condition, situation, or set of
circumstances involving potential losses or gains that will not be resolved until some future
event occurs. This topic covers accounting issues related to current liabilities and contingencies.
After reviewing the topic, you will be able to identify what current liabilities are, how to account
for short-term liabilities and payroll-related liabilities, and how to account for contingencies.
Additionally, you will be able to identify the key differences in the accounting for current liabilities
and contingencies under GAAP and IFRS.
This topic addresses the following competency:
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• Competency 3021.1.6: Liabilities
The graduate accounts for liabilities.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Identify examples of current liabilities.
Explain how to account for short-term liabilities.
Explain how to account for payroll-related liabilities.
Explain how to account for contingencies.
Identify the key differences in the accounting procedures for current liabilities and
contingencies under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 13: "Current Liabilities and Contingencies"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•

Examples of current liabilities
Accounting for short-term liabilities
Accounting for payroll-related liabilities
Contingencies
Key differences in the accounting procedures for current liabilities and contingencies
under GAAP and IFRS

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 702-729 and 753-759 in Chapter 13: "Current Liabilities and Contingencies"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS.
• "Current Liabilities and Contingencies Under GAAp and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 13 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough Videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 13 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 13 (c) IFRS Self-Test
• Chapter 13 (d) Practice Questions
• Chapter 13 (e) Self-Test Quiz
• Chapter 13 ORION

1
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Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term debt consists of probable future sacrifices of economic benefits arising from present
obligations that are not payable within a year or the operating cycle of the company, whichever
is longer. Since the due date of obligations are longer than a year, the measuring and reporting
of long-term debt is often more complex than short-term debt. After studying this topic, you will
be able to account for the issuance, the periodic interest payments, and the retirement of bonds
and notes payable. This topic also covers off-balance-sheet financing arrangements, the
presentation of long-term debt on the financial statements, debt restructuring, and the key
differences in the accounting procedures for long-term liabilities under GAAP and IFRS.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency

3021.1.6: Liabilities

The graduate accounts for liabilities.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe various types of bonds.
Define key terms used when issuing bonds.
Explain how to account for the issuance of bonds.
Explain how to account for the periodic interest payments on bonds .
Explain how to account for the payment of debt (debt extinguishment).
Identify the key difference in accounting for long-term notes payable and bonds payable.
Explain how to account for the issuance of long-term notes payable.
Explain how to account for the amortization of discounts on long-term notes payable.
Identify special situations related to notes payable.
Explain the purpose for off-balance-sheet financing arrangements.
Explain the presentation of long-term debt on the financial statements.
Describe the accounting for a debt restructuring .
Identify the key differences in the accounting procedures for long-term liabilities under
GAAP and IFRS.

Read: Chapter 14: "Long-Term

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Liabilities"

Stated (coupon) rate
Market (effective yield) rate
Maturity (face or par) value
Discount and premium
Amortization of discount or premium
Gains or losses from the extinguishment of bonds
Imputation of interest rate
Fair value option
Off-balance-sheet financing arrangements
Presentation of long-term debt on the financial statements
Debt restructuring
Key differences in the accounting for long-term liabilities under GAAP and IFRS

I

L_

C248 - Intermediate Accounting I
Course of Study

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 764-796 and 815-818 in Chapter 14: "Long-Term Liabilities"
Review the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 314-315 in Chapter 6: "Accounting and the Time Value of Money"
View the "Financial Calculator" video to learn more about the time value of money and how to
how to calculate present value of bonds.

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as...": download
Yki!is2.
Read the following document to learn more about the presentation of long-term debt on the
financial statements.
• "Extjnguishment of Debt Calculation"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and
IFRS .
• "Long-term Liabilitjes Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 14 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 14 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 14 (c) IFRS Self-Test
• Chapter 14 (d) Practice Questions
• Chapter 14 (e) Self-Test Quiz
• Chapter 14 ORION

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! This course has prepared you to
complete the assessment associated with this course. If you have not already been directed to
complete it, schedule and complete the assessment now.
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This course supports the assessment for Intermediate Accounting II. The course covers 10
competencies and represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview
Intermediate Accounting II is the second of two intermediate accounting courses. This course
provides a more comprehensive treatment of concepts learned in Fundamentals of Accounting
and covers stockholders' equity, dilutive securities, investments, revenue recognition,
accounting for income taxes, pensions and post-retirement benefits, leases, financial
disclosures, and the preparation of the statement of cash flows.
Getting Started
Welcome to Intermediate Accounting II. Intermediate Accounting II is an important course in the
Accounting program. It's important to spend time reading about and working through all of the
course concepts. This course uses a VitalSource e-text, as well as WileyPLUS. Activities in
WileyPLUS include readings, videos, exercises, practice questions, and self-assessment
quizzes. Each of these activities have been selected specifically for this course; it's important for
you to complete all of them in preparation for the objective assessment. WileyPLUS resources
also include ORION, which provides additional practice questions by chapter and objective. You
will utilize ORION once you have completed the other activities. As you work through each
topic, you will use links to access the VitalSource e-text along with the WileyPLUS activities.
The pacing guide is a great resource to help you stay on track and a printable checklist will
enable you to track your progress through the course. Be sure to reach out to your course
instructor for support and guidance.
Watch the following welcome video for an introduction to this course:

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 10 competencies:
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency

3022.1.1: Stockholder Equity
accounts for stockholders' equity.
3022.1.2: Investments
accounts for investments.
3022.1.3: Revenue Recognition
accounts for revenue.
3022.1.4: Income Taxes
accounts for income taxes.
3022.1.5: Pensions and Post-Retirement

Benefits
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•
•
•
•
•

The graduate
Competency
The graduate
Competency
The graduate
Competency
The graduate
Competency
The graduate
Competency
The graduate

accounts for pensions and post-retirement benefits.
3022.1.6: Leases
accounts for leases.
3022.1.7: Accounting Changes and Error Analysis
accounts for accounting changes and performs error analysis.
3022.1.8: Cash Flow Statements
prepares a statement of cash flows.
3022.1.9: Financial Statement Analysis
analyzes financial statements.
3022.1.10: Financial Reporting
explains full disclosure financial reporting.

Course Instructor Assistance
As you prepare to demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course instructors
stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts, mentors enjoy
and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers, and critical
thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
.strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to help you prepare for another attempt. You should
expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, and you are
encouraged to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to
your success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to enroll manually in or acquire other resources independently. Read the full
instructions provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically Enrolled Resources
You can access the learning resources listed in this section by clicking on the links provided
throughout the course. You may be prompted to log in to the WGU student portal to access the
resources.
VitalSource E-Text
The following textbook is available to you as an e-text within this course. You will be directly
linked to the specific readings required within the activities that follow. You can also download
the text to read it while offline.
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• Kieso, D. E, Weygandt, J. J., & Warfield, T. D. (2013). Intermediate accounting (15th
ed.). New Jersey: Wiley. ISBN: 978-1118147290

For further information about using a VitalSource text, visit the following help page:
• VitalSource:

Help

Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
purchase hard copies at your own expense through a retailer of your choice. If you choose to do
so, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you receive the correct edition.
WileyPLUS
WileyPLUS is a research-based online environment for effective teaching and learning.
WileyPLUS includes a digital text, videos, study resources, auto-graded assessments, and a
grade book. All of the content in WileyPLUS, including the rich multimedia resources, is mapped
to learning objectives. WileyPLUS reports students' grades, progress, and results by learning
objective for each course, which both mentors and students can view.
View the "WileyPLUS

Navigational

Video" to become familiar with using WileyPLUS

and

ORION.

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Navigating WileyPLUS
The links provided throughout this course will take you to the WileyPLUS assignment page. The
links in the assignment page give you access to the different assignments that you will need to
complete for this course.

Question Help in WileyPLUS
Assignments in WileyPLUS include a variety of learning aides to support you as you work
through the problems. You can access these learning aides directly below the question or
problem text. Below is a description of the learning aides. The available learning aides vary
depending on the question.

Show List of Accounts provides a list of accounts related to the question.
Link to Text directs you to the related topic in the textbook.
Video Similar Exercise provides a video that demonstrates

solving a similar problem.

Video Applied Skills provides video support for answering the question.
Show Answer and Show Solution provide the correct answers for the question or exercise.

C249 -Intermediate Accounting II
Course of Study

All of the assignments have multiple attempts. For longer problems, you can use the Submit
button midway through to check your answers and see if you are on the right track.
Minimum Technical Requirements
Obtain a Calculator
You will need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel,
for computational problems throughout this course. The recommended financial calculator is the
Texas Instruments BA-II Plus. You may only use an approved financial calculator during the
pre-assessment and assessment for this course. You are unable to use Excel during the
assessments.
Other Learning Resources
Financial Accounting Standards Boards Database
For more general information on accounting concepts and your general reference, we have
included the below link to the FASB database. Please contact your course instructor with more
specific questions.
• FASB Accounting Standards Codification database
Log in at the link above using the following:
• Username: AAA52071
• Password: 2EXZr8V

Pacing Guide
The pacing guide suggests a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities. It is
provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow the pacing
guide carefully to complete the course in the suggested time frame.
Use the printable checklist to track your progress through the course:
• C249 Intermediate Accounting II Course Checklist
Week 1
• Preparing for Success
• Stockholders' Equity
Week 2
• Dilutive Securities
• Basic Debt and Equity Securities
Week 3
• Derivatives
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• Revenue Recognition
Week 4
• Income Taxes
• Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits
Week 5

• Leases
Week 6
• Accounting Changes and Error Analysis
• Cash Flow Statements
Week 7

• Financial Statements
• Financial Reporting
• Final Steps
Note: This pacing guide does not replace the course. Please continue to refer to the course for
a comprehensive list of the resources and activities.

Intermediate Accounting
This course discusses advanced accounting topics, including stockholder equity, dilutive
securities, basic debt and equity securities, derivatives, revenue recognition, and income taxes.
Additional topics of discussion include pension and post-retirement benefits, leases, accounting
for changes and error analysis, cash flow statements, financial statements, and financial
reporting.

Stockholders' Equity
Stockholders' equity is the shareholders' residual interest in a corporation's assets. Items
discussed in this topic are the essential features of a corporation, touching on such aspects as
the key components of stockholders' equity of a corporation, how to account for the increase in
corporate capital from the issuance of shares of stock, the decrease of corporate capital through
the purchase of treasury stock, and the various types of corporate earnings distributions,
including cash, stock, and property dividends and stock splits.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency

3022.1.1: Stockholder

Equity

The graduate accounts for stockholders' equity.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Describe the characteristics of the corporate form of an organization.
Identify the key components of stockholders' equity.
Explain the accounting for the issuance of stock.
Explain why a company would reacquire stock.
Explain the accounting for the acquisition and reissuance of treasury stock.
Identify the key differences between preferred stock and common stock.
Explain the accounting for various types of dividend distributions.
Explain how to present stockholders' equity .
Identify key differences in accounting for stockholders' equity under GAAP and IFRS.
Chapter 15: "Stockholders' Equity"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Corporate form of organization
Corporate capital
Issuance of stock
Reacquisition of shares
Preferred stock
Types of dividends
Financial statement
Presentation of stockholders' equity

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 822-850 and 874-877 in Chapter 15: "Stockholders' Equity"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Stockholders' Equity Under GAAp and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 15 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 15 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 15 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 15 ORION

Dilutive Securities
Dilutive securities are a security type which, upon exercise, may reduce reported earnings per
share. Dilutive securities include convertible securities as well as options, warrants, and other
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securities. In this topic, we discuss the accounting for these dilutive securities and stock-based
compensation plans. Additionally, the impact of dilutive securities and stock-based
compensation plans on earnings per share is also discussed in this topic.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.1: Stockholder Equity
The graduate accounts for stockholders' equity.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Explain the accounting for the issuance, conversion, and retirement of convertible
securities.
• Explain the accounting for stock warrants and accounting for stock warrants issued with
other securities .
• Account for stock compensation plans under generally accepted accounting principles.
• Identify key issues that led to controversy involving stock compensation plans.
• Compute earnings per share.
• Explain the accounting for stock-appreciation rights plans.
• Identify key differences in the accounting for dilutive securities and earnings per share
under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 16: "Dilutive Securities and Earnings per Share"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dilutive securities
Accounting for issuance, conversion, and retirement of convertible securities
Convertible preferred stocks
Stock warrants
Earnings per share
Stock-appreciation rights
IFRS insights

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 882-921 and 941-946 in Chapter 16: "Dilutive Securities and Earnings per
Share"
Review the following infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAPP and
IFRS:
• "Dilutive Securities and Earnings per Share Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following "WileyPLUS" activities:

1_
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• Chapter 16 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Author Lecture, and the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 16 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 16 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 16 ORION

Basic Debt and Equity Securities
Companies often invest in debt and equity securities issued by other companies. Accounting for
such investments is based on the type of financial instrument held and their intent with respect
to the investment. The various approaches used to account for these investments in debt and
equity securities are discussed in this topic.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.2: Investments
The graduate accounts for investments.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Account for each of the three categories of debt securities .
• Account for each category of equity securities.
• Identify the key differences between the equity method and the fair value method of
accounting for equity securities.
• Explain how to account for impairments of debt and equity investments using the fair
value and equity methods .
• Account for transfer of investment securities between categories.
Read: Chapter 17: "Investments"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Investment in debt securities
Time value of money
Equity securities
Fair value option
Reclassification and transfers of investment securities
IFRS insights

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 313-315 in Chapter 6: "Accounting and the Time Value of Money"
• Pages 952-976 in Chapter 17: "Inyestments"
Apply

---

------------------------,
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Complete the following "WileyPLUS" activities:
• Chapter 17A (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 17A (b) Exercises
• Chapter 17A (c) Self-Assessment Quiz

Derivatives
Derivatives, or derivative financial instruments, are useful for managing risks faced by
companies. These financial instruments are often created to hedge against risks created by
other financial instruments or transactions. The accounting issues relating to derivative financial
instruments, including financial forwards or financial futures, options and swaps are discussed in
this topic.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.2: Investments
The graduate accounts for investments.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe the uses of different types of derivatives.
Account for derivative financial instruments.
Describe special reporting issues related to derivative financial instruments.
Explain the accounting for variable-interest entities.
Identify examples of fair value disclosures.
Identify the key differences in accounting procedures related to derivatives under GAAP
and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 17: "Investments"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•

Defining derivatives
Reporting issues related to derivatives
Accounting for variable-interest entities
Fair value disclosures

Read the following in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 977-1005 and 1026-1036 in Chapter 17: "Inyestments"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
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• "Derivatives Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 178 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 178 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 178 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 17 ORION

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is the inflow of net assets that occurs when a business provides goods or services to
its customers through ongoing core operations. Proper recognition of revenue is important to
ensure that the income statement reflects the actual performance of a company for the period.
The accounting issues related to revenue recognition, including revenue recognition at the
point-of-sale, revenue recognition before delivery, and revenue recognition after delivery, are
discussed in this topic.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.3: Revenue Recognition
The graduate accounts for revenue.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Explain the revenue recognition principle.
Explain accounting issues for revenue recognition at the point-of-sale .
Account for revenues from long-term contracts.
Explain how to account for losses on long-term contracts .
Account for revenues after the point-of-sale using various methods.
Describe revenue recognition for franchises.
Identify the key differences in the accounting procedures related to revenue recognition
under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 18: "Revenue Recognition"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•

Revenue recognition principle
Revenue recognition at the point-of-sale
Revenue recognition before delivery
Long-term contract losses
Revenue recognition after delivery
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• Revenue recognition for franchises
• IFRS insights
Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1040-1085 and 1109-1113 in Chapter 18: "Reyenue Recognition"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Reyenue Recognition Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 18 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills videos, the Demonstration Problem, and Solution
Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 18 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 18 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 18 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 18 ORION
o Important note: The ORION learning objectives for Chapter 18 are slightly
different from the learning objectives in your text. Complete the practice
questions for the following objectives:
o Understand revenue recognition issues.
o Identify the five steps in the revenue recognition process.
o Identify the contract with customers.
o Recognize revenue when the company satisfies its performance obligations.
o Identify other revenue recognition issues.
o Describe presentation and disclosure regarding revenue.

Income Taxes
Financial accounting and tax accounting have different objectives. The differences between
financial accounting based on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and tax
accounting based on the tax code result in deferred tax assets and liabilities. This topic
discusses the basic guidelines that companies must follow in the financial reporting of income
taxes.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.4: Income Taxes
The graduate accounts for income taxes.
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This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Differentiate between pretax financial income and taxable income.
Explain how a temporary difference results in future deductible amounts .
Account for deferred tax asset and valuation allowances.
Identify examples of various temporary and permanent differences.
Explain the effect of various tax rates and tax rate changes on deferred income taxes.
Account for a loss carryback and a loss carryforward.
Describe the presentation of income tax expense and deferred taxes in the financial
statements .
Describe the basic principles of the asset-liability method .
Account for interperiod tax allocation .
Identify key differences in the accounting for income taxes under GMP and IFRS.
Chapter 19: "Accounting for Income Taxes"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Accounting for income taxes
Future taxable amounts
Deferred taxes
Future deductible amounts
Special differences
Tax rate consideration
Net operating losses

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1117-1156 and 1175-1179 in Chapter 19: "Accounting for Income Taxes"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences in GMP and IFRS:
• "Income Taxes Under GMP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 19 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 19 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 19 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 19 ORION

Pension and Post-Retirement

Benefits
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Employee benefits payable after retirement, including pension and other post-retirement
benefits, are an important part of an employee's compensation. The cost of these benefits is a
significant liability to the employer. This topic discusses the accounting and reporting of pension
and post-retirement benefits for the employer as the sponsor of a pension plan.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.5: Pension and Post-Retirement
The graduate accounts for pensions and post-retirement benefits.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe the accounting for the employer's pension plan and the pension fund.
Differentiate types of pension plans and their characteristics .
Explain alternative measures for valuing the pension obligation.
Explain the components of pension expense.
Account for an employer's pension plan.
Describe the requirements for reporting pension plans in financial statements.
Differentiate between the accounting for pensions and post-retirement healthcare
benefits .
• Identify the key differences in the accounting for pensions under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 20: "Accounting for Pensions and Postretirement Benefits"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Nature of pension plan
Contribution plan
Benefit plan
Accounting for pensions
Pension worksheet
Reporting pension plans
IFRS focus

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1184-1229 and 1250-1263 in Chapter 20: "Accounting for pensions and
postretirement Benefits"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "pensions Under GAAp and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 20 (a) Readings and Resources
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Review Study Guide
o View Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
Chapter 20 (b) Exercises
Chapter 20 (c) Practice Questions
Chapter 20 (d) Self-Assessment Quiz
Chapter 20 ORION
o

•
•
•
•

Leases
A lease is a contractual arrangement between a lessor (owner of the leased asset) and a lessee
(user of the leased asset) for the right to use an asset or assets over a specific period of time. A
lease can be a simple rental agreement or a purchase/sale accompanied by debt financing.
This topic discusses the accounting issues for lessors and lessees.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.6: Leases
The graduate accounts for leases.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
. •
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Describe the nature, economic substance, and advantages of lease transactions .
Account for lease transactions by the lessee .
Account for operating leases by lessee and lessor.
Identify the classifications of leases for the lessor.
Account for direct-financing and sales-type leases for the lessor.
Identify special features of lease arrangements that cause unique accounting problems .
Explain the effect of residual values on lease accounting.
Describe the disclosure requirements for leases.
Explain the accounting for the lessee's sale-leaseback transactions.
Identify the key differences in the accounting for leases under GAAP and IFRS.
Chapter 21: "Accounting for Leases"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Leasing environment
Accounting by the lessee
Comparison of capital leases and operating leases
Accounting by the lessor
Disclosing lease data
Sale-leaseback transactions
IFRS insights

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:

1
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• Pages 1269-1313 and 1331-1339 in Chapter 21: "Accounting for Leases"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Leases Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 21 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Author Lecture and the Applied Skills videos, the Demonstration
Problem, and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 21 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 21 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 21 ORION

Accounting Changes and Error Analysis
In a dynamic business environment, changes in accounting are sometimes necessary so that
accounting information can be more useful. There are four types of changes in accounting with
which we are concerned in this topic: changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting
estimates, changes in reporting entity, and corrections of errors in financial statements. This
topic discusses the reporting of these changes in accounting in a reporting framework that helps
preserve the comparability and consistency of financial reports.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.7: Accounting Changes and Error Analysis
The graduate accounts for accounting changes and performs error analysis.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Identify types of accounting changes.
Explain the accounting for changes in accounting principles.
Account for changes in estimates.
Explain accounting for changes in a reporting entity .
Account for correction of errors in a financial statement.
Explain economic motives for changing accounting methods.
Identify the key differences in the procedures for accounting changes and error analysis
under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 22: "Accounting Changes and Error Analysis"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:

_
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Accounting changes
Changes in accounting principle
Changes in accounting estimates
Reporting entity
Account errors
IFRS insight

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1343-1376 and 1404-1406 in Chapter 22: "Accounting Changes and Error
Analysis"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Changes and Error Analysis Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 22 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 22 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 22 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 22 ORION

Cash Flow Statements
The statement of cash flows provides information about a company's cash receipts, cash
payments, and net change in cash resulting from operating, investing, and financing activities in
a period. Creditors and investors may base important decisions from findings based on
information regarding the cash inflows and outflows of a business. This topic covers the major
classifications of cash flows, the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the differences
between the direct method and the indirect method of preparing the statement of cash flows, as
well as the preparation of the statement of cash flows using the indirect method.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.8: Cash Flow Statements
The graduate prepares a statement of cash flows.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Explain the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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• Describe the major classifications of cash flows.
• Differentiate between net income and net cash flow from operating activities.
• Identify the differences between the direct and indirect methods of calculating net cash
flow from operating activities.
• Identify sources of information for a statement of cash flows.
• Describe special problems in preparing a statement of cash flows .
• Prepare a statement of cash flows using the indirect method.
• Identify the key differences in the statement of cash flows under GAAP and IFRS.
Read: Chapter 23: "Statement of Cash Flows"
As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Statement of cash flows
Classifications of cash flows
Net income vs. net cash flow
Direct and indirect methods of calculating net cash
Sources of information
Special problems in statement preparation
Preparation of financial statement (indirect method)
IFRS insight

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1411-1419, 1426-1443, 1451, and 1480-1483 in Chapter 23: "Statement of
Cash Flows"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Statement of Cash Flows Under GAAP and IFRS"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 23 (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Applied Skills and Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 23 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 23 (c) Self-Assessment Quiz
• Chapter 23 ORION

Financial Statements
Analyzing the relationships between financial statement items and identifying the trends in these
relationships can provide important information for investors and creditors, as well as business
managers. This topic covers the basic techniques in financial statement analysis including

C249 • Intermediate Accounting II
Course of Study

analyzing financial statement data using various financial ratios, comparative data from two or
more different dates, and percentage analysis.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency

3022.1.9:

Financial Statement Analysis

The graduate analyzes financial statements.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•

Describe the purpose of financial statement analysis.
Identify sources of financial information for financial statement analysis .
Calculate (perform) a ratio analysis .
Describe key differences in techniques used to analyze financial statements.

Read: Chapter 24: "Full Disclosure

in Financial Reporting"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•

Financial statement analysis
Ratio analysis
Comparative analysis
Percentage (common-size) analysis

Read the following section in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1522-1528 in Chapter 24: "Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting"
Read the following document to learn more about the sources of data for financial statement
analysis .
• "Sources of Data for Financial Statement Analysis"
Apply

Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 24A (a) Readings and Resources
o Review Study Guide
o View the Solution Walkthrough videos
o Review PowerPoint Review
o The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 24A (b) Exercises
• Chapter 24A (c) Self-Assessment Quiz

Financial Reporting
The full disclosure principle requires companies to report any financial facts significant enough
to influence the judgment of an informed reader. This topic examines the use of disclosure
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notes to explain and supplement the information presented in the main body of financial
statements, GAAP requirements to disclose related-party transactions and significant financial
events occurring after the financial statements date, the reporting of business segments, and
the reporting of interim financial information. Additionally, major disclosures in the auditor's
report, management's discussion and analysis of financial results, and issues relating to
fraudulent financial reporting are also discussed in this topic.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3022.1.10: Financial Reporting
The graduate explains full disclosure financial reporting.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Explain the full disclosure principle and problems with implementation .
Identify information to be disclosed in the notes to financial statements.
Explain the disclosure requirements for major business segments .
Explain accounting problems associated with interim reporting.
Identify the different types of auditors' opinions in the auditor's report .
Describe management's responsibilities for financial reporting .
Describe the accounting profession's response to fraudulent financial reporting.
Identify the key differences in the disclosure requirements under GAAP and IFRS.
Chapter 24: "Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting"

As you complete the assigned material below, pay attention to the following key points:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Full disclosures
Notes to the financial statements
Disclosure issues
Interim reporting
Auditor's and management's reports
Fraudulent financial reporting
IFRS insights

Read the following sections in Intermediate Accounting:
• Pages 1486-1520 and 1548 in Chapter 24: "Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting"
Review the infographic and note the key similarities and differences of GAAP and IFRS:
• "Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting"
Apply
Complete the following WileyPLUS activities:
• Chapter 248 (a) Readings and Resources

C249 -Intermediate Accounting II
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Review Study Guide
a View the Solution Walkthrough videos
a Review PowerPoint Review
a The e-text has been included in this section for easy access.
• Chapter 248 (b) Exercises
• Chapter 248 (c) Practice Questions
• Chapter 24 ORION
o

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! You are now prepared to complete
the associated assessment. If you have not already been directed to complete it, schedule and
complete the assessment now.
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Workshop Topic: Water Rights in Nevada
Instructor: Daniel Randles
Continuing Education Credit: 4 hours
Daniel Randles is a Water Resources Specialist who works with the Nevada Division of Water
Resources. Dan has been the lead staff member who researches, analyzes and prepares the
annual basin assessments for the Division. Dan has been working on these basin assessments
for over 6 years and is the main point of contact for the Division for the State's Assessors and
Treasurers. His extensive experience in titles and water rights allows him to be the lead in this
area for the Division. He has been with the Division for over 12 years and all of his time with
the Division has been devoted to updating water rights title, managing water rights basins and
conducting basin assessments.
After earning his degree in Engineering Drafting design from Truckee Meadows Community
College, Dan spent over 6 years working on structural steel joist and girder roof design for
commercial buildings before coming to Division of Water Resources. In Dan's free time, he
enjoys traveling, hiking, gardening and spending time with family and friends.

Workshop

Syllabus

Section 1: (2 hours)
Overview of water rights and water law
- History of Water Law in Nevada, Water rights 101
- Water Rights Ownership
- Online resources available at water.nv.gov
Section 2: (1 hour)
Cover issues facing the State Engineers office
- Over Appropriated Basins
- Ongoing areas of focus for the Division of Water Resources

Section 3: (1 hour)
Assessments on water rights, including legislation results
- Why some basins are charged and some are not
- Rate of Assessment
- AB 233 Nevada Legislature changes to NRS534.040 (pending in senate)
-Questions
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Appraising the Cannabis Industry:
Challenges at the End of America's Second Prohibition
Workshop: 3 hours
Instructor:

Colette Black, Senior Property Appraiser, Clark County

Course Sponsor: Nevada Assessor's Association

SECTION1 (approximately

1 hour)

HISTORY
Up until the early 20th century in America, cannabis was a common ingredient in
many medicinal products and without controversy.
surge in immigration,

Converging dynamics of a

xenophobia and corporate interests created a maelstrom of

attitudes which led to the Marijuana Tax Act of 1937. Later, personal and political
agendas criminalized the possession of marijuana to a much more consequential
degree negatively impacting law enforcement, the courts and prison systems. Our
country is still dealing with the effects of this but a new page is slowly being
turned in this saga.
PSYCHOLOGY
The concept of "forbidden

fruit" is vastly proven. The idea of prohibiting

substances like alcohol and cannabis has largely had the opposite effect on the
population regarding its use and demand. The prohibition

of alcohol caused a

significant increase in deaths related to alcohol due to the type of products the
public was drinking at that time. During prohibition,

people switched from

drinking mainly beer and wine prior to Prohibition to hard liquor products which
were distilled and more easily produced in small batches. Those products many
times had much higher alcohol content and, in some cases, also contained
methanol, a poison which caused many deaths. Although, there is not a direct
correlation of this to cannabis use, it is reasonable to assume that cannabis
products legally available would be.better regulated and of more consistent
quality. Already, starting with the medical marijuana movement, the strains and

uses for cannabis have been better researched and identified so that individuals
can obtain their desired effect from the products.

POLITICALEVOLUTION OF LEGALIZATION- STATEEFFORTS
-DECRIMINALIZATIONIt may not be well known but efforts to decriminalize cannabis began back in
1973 continuing through 1982. During that time, fifteen states changed their laws
regarding cannabis in various ways from making possession a misdemeanor with a
relatively small fine to allowing doctors to prescribe it for glaucoma or other
medical purposes.
-MEDICAL MARIJUANAIn 1996, California became the first state to legalize medical marijuana.

(Arizona

passed a similar bill that year, but it was rendered ineffective due to a technicality
in verbiage.) Over the following 16 years, until 2012, 18 other states (including
Arizona) -passed various measures for the legalization or at least, the
decriminalization

of medical marijuana. From 2012 until currently, approximately

28 more states have passed some version of the decriminalization

or legalization

of medical marijuana.
-RECREATIONALMARIJUANAIn 2012, efforts to legalize marijuana for recreational use beginning with Colorado
and Washington state. From then until now, 17 more states have passed various
versions of decriminalization

laws for recreational use of marijuana.

FEDERALLEGISLATIONAND ITS EFFECTS
In 2017, Senator Cory Booker introduced legislation to legalize marijuana
federally, but it did not make it to a vote. In February of this year, he and several
other senators introduced another bill but since then, a bi-partisan bill, the
STATESbill, has come to the forefront
strength.

and seems to be gaining popularity and

It is of common opinion that this bill will pass through Congress at some

time this year.

SECTION2 (approximately

1 hour)

NATIONAL ATIITUDES AND PUBLIC OPINION
Attitudes and public opinions for the legalization of marijuana has increased
steadily over the past SO years with plenty of statistical data to support this.
Much of the change is based on the aging of the national population, the
popularity of the usage of marijuana and the debunking of misinformation
previously disseminated regarding its use.
NEVADA STATELEGISLATION
Nevada originally prohibited

all forms of marijuana in 1923. This ban was in effect

until 1998 when the first of two votes (the second taking place in 2000) took place
to amend the previous law making the possession and use of medical marijuana
legal. Recreational marijuana was legalized in Nevada in 2016.
STATEREQUIREMENTSTO ENTERTHE INDUSTRY
In the last half of 2017, there was an "Early Start" program for medical marijuana
retailers in good standing to have the first opportunity

to apply for the

recreational marijuana retailers' licenses. After that, there is another 18-month
period (expiring June 30, 2018) for only the medical marijuana retailers to apply
for the recreational retailer licenses. There is an established number of facilities
per jurisdiction

which is set by the State. A $5,000 application fee is required for a

retail, cultivation or lab facility license. License fees themselves range from
$10,000 to $30,000 depending on the type.
ASPECTSAND OPPORTUNITIES IN THE NEVADA CANNABIS INDUSTRY
There are several ways to operate a business in the Cannabis industry in our state.
There are the cultivation

(or "grow") facilities. Then, there are labs which develop

tinctures, oils and many of the medical use type of products. There are kitchens
which create gummies and other edibles. And, of course, there are the
dispensaries which seem to be growing in number by the day. Recently, Clark
County has just approved the business model of "lounges" which will function
basically as a marijuana bar. The details of these are not fully developed.

SECTION3 (Approximately

1 hour)

APPRAISALCHALLENGES
Due to the diversity of the industry and the wide scope of the establishments, the
necessity for site checks has become obvious when dealing with the cultivation
facilities especially. They can be very small, basic facilities using lighting and
irrigation from a big box store all the way to a completely computerized

lighting,

water, feeding and monitoring system with millions of dollars invested with every
possible variation in between.

Site checks are not always easy to obtain.

First,

the facilities have no signage and usually have high walls and gates. There are
always security systems and many times security guards as well. Ownership is
usually a series of LLC's and / or corporate entities which do not allow for easy
identification

of a contact.

Lastly, not all owners are extremely friendly regarding

the Assessor's office making an inspection so avoidance is common.
Labs are possibly even more difficult to identify and equally diverse in the type
and amount of equipment which is in use. The security is usually also very tight
but as their size can be a fraction of a grow facility, they can be tucked away in
very unobtrusive locations.

Kitchens are similar in this aspect but usually have

very minimal equipment in comparison to the labs.
Dispensaries, on the other hand, due to their public nature and competitive
marketing are very easy to locate and identify.

Site checks are also very easy to

obtain because of the public nature of the facilities. There is usually a manager on
duty to speak with and it seems that they are not surprised nor averse to
providing a walk through.

Ironically, the dispensaries are pretty standard in most

cases and where the site checks are least necessary.
Several facilities exist where more than one business aspect of the industry exists
under one roof: cultivations,

labs, kitchens, retail and now, the new lounges, as

well. In this ever expanding and evolving industry, keeping up with the growth
and changes is proving to be a very challenging task.
Compliance in filing Personal Property declarations for the marijuana industry
seems to be no worse or better than the average for all businesses in Clark
County at approximately

50%. There also seems to be a great deal of ignorance

(or possibly, aversion) to understanding what assets would be considered

reported as Personal Property. Generally, with consideration to the locations of
all of the facilities, the majority of furniture, fixtures and equipment would be
considered Personal rather than Real Property. This is where the knowledge from
site checks is very helpful especially, in the case of non-compliance.

Conclusions

of estimates of value are made from the knowledge of those site checks.
Another valuation consideration that is being discussed at the State, local and
Legislative levels is the determination

of marijuana with regard to the Agricultural

Statutes and their applicability to a marijuana facility as an agricultural land
assessment.
CONCLUSION
Changes in American attitudes and opinions along with the systematic dispelling
of misinformation

have lent to a cultural change in our country. This has had a

significant effect on the complexion of our state being a vacation destination and
"entertainment

capital". These changes have occurred in an accelerated

atmosphere in the past decade and have caused adjustments to many
jurisdictional

institutions

and methods. The downside is the complexity of the

industry with all of the challenges for identification,

listing and valuation. The

upside is the promise of the stream of revenue from the industry for many local
and state departments.
legalization of marijuana may also have an incidental benefit with the possible
demise, or at least diminished, black market culture and economy attributed
marijuana.

As a result, law enforcement

their role in investigation, enforcement,

to

and the court systems as well reducing
processing and prosecution for crimes

previously related to the industry.
Some possible future challenges are apparent already with regards to legalization.
Questions regarding public smoking, D.U.1. standards and determination

of

changes in standards affecting labor still need to be resolved.
QUIZ
A simple, short multiple choice quiz will be administered. (Consideration is being
given to a short one after each section.)
EXERCISE - TBD
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Basic Excel for
Assessors and

Appraisers
Presented and Created by
David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, Certified
Excel Expert, MAl, and CAE

This course highlights how Excel can assist assessors
and appraisers with their everyday tasks. Additionally,
this course highlights Excel's powerful analytical tools
which are available to help solve many of the challenges
facing assessors and appraisers. Excel for Assessors
and Appraisers covers the following topics:
G~UsingExcel to extract market-based
depreciation estimates
GilCreating tables
GilCreating and using PivotTables and PivotChart
reports
G~Creating dropdown lists
GilCustomizing the quick access toolbar
GilUsingthe "VLOOKUP" function to create
appraisal comp data
GilUsingthe "sumif" and "countif' formulas

,

a~Using the "if' formula to identify properties
.
reVIew
.
a!lHow to create and edit formulas
a~Inserting charts and pictures
a~Copying and pasting with cell references
I3BFormatting text, numbers, time, and dates
GilApplying themes
I3BCustomizing the quick access toolbar
G!lChanging Excel's default settings
G!lOther time-saving tips and techniques
Join us for this exciting class!
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iii Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
o Appraisal and Assessment Standards of the
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Nevada Department of Taxation
&I Residential Appraisal
Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
6lI Commercial /Industrial Appraisal
Techniques
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Principles of Accounting
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Intermediate Excel
Presented and Created by
David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, Certified
Excel Expert, MAl, and CAE

Do more with Excel! This course builds on the
concepts highlighted in the Basic Excel class and
introduces many of Excel's advanced capabilities.
Intermediate Excel covers the following topics:
Creating and editing charts
III Creating conditional formatting
III Creating Pivot Tables (they are awesome!)
III, Importing data into Excel
III Data cleaning tips and tricks
III Formatting text, numbers, time, and dates
III Using the Developer Tab
III Creating Macros
III Editing pictures
III Creating dropdown lists
II Using the Formula Auditing function
III Using Excel's What-if Analysis
III Using and creating customized themes
III Creating named references
£III Other time-saving tips and techniq ues
III
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i1IAAO Standards
Nevada Department of Taxation
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[J Geographic Information Systems, Mapping
iii Commercial/Industrial
Appraisal
Techniques
mI Unitary/Centrally Assessed Property Appraisal
Cl Laws Relating to Real Estate, Water, or Mining
[J Principles of Accounting
[J Professional Ethics
[J Principles of Finance
[J Administrative Procedures
[J Application of Nevada Statutes or Regulations
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51 Mass Appraisal Concepts and Applications
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[J Professional Ethics
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Data Modeling for
Appraisers and Assessors!
Presented and Created by
David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, Certified
Excel Expert, MAl, and CAE

Data Modeling for Appraisers and Assessors is a
hands-on class that introduces Excel's data
modeling capabilities. Data models are a powerful
new tool in Excel for integrating data from various
sources,
creating
relationships,
discovering
actionable insights, and valuing properties. All the
guided hands-on
exercises ~re specifically
designed for appraisers and assessors. At the end
of the class, you will be able to
Importing data into Excel
a~ Apply techniques to clean the data
ail Create relationships between data sets
a!l Develop a valuation model
ail Use Excel's Solver to calibrate valuation
models
a!l Analyze the results of the valuation model
a~ Creating Pivot Tables (they are awesome!)
ail

G2 Use Excel's statistical functions to identify
outliers
G2 Creating and editing charts
G2 Creating conditional formatting
G~ Using Slicers in reports
Gil Refreshing Data
G~ Using the Formula Auditing function
Gil Using Excel's What-if Analysis
Gil Using and creating customized themes
G2 Creating named references
Gil Other time-saving tips and techniques
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Join us for this exciting class!

Developing as a Professional
This course teaches you how to present yourself well in business and social situations. You will learn what
qualities define a professional and what you can do to gain recognition as a true professional in your
workplace. Advice on everything from developing good work habits to minding your cubicle manners, as
well as networking and scheduling your time effectively. Finally you will find new ways to cope with
workplace challenges such as defusing conflict and managing pressure and stress.
Instructor:
Date:
Location:
Hours:

ExecuTrain
Monday, January 7
Conference room 5CR4 (fifth floor) in the Tax Commission office

8

Excel 2016 Classes

Excel for Appraisers & Assessors
This hands-on, one-day workshop highlights how Excel can assist assessors and appraisers with
their everyday ordinary tasks. Additionally, this course highlights Excel's powerful analytical
tools which are available to help solve many of the challenges facing assessors. Topics include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Merging data from two separate cells
Importing data into Excel
Using Excel to extract market-based depreciation estimates
Creating tables
Creating and using PivotTables and PivotChart reports
Creating dropdown lists
Customizing the quick access toolbar
Using the "VLOOKUP" function to create appraisal comp data
Using the "sum if' and "countif' formulas
Using the "if' formula to identify properties to review
Other time-saving tips and techniques

Recommended:

Experience using software on the Windows operating system

Instructor:
Date:
Location:
Hours:
Note:

David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, MAl, CAE
Tuesday, January 8
Conference room 5CR3 (fifth floor) in the Tax Commission office
8
Class size is limited to 15 students
12 of 21

EPB00669_11-3Q-2018

Advanced

Excel for Appraisers

& Assessors

This hands-on, day-and-a-half workshop builds on the concepts highlighted in Basic Excel for
Assessors, and introduces many of Excel's advanced capabilities which can help assessors solve
many assessing challenges. Topics include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Creating and editing charts
Creating conditional formatting
Importing data into Excel
Data cleaning tips and tricks
Calculating discounted cash flows
Customizing PivotTables and PivotChart reports
Formatting dates, time, and text
Using Excel's What-if analysis
Using Excel's statistical functions to identify outliers
Other time-saving tips and techniques

Recommended:

Basic Excel class and/or experience using Excel

Instructor:
Date:
Location:
Hours:
Note:

David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, MAl, CAE
Thursday, January 10- Friday, January II (a.m.)
Conference room 5CR3 (fifth floor) in the Tax Commission office
12
This workshop is not for beginners - Class size is limited to 15 students

Excel-

Data Modeling for Appraisers

& Assessors

This hands-on, one-day workshop introduces Excel's data modeling capabilities. Data models
are a powerful new tool in Excel for integrating data from various sources, creating
relationships, discovering actionable insights, and valuing properties. All the guided hands-on
exercises are specifically designed for assessors and appraisers. Topics include:
•
•

Import data into Excel from different sources
Apply techniques to clean the data

•

Create relationships between data sets

•

Develop a valuation model

•

Use Excel's Solver to calibrate valuation models

•

Analyze the results of the valuation model

•

Customize PivotTables and PivotCharts with custom measures

•

Use Excel's statistical functions to identify outliers

•

Other time-saving Excel tips and tricks

Recommended:

Basic Excel class or experience using Excel

Instructor:
Date:
Location:
Hours:
Note:

David Cornell, Certified Microsoft Trainer, MAl, CAE
Wednesday, January 9
Conference room 5CR3 (fifth floor) in the Tax Commission office
8
This workshop is not for beginners - Class size is limited to 15 students
13 of 21

EPB00669_11-3G-2018

Cornell Consultants,

CORNEll

LLC

100 White Pine Lane Manchester,

Instructor
•

Requirements

NH 03102

I 603-203-5517 I David@cornellconsultants.com

CONSUlt\HTS

for Cornell Consultants, LLC instructors:

A bachelor's degree or higher in any field and five (5) years of experience directly related to the
subject matter to be taught.

•

Possess a Certified General Residential or a Certified General appraisal license

•

Possess a designation for either the Apprasiallnstitute

or the International Association of

Assessing Officers
•

Five (5) years of real estate appraisal experience directly related to the subject matter to be
taught.

Conduct:
•

During teaching assignments, instructors must conduct themselves with integrity.

•

They should maintain an appropriate professional relationship with all students.

•

Instructors should promote a positive learning environment for all students.

APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
June 17, 2019
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Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1 005_50,

Precalculus I

Sc
MATH 126 Precalculus I IAV
Spring Semester 2019

3 credits

M, W 5:30 pm - 6:45 pm
Section 1011 Battle Mountain Interactive Video 2
Section 1005 Elko GTA 128
Section 1009 Pahrump GBC 119
Section 1014 Winnemucca GBC 123

GBC

Syllabus

( Instructor Information
Instructor:

- - .. -

)

Lynne Owens

Office:

McMullen Hall, Room 136

Phone:

(775)753-2152

E-mail:

Use email within WebCampus under Inbox on the left of your WebCampus page.

https:/Igbcnv.instructure. com/courses/1133650/assig

nmenls/syllabus

1/30

5/15/2019

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1 005_S0,

Precalculus I

I will respond to email within 24 hours M - F, 8 am - 5 pm. I am unavailable evenings, weekends, and holidays. Email is my much
preferred method of contact.
Office Hours: M,W 3:00 pm - 5:30 pm
Class Time:

MW 5:30 pm - 6:45 pm

PLEASE NOTE: All times in this course are Pacific Time.

J

( Catalog Description

A third course in algebra that stresses polynomial, quadratic, rational, exponential, and logarithmic functions, including their graphs and
applications; complex numbers; systems of equations; and basic operations with matrices and determinants, including Cramer's rule.
This course also contains a review of topics from intermediate algebra, including but not limited to polynomials and factoring, rational
expressions, rational exponents, and radical expressions. MATH 96 with a grade of 'C-' or higher or earned a satisfactory score on the
placement test, ACT, or SAT.

J

( Textbook & Materials
Required Course Materials:

MyMathLab Homework Management System access code (comes with a free eText): ISBN 03211999X (A hard copy of the text is not
required; however, if you want to purchase the text, we will be using Precalculus, 6th ed., by Lial, Hornsby, Schneider, and Daniels)
Reliable computer and internet access
Scientific calculator (Use of graphing calculators is not allowed.)

(Enrolling

in MyMathLab

htlps :lIg bcnv. instructure. comlcourses/1133650lassig

nments/syllabus

- ------

.-

)

2130

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0,

5/15/2019

Precalculus I

As mentioned under "Textbook & Material", you will need access to MyMathLab. All of our homework and exams live there. Our
course in MyMathLab is linked to Canvas, so you will NOT need a course ID. You will be able to access the course through Canvas.
Please follow the steps below to enroll in MyMathLab.
• Login to Webcampus.
• Click on Mylab and Mastering on the left in WebCampus .
• Under student's links click on "MyMathLab with Pearson eText Home". This takes you to the course homepage. You can now login
if you have previously had an account with MyMathLab or you can create a new account if this is your first time.
• Enter the access code you purchased from the bookstore, or you can purchase an access code online using a crediUdebit card.
Pearson offers a temporary access code without payment for the first 14 days. Click on "Get Temporary Access Code" on the
registration

page where you are being asked to enter or purchase an access code. Please take advantage of this if you are

awaiting financial aid. There should be no financial reasons for missing the first two week's of assignments.

( Method of Instruction
The overarching goal of this course is to provide you with a solid foundation for the study of calculus.

.. )
We spend a good portion of the

course studying basic functions. We will also touch on some topics from linear algebra and analytic geometry. We will be covering
chapters 1 - 4 and 9 in our text (Precalculus by Lial, 6th ed). In order to cover the material, we will be completing about 2- 4 sections a
week. There will be weekly assignments that include lectures, and exams following the completion of a chapter. All homework and
exams are posted the first day of class so you may work ahead if you choose.

( Computer Requirements

)

It is always recommended to use the most up-to-date versions and better connections. WebCampus will still run with the minimum
specifications, but you may experience slower loading times. Learn more about browser reguirements.
(http-s://guides.instructu

re.com/m/67952/11720329-which-browsers-does-canvas-sup-P-Qrt1

Setting up Profile & Notifications

htlps:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/syllabus

3/30

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1 005_S0, Precalculus I

5/15/2019

One of the most important things you can do to improve communication in the course between you, the instructor and other students in
the course is setting up your Profile and Notifications. Do this by clicking on Account: Settings and Navigation.

( Course Objectives

)

Learning Outcomes and Measures
Measures

Learning Outcomes

General Education Objective

At the end of the course, students should be able to:

Solve a variety of equations including p~lynomial,
exponential and logarithmic.

Ch. 3 Exam, Ch. 4 Exam, Final
Exam

Demonstrate knowledge
of mathematical notation
and concepts

Operate on functions, including basic mathematical
operations, composition and inversion.

Use the properties of logarithms.

Ch. 2 Exam, Ch. 4 Exam, Final
Exam

Ch. 4 Exam, Final Exam

Analyze functions by finding roots, turning points, and

hltps:/Ig bcnv. instructu re.com/courses/1133650/assig

asymptotes.

Ch. 3 Exam, Graphing Exam

Manipulate complex numbers and understand their

Ch. 1 Exam, Final Exam

nments/syllabus

4/30

5/15/2019

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0.

Precalculus I

relationship to the solutions of polynomial and rational
equations.

Solve nonlinear inequalities.

Ch. 1 Exam, Final Exam

Find the partial fraction decomposition of a rational

Final Exam

expression.

Solve systems of equations using various methods
including elimination, matrices, and determinants.

Graph a variety of functions including logarithmic,
Apply mathematical concepts

polynomial, rational, and exponential functions.

Final Exam

Ch. 2 Exam, Ch. 3 Exam, Ch. 4
Exam, Graphing Exam

and operations in proper
written or graphical format

Identify, obtain, and graph the equations of circles and
parabolas.

Ch. 2 Exam, Final Exam

Demonstrate the appropriate mathematical format and

All Exams

notation in solving problems.

hltps:/Igbcnv.instructure.comlcourses/1133650/assignments/syllabus

5/30

5/15/2019
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Precalculus I

Apply relevant mathematical
skills in solving real-world

Use mathematical functions to model real-world

Ch. 3 Exam, Ch. 4 Exam, Final

phenomena.

Exam

problems

(Participation

=)

& Attendance

After the first week of class, I do not take roll; however, I strongly encourage you to attend class. If you come to class, my expectations
are that you are working on problems presented in class and refraining from texting or engaging in other distracting activities. Full
participation in the course also means you are are reading the textbook, viewing the lectures, and completing all homework and exams
in a timely manner.

(Spring Semester Drop Deadlines

)

If at anytime you must consider dropping this course, please pay attention to the deadlines given below.
Refund Dates and the Last Day to Drop
DATE

NOTES

January 28, 2019 midnight

Full refund

February 4, 2019 midnight

50% refund

April 4, 2019 midnight

Official Course Drop Deadline

https:/Igbcnv.instructure. com/courses/1133650/assig

nments/syllabus

6/30
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~

-)

Grades & Grading Criteria

Your grade is based on 64 homework assignments, a syllabus quiz, 5 chapter exams, a comprehensive graphing exam, and a
comprehensive final exam. There are 67 homework assignments, but your three lowest homework scores will be dropped. The Study
Plan in MyMathLab IS NOT required, though many students find it helpful. Quizzes are weighted 2%, the homework 38% and the
exams 60%. To find your grade at any given time, you will take 2% of the average of the quiz grades, 38% of the average of the
homework score, 60% of the average of your exam scores, and sum those values together. Here is the formula.
Grade = 0.02(average of quiz score) + 0.38 (average of homework scores) + 0.60(average of exam scores).
Recall that the average is found by adding the scores and dividing by the number of scores.
We are using a homework management system, MyMathLab (MML), and a learning management system, WebCampus (Canvas).
Your homework and test scores are available in MML, your quiz scores are not; however ALL grades will be kept in
WebCampus.

It will be the official gradebook for the course.

the due date of the particular assignment/test

If you have a question about any grade, you have 48 hours after

to contact me in writing about your grade issue--this

includes potential grading

errors on my part as well as any proctor problems resulting in missing exams.
The last day to withdraw from this course is April 4, 2019. Please consult the catalog for information about "W' and incomplete "I"
grades.
The following grading standards will be used in this class:
Grade Distribution
Grade

Range

A

100 % to 94.0%

A-

< 94.0 % to 90.0%

B+

1< 90.0 % to 87.0%

B

< 87.0 % to 84.0%

B-

< 84.0 % to 80.0%

C+

< 80.0 % to 77.0%

C

< 77.0 % to 74.0%
-

https:IIgbcnv.instructure. com/courses/1133650/assignments/sylla

bus

7/30

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0,

5/15/2019

Grade

Precalculus I

Range

C-

< 74.0 % to 70.0%

D+
D

< 70.0 % to 67.0%
< 67.0 % to 64.0%

D-

< 64.0 % to 60.0%

F

< 60.0 % to 0.0%

-

(Submitting

-

Homework and Exams

)

All homework and exams are done in the website MyMathLab. Once you have enrolled in MyMathLab, you can use the "MyLab and
Mastering" tab on the left hand side of the homepage in WebCampus to get to your assignments in MML.
Submitting MyMathLab homework is easy. Simply click on the "Assignments" tab in MyMathLab find the appropriate section and do the
homework. MyMathLab automatically saves your work and enables me to view it. You can attempt homework problems as many
times as you like; therefore, it is technically possible to earn 100% on every assignment (and strongly recommended that you strive to
do so). Hint: If you are struggling with a problem, click on the "similar problem" option to get access to unlimited problems. All
homework, except the reviews, has access to extra support if you hit the help button at the top of the page. There you will find videos,
examples, hints, and even an "Ask my instructor" option which will send the problem and your question to me. The reviews do NOT
have these options to more fully mimic the situation you will find with your exams. MyMathLab homework is due Friday by 11:59 pm.
There may be homework that I will ask you to submit in WebCampus. To do so, save your work as a PDF file and upload it to the
appropriate dropbox.
Exams are due on the Mondays (by 9 pm) after the work for the chapters has been completed. All exams have a time limit of 3
hours. The exams are designed to be completed in 75 minutes, so it is highly unlikely you will need 3 hours to finish. Unlike the
homework, you are allowed only 1 attempt on the exams. late exams are not accepted. There are reviews for each of the exams in
MyMathLab. You must complete the exam reviews with a score of 70% or higher BEFORE you can take the exam. So please
plan enough time to complete the reviews and the exams by the due date. Use of your book, notes, websites (other than the test
site), cell phones, or any other device (outside of your testing computer) that can access the internet is not allowed while
taking exams.
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Because computers cannot assess partial credit, it is important that I see your work on exams. I also want to see your work on the
take-home quizzes. In that sense, please treat your quizzes and exams like regular pencil and paper exams and show me your work.
You will need to justify your answers, and you may lose credit for not showing your work. Turn in your work using the drop boxes in
WebCampus. To turn in your work:
1. Make sure your work is legible and the problems are numbered.
2. Immediately upon completing your quiz/exam, scan your work and save it as a PDF or JPG file. I will not accept other types of
files. Do not change your work after you have completed the quiz/exam; if you missed problems on your quiz/exam do not go
back through your test and write down the correct answers on your paper. I want to see the work you did that supports the
answers you put into the computer.
3. Upload your work in WebCampus. The drop box is located in the Exam Module.
If you fail to meet any of these conditions, your work will not be graded and you will lose any opportunity to earn partial credit.
I will return your graded work to you within 72 hours. You can look at my comments by going to the homepage in WebCampus and
clicking on "recent feedback" on the right hand side of the page. You may have to scroll down a bit to find it.

(

Reviewing past work

-------------)

If you would like to review past work for studying purposes, click on the Gradebook tab in MyMathLab. You will see different time
options for viewing old assignments/tests: Past month, All assignments. Just select the appropriate time frame and then click on the
assignment you wish to review. If you did not attempt an assignment, you will be unable to view it through the method outlined above.
Instead, click on the Study Plan. At the top you will see three options: Recommendations, Progress, and All Chapters. Click on "All
Chapters" and select the chapter and section you wish to review.

(Submitting

the Syllabus Quiz

)

The syllabus quiz is the only quiz you take in this course. You can find it in the Week 1 Module here in WebCampus. You will need to
type your quiz in Micosoft Word, save the file as a PDF and upload it to WebCampus by clicking on "syllabus quiz."

( Math Department Proctoring Policy
htlps :/Ig bcnv. instructu re.comlcourses/1133650/assig
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Your exams must be supervised by a proctor.
To enhance academic integrity and academic honesty of online courses at Great Basin College, the Math Department supports
proctors for online assessments.
Students are required to take exams at a GBC location (The Academic Success Center, Ely Campus, Winnemucca Campus, Pahrump
Campus, etc) or at Nevada State High School under the supervision of a proctor; or
students outside of the GBC service area may take exams under the supervision of an approved proctor. Approved proctor means
those approved by the instructor for this course. Students are responsible for any and all costs incurred for proctoring. Approved
proctors include: 1) public librarians, 2) principals, vice principals, teachers, and school counselors

of public or private schools, 3)

higher education testing centers, and 4) education officers at a military base. Family members, friends and coworkers are not
acceptable proctors, even if they fit into a category described above. Students are responsible for setting up their own proctor and
providing the necessary information to the instructor. Students will provide proctor information
week before an exam.

to their instructor

a minimum of a

Specific deadlines will be listed in the syllabus for the course.

The exam dates are listed here in the syllabus and schedule available on WebCampus. You are responsible for knowing what hours
the exam will be available.
GBC Testing Centers Hours of Operation
Testing Center

Hours

Notes
Students must contact

M-Th:

8am-6pm

Battle Mountain
F: 8am-2

pm

center to test after 6pm on
M - Th, or after 2 pm on
Friday
TEL: 775-635-2318

M-Th:

9am-8pm

Elko

TEL: 775-753:-2149
F: 9am -4 pm

hltps :IIg bcnv. insIruclu re.comlcourses/1133650/assig
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M - Th: 8 am - 7 pm (latest TEL: 775-289-3589
start time)
F: 8 am - 3 pm (latest start
time)

Students must contact
Pahrump

M - F: 8 am - 2 pm (latest

center to make an

start time)

appointment for testing.
TEL: 775-727-2000

Students are encouraged to
Winnemucca

M - Th: 10 am - 8 pm

make an appointment.
TEL: 775 - 623 - 4824

( Office/Classroom/Internet Etiquette

)

• Be on time for appointments .
• Be prepared. If you have questions to bring to my office, make sure they're ready to go so you do not have to use precious time
searching for the material you wish to discuss .
• If you email me questions, please be respectful. I will be respectful in return. I understand that frustration with a problem or the
course can be overwhelming. Remember that I am willing and happy to help so please don't let frustration with a problem mutate
into disrespectful language towards me.
• If you have to miss an office appointment or are going to be late, please call. Don't leave me waiting for an appointment that is
never going to happen.
• Do not text or use your phone during office visits or in class. Time is our most precious commodity; don't waste it by using our time
together for things not related to our course.
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• Be respectful of other students. Bullying, mocking, or otherwise interfering with another student's ability to learn online or in a
classroom setting will be dealt with in the most punitive manner I am allowed under GBC policy.

( Schedule of Events

)

Weekly Schedule
Week #

Topic

Date

Week 1

Wednesday 1/23 Introduction; 1.1 Linear Equations

Week 2

Monday 1/28

Wednesday 1/30

Week 3

Radicals; Rationalizing Numerators and Denominators

1.3 Complex Numbers; Review of Factoring
(Trinomials)

Monday 2/4

1.4 Quadratic Equations

Wednesday 2/6

1.7 Inequalities
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1.8 Absolute Value Equations and Inequalities

Wednesday 1/13 2.2 Circles

Week 5

Monday 2/18

Tuesday 2/19

NO CLASS President's Day Holiday

Chapter 1 Exam due

Wednesday 2/20 2.3 Functions

Week 6

Monday 2/25

~

2.4 Linear Functions; 2.5 Equations of Lines and Linear
Models

Wednesday 2/27 2.6 Graphs of Basic Functions

Week 7

https:/Igbcnv.inslruclure.
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Chapter 2 Exam due; 3.1 Quadratic Functions and
Models; 3.2 Synthetic Division

Wednesday 3/13 3.3 Zeros of Polynomial Functions

Week 9

Monday 3/18

3.4 Polynomial Functions

Wednesday 3/20 3.5 Rational Functions

Week 10

Week 11

Monday 4/1

Chapter 3 Exam due; 4.1 Inverse Functions

Wednesday 4/3

4.2 Exponential Functions

Monday 4/8

4.3 Logarithmic Functions

Wednesday 4/10

Week 12

Monday 4/15

https:/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assig
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Wednesday 4/17 4.6 Models of Exponential Growth and Decay

Week 13

Monday 4/22

Chapter 4 Exam; 9.1 Systems of Linear Equations

Wednesday 4/24 9.3 Determinant Solution of Linear Systems

Week 14

Week 15

WEEK 16

Monday 4/29

Graphing Exam; 9.4 Partial Fraction Decomposition

Wednesday 5/1

9.5 Nonlinear Equations

Monday 5/6

9.7 Properties of Matrices

Wednesday 5/8

Review

Monday May 13

FINAL EXAM

(HOMEWORK/QUIZZES/EXAMS

DUE DATES

)

Due Dates for Homework, Quizzes, and Exams
https:/lgbcnv.instructure
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Due Dates

1

Syllabus Quiz in WebCampus

Friday, Jan. 25

1

1.1

Fri. Jan. 25

Radicals, Rationalizing
2

Numerators/Denominators 1.3, Review of

Fri. February 1

Factoring

3

1.4,1.7

Fri. Feb. 8

4

1.8,2.2 (omit section 2.1)

Fri. Feb 15

5

Chapter 1 Review and Exam

Tuesday, Feb. 19

5

2.3

Fri. Feb. 22

6

2.4, 2.5, 2.6

Fri. March 1

7

2.7,2.8

Fri. Mar. 8

8

Chapter 2 Review and Exam

Monday, Mar. 11

8

3.1, 3.2, 3.3

Fri. Mar. 15

9

3.4,3.5

Fri. Mar. 22

https:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig
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10

Chapter 3 Review and Exam

Mon. April 1

10

4.1, Review of Exponents, 4.2

Fri. Apr. 5

11

4.3 - 4.4

Fri. Apr. 12

12

4.5 - 4.6

Fri. Apr. 19

13

Chapter 4 Review and Exam

Mon. Apr. 22

13

9.1 (omit 9.2), 9.3

Fri. Apr. 26

14

Graphing Exam

Mon. Apr. 29

14

9.4 - 9.5

Fri. May 3

15

9.7

Fri. May 10

16

Final Review and Exam

Mon. May 13

Precalculus I

( Homework and Exams Late Policy

)

Late homework and exams are not accepted. The three lowest homework scores will be dropped.
Any assignments
assignments,
https:lIgbcnv.inslruclure

that you fail to turn in or attempt to turn in late will be the assignments

you drop. After your 3 dropped

you will earn a score of zero on any further missed assignments.
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Homework is due every Friday at 11:59 pm (except for the very first orientation

exercise due Wednesday of the first

week). Exams are due on Mondays by 9pm. In the case of Monday or Friday holidays, work will be due on the Tuesday or Saturday,
respectively, immediately following the holiday. All homework and exams are posted the first day of class, so in case of conflicts with
due dates, students are encouraged to work ahead rather than lose credit for missing a deadline. All homework and exams are done in
MyMathLab NOT WebCampus. Quizzes can be found in WebCampus.

C Expectations

__

)

Remember, this is a 3-credit course. Depending on your level of comfort with the material, you can expect to spend 9 hours or more
per week in this class. This class by itself is the equivalent of having a part-time job.
Every week, my expectation is that you are reading the appropriate sections in your textbook, viewing the lectures, and completing your
homework.
I will assume that you are checking your email and announcements regularly in WebCampus. Missing important information that was
provided in an email or an announcement is not a valid reason for requesting an extension.

C~y~athLabvs.~ebCampus

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_)

In this course we use two different management systems, MyMathLab and WebCampus. MyMathLab is where your textbook,
homework, lectures, and exams reside. WebCampus is where you can communicate with fellow students and me. It will be where I
will send you announcements and email, so check WebCampus regularly. Your grades will be visible in both WebCampus and
MyMathLab; however MyMathLab will not include all of your scores. Therefore, the grades in WebCampus will be your official
grades and your score in WebCampus will determine your final grade in this course.

C Resources

._)

I have recorded videos to support the material in the textbook. These lectures are embedded in your homework and count as part of
your homework grade. Your textbook is an excellent resource and is filled with great examples. My expectation is that you are reading
https:/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assig

nments/syllabus

18/30

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0.

5/15/2019

Precalculus I

your textbook as well as viewing the lectures. When you are studying, feel free to access other websites such as khanacademy.org
purplemath.com

or

if you feel you need an alternate explanation. Besides these two, there are many other free websites for math. Just

Google the particular topic you are working on to find more sites.
Academic Success Center (ASC) EIT Building Room 114, 753-2149
For those of you in Elko, the ASC provides free onsite tutoring. They also have computers that you can use for your homework. ASC
hours: 9am-8pm Monday-Thursday and 9am -4pm on Friday. The ASC also offers free online tutoring or those of you not near a GBC
campus. Send an email to tutor@gbcnv.edu

(mailto:tutor@gbcnv.edu)Jor assistance.

GBC's Library on the Elko Campus provides electronic and digital resources to help students in their research and learning.
Contact the library at 775-753-2222.

C Troubleshooting

.)

In this course you will spend the majority of your time in MyMathLab, but you will use WebCampus to upload your exam work. Here
are the tech support sites for both products.
Contacts for Troubleshooting
Support

Product

help-desk@gbcnv.edu
,(mailto:help-desk@gbcnv.eduLor775-753-

WebCampus

2167

http-://247p-earsoned.custhelp-.com/ap-p-

MyMathLab

CTips fqr Succ:~~s
https:/Igbcnv.instructure. com/courses/1133650/assig
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While precalculus can be a difficult subject to master, the burden of learning is on you; therefore, you must be your own advocate.
Here are some steps you can take that may increase the probability of your success.
• If you don't understand a concept, get some help and get it fast. Do not sit like a bump on a log suffering in silence. Go to the
Academic Success Center for free tutoring or contact an online tutor. Make an appointment with me. Form a study group.
• Be cognizant of class policies and due dates. For example, what are the policies regarding late work?
• Do your homework. Math is not a subject that can be skimmed. You learn by doing .
• Do some math every day and try not to cram. Cramming is effective for the short term, but not for long-term retention, try to spread
the work out, and make time to review old material.
• Memory is enhanced by retrieval, so taking the time to review past work can be great tool for building longer term retention.
• Do not procrastinate with the computer homework. Technology is our friend and enemy. Allow yourself enough time to complete
the homework in case you run into technological difficulties.
Finally a quote: "The one who does the work does the learning." Terry Doyle, author of Helping Students Learn in a Learner Center
Environment: A Guide to Teaching in Higher Education. In other words, if you plan on being successful in this course, you need to
commit the time and effort to make it happen.

(INSTITUTIONAL

POLICIES & PROCEDURES

)

Student Conduct
Students are required to adhere to the behavior standards listed in GBC Student Conduct
(http-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edu/rights_resp-onsibilities/conduct.htmILand Netiquette Guidelines. Students are entitled to receive instruction free
from interference by other members of the class. If a student is disruptive, an instructor may ask the student to stop the disruptive
behavior and warn the student that such disruptive behavior can result in withdrawal from the course. An instructor may withdraw a
student from a course when the student's behavior disrupts the educational process under Great Basin College Policy. In accordance
with the Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE) CODE, Title 2, Chapter 10, Sections 10.2.1, and 10.2.2.
Appropriate classroom behavior is defined by the instructor.

Great Basin College policy states: "Messages, attitudes, or any other form

of communication deemed outside the bounds of common decency/civility as judged by common standards of classroom behavior
(determined as they would in a regular classroom by the instructor) will not be tolerated. This includes the number and length of
https:lIgbcnv.instructure. comlcourses/1133650/assig

nments/syllabus

20/30

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0.

5/15/2019

Precalculus I

individual messages online. Course discussion messages should remain focused on the assigned discussion topics. Students must
maintain a cordial atmosphere and use tact in expressing differences of opinion. Inappropriate discussion board messages may be
deleted if an instructor feels it is necessary. Students will be notified privately that their posting was inappropriate.
Student access to the course InBox and Discussion tools may be limited or removed if an instructor feels that students are sending
inappropriate or disparaging remarks about the course in electronic messages to other students in the course.

Academic Integrity & Dishonesty
GBC expects and requires all its students to act with honesty and integrity, and respect the rights of others in carrying out all academic
assignments. For more information here is the policy on academic integrity, including

the p-olicy and ap-p-ealp-rocedures

.(http-:/Igbcnv.edu/rights_resp-onsibilities/conduct.htmlLand read the Student Conduct Statement below.
Great Basin College considers academic honesty one of its highest values. A student who obtains academic credit for work that is not
the product of his or her own effort is being dishonest and undermining the academic integrity of the college. Students are expected to
be the sole authors of their work. Use of another's ideas must be accompanied by specific citation and reference. In addition, a
learner may not submit the same work for credit in more than one course. The disciplinary consequences of plagiarism and other
forms of academic dishonesty include non-acceptance of work submitted, a failing grade in the course, and/or or other disciplinary
action as outlined in Great Basin College's Student Conduct Policy.
The instructor of this course will take appropriate actions in response to Academic Dishonesty, as defined the College's Student
Conduct Policy. Acts of academic dishonesty include but are not limited to:
• Cheating: using, attempting to use, or providing others with any unauthorized assistance in taking quizzes, tests, examinations, or
in any other academic exercise or activity. Unauthorized assistance includes:
o

Working in a group when the instructor has designated that the quiz, test, examination, or any other academic exercise or
activity be done "individually;"

o

Depending on the aid of sources beyond those authorized by the instructor in writing papers, preparing reports, solving
problems, or carrying out other assignments;

o

Substituting for another student, or permitting another student to substitute for oneself, in taking an examination or preparing
academic work;

https:lIgbcnv.instructure .comlcourses/1133650/assig
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Acquiring tests or other academic material belonging to a faculty member, staff member, or another student without express
permission;

o

Continuing to write after time has been called on a quiz, test, examination, or any other academic exercise or activity;

o

Submitting substantially the same work for credit in more than one class, except with prior approval of the instructor; or engaging
in any form of research fraud.

• Falsification:

altering or fabricating any information or citation in an academic exercise or activity.

• Plagiarism: representing, by paraphrase or direct quotation, the published or unpublished work of another person as one's own in
any academic exercise or activity without full and clear acknowledgment. It also includes using materials prepared by another
person or by an agency engaged in the sale of term papers or other academic materials.

Student Assistance, Technical Support, & Security
Gac's Academic Success Centers

jhttp-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edu/asc/L

(ASC) 775-753-2149

on the Elko campus and at GBC's rural

centers offer the following services to GBC students, all at no cost. GBC is committed to your success!
•

Live tutoring -- free to all GBC students

• Free placement testing
• Proctored testing
• Open computer labs
• Help for students where English is their second language. You can also request a personalized one-on-one success plan utilizing
the Student Support & Retention Office. 775-753-2255
Smarthinking

is a tutoring program in WebCampus. This tutorial service provides students an optional seven hours, per school year, of

live 24/7 tutoring through online discussion boards, or live chat with a tutor.
Subjects covered include Writing/English, MLA & APA assistance, Math, Economics, Accounting, Spanish, Biology, Chemistry, and
Anatomy & Physiology
Gac's librarY.

jhttp-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edullibrary1)]75-753-2222

provides electronic and digital resources to help students located in any

area in their research and learning.
Gac's Technology Help-Desk

jhttp-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edu/techdeskl)]75-753-2167

provides WebCampus assistance when students

click on the Help button in the lower left corner in WebCampus or email helpdesk@gbcnv.edu.

https:/lgbcnv.instructure.com/cou
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jhttp-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edu/)

Campus Security 775-934-4923 GBC is committed to the safety of our students and has a duty to promote awareness and prevention
programs for violence on campus under the Jeanne Clery Act as well as the Campus SaVE (Sexual Violence Elimination Act) and
VAWA (Violence Against Women Act), which are amendments to Clery. Acts of violence include, but are not limited to, sexual assault,
domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking. Acts of violence can occur on the physical campus or centers of GBC in addition to
field placement sites, clinical practice settings, GBC's online WebCampus, and other places where college or class activities occur. If
you feel you are in immediate danger on the Elko Campus contact security at 775-934-4923 or call 911, GBC Centers contact the
Center Director or call 911, or the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs 775-753-2282.
Each year all registered students are automatically enrolled in Title IX Sexual Harassment on-line training. The course is provided, free
to each student, regardless of the number of credits they register for and should be completed once every two year. Students will
receive an email invitation to the course the week after the 100% drop date with a sender address of Vice President Mahlberg,
(mailto:ly'nn.mahlber@gbcnv.edu) Director Patricia Anderson

(mailto:p-atricia.anderson@gbcnv.eduL~r from our training provider

Campus Clarity

Withdraw Policy
If you feel it is necessary to withdraw from the course, please see GBC Calendar

jhttp-:/Igbcnv.edu/calendar/L for refund and

withdrawal dates for full-semester courses. To avoid an F in a course, be sure to drop it before 60% of the course has elapsed. For
more detail information, see the Refunds and Withdrawals

p-ag~ jhttp-:/Iwww.gbcnv.edu/admissions/refunds.htmIL.

Accessi bi Iity
Great Basin College is committed to providing equal educational opportunities to qualified students with disabilities in accordance with
state and federal laws and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973. A qualified student must furnish current verification of disability.
This course is designed to be compatible with most universal screen readers. If you are a student needing video and/or audio
captioning, GBC's Disabilities Office will provide captioning for you in this course.
The Students with Disabilities Office, located in Berg Hall, will assist qualified students with disabilities in securing the appropriate and
reasonable accommodations, auxiliary aids, and services. For more information or further assistance, please call 775-753-2271.
https:/Igbcnv.instructure. cornlcourses/1133650/assig
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(Syllabus Disclaimer

)

All material, assignments, and deadlines are subject to change with prior notice to benefit the learning of students in the course. It is
your responsibility to stay in touch with your instructor, review the course site regularly, communicate with other students, and to adjust
as needed if assignments or due dates change.

Course Summary:
Date

Wed Jan 23, 2019

Details
c

c

Fri Jan 25, 2019

Man Jan 28, 2019

Lectures

~(httP-S

Section

~(httP-S

for 1.1 Linear Eguations

due by 11:59pm

:/Igbcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig

nments/5887 425)

1.1 Linear Eguations

due by 11:59pm

:/Igbcnv. instructu re.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887

456)

~

,Sy'llabus Quiz (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878373)

~

Lectures

for Radicals

~

Lectures

for Rationalizing

(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887449)

Denominators

and Numerators

:"~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

c

Lectures

~(httP-S

for 1.3 Complex

due by 11:59pm

due by 5pm
due by 5pm

451 )

Numbers

due by 5pm

:/Igbcnv. instructu reocom/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

426)

Wed Jan 30, 2019
~

Lectures

of Review of Factoring

:"~(http-s :/Igbcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig
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Details
~

Rad icals (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 450)

due by 11:59pm

~ Radicals: Rationalizing Denominators and Numerators
~i?(httP-S:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 453)

due by 11:59pm

~

due by 11:59pm

FriFeb1,2019
Review of FactoringJhttp-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 455)

~ Section 1.3 Comp-Iex Numbers
~i?(http-s:/Ig bcnv.instructure .com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887457)

due by 11:59pm

Man Feb 4, 2019

c
Lectures for 1.4 Quadratic Eguations
~(httP.s:/IgbCnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 422)

due by 5pm

Wed Feb 6, 2019

Lectures for 1.7lnegualities
~(httP'S :/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig nments/5887424)

due by 5pm

c
Section 1.4 Quadratic Eguations
~(httP'S :/Ig bcnv.instru cture.com/courses/1133650/assignm ents/5887458)

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 1.7 Inegualities
~i?(http.s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887459)

due by 11:59pm

c
Lectures for 1.8 Absolute Value Eguationsllnegualities
~(httP'S :/Igbcnv.instructu re.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887427)

due by 5pm

~ Lectures for 2.2 Circles
~i?(http.s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/ass ig nments/5887428)

due by 5pm

~ Section 1.8 Absolute Value Eguationsllnegualities
~i?(httP'S:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887460)

due by 11:59pm

~

due by 11:59pm

c

Fri Feb 8, 2019

Man Feb 11, 2019

Fri Feb 15, 2019

https:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/cou

Section 2.2 Circles (http's:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 461)

rses/1133650/assig nments/syllabus
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Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0,

Date

Precalculus I

Details
~

Chap-ter 1 Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878327)

due by 9pm

~

Chap-ter 1 Review (bnp-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887421)

due by 9pm

Wed Feb 20, 2019

~

Lectures

due by 5pm

Fri Feb 22, 2019

~

Section

Tue Feb 19, 2019

c

for 2.3 Functions

2.3 Functions

(http-s:lIgbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887462)

Lecture for 2.5 Eguations

~(httP-S

(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887430)

of Lines and Linear Models

:lIg bcnv.instructure.com/cou

rses/1133650/assignments/5887

due by 11:59pm

due by 5pm
418)

Man Feb 25, 2019
~

Lectures

for 2.4 Linear Functions

~i?(http-s :/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

Wed Feb 27, 2019

c

Lectures

c

~

Fri Mar 1, 2019

for 2.6 Grap-hs of Basic Functions

~(httP-s:/IgbCnv.

Section

~(httP-S

Section

~O' Lectures

Man Mar 4, 2019

~(httP-S

c

Wed Mar 6,2019

of Lines and Linear Models
464)

.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

465)

for 2.7 Grap-hing Technigues

:/Ig bcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig

nmenls/syllabus

due by 11:59pm

due by 11:59pm

due by 5pm
nm ents/5887 432)

Lectures

~(httP-S

com/courses/1133650/assig

467)

2.6 Grap-hs of Basic Functions

~i?(httP-S :lIgbcnv. instructure

https:/Igbcnv.inslruclure.

due by 11:59pm
rses/1133650/assignments/5887

~i?(http-s :/Ig bcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

~

431)

2.4 Linear Functions

2.5 Eguations

due by 5pm

due by 5pm

instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

:/Igbcnv. instructure.com/cou

Section

429)

for 2.8 Function Op-erations and Comp-osition
:/Igbcnv. instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

due by 5pm
433)
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Date

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0.

Precalculus I

Details
~.? Section 2.7 Grap-hing Technigues
~(httP-S

:/Igbcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

463)

due by 11:59pm

Fri Mar 8, 2019
~

Section 2.8 Function Op-erations and Comp-osition

=-~(http-s :/Igbcnv. i nstructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

c

Lectures for 3.1 Quadratic

~(httP-S

~
Man Mar 11,2019

Wed Mar 13, 2019

Lectures for 3.2 Synthetic

due by 5pm
435)

Division
rses/1133650/assignments/5887

434)

due by 5pm

Chap-ter 2 Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878329)

due by 9pm

~

Chap-ter 2 Review (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887417)

due by 9pm

c

Lectures for 3.3 Zeros of Polynomials

~(httP-S

~

:/Ig bcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

Section 3.1 Quadratic
:/Ig bcnv. instructu

Section 3.2 Synthetic

=-~(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure

~

c

436)

and Models
468)

Division
.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

:/Ig bcnv. instructure.com/cou

469)

Functions

.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887

Lectures for 3.4 Polynomial

~(httP-s

c

Functions

re .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

Section 3.3 Zeros of Polynomial

=-~(http-s :/Igbcnv.instructure

Wed Mar 20, 2019

and Models

due by 11:59pm

~

c

Man Mar 18, 2019

Functions

re.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

=-~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.i nstructure.com/cou

~(httP-S

Sat Mar 16, 2019

:/Ig bcnv. i nstructu

466)

4 73)

Functions
rses/1133650/assignments/5887

438)

Lectures for 3.5 Rational Functions

~(httP-S

:/Igbcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

hllps ://gbcnv. instructure. comlcou rses/1133650/assig nments/sylla bus

440)

due by 5pm

due by 11:59pm

due by 11:59pm

due by 11:59pm

due by 5pm

due by 5pm
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Date

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0,

Precalculus I

Details
Section 3.4 Polynomial Functions
~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructu re.com/courses/1133650/assig nments/5887 472)

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 3.5 Rational Functions
~i?( http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 470)

due by 11:59pm

Lectures for 4.1 Inverse Functions
~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887439)

due by 5pm

~

Chap-ter 3 Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878331)

due by 9pm

~

Chap-ter 3 Review (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5889557)

due by 9pm

1:I

Sat Mar 23, 2019

1:I

Man Apr 1,2019

Wed Apr 3,2019

Lectures for 4.2 Exp-onential Functions
~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructure.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887 437)
1:I

~

Sat Apr 6, 2019

Review of Exp-onents (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887454)

due by 5pm

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 4.1 Inverse Functions
~i?(httP-S:/Igbcnv.instructu re.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887471)

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 4.2 Exp-onential Functions
~i? (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assi9nments/5887 474)

due by 11:59pm

Man Apr 8, 2019

Lectures for 4.3 Logarithmic Functions
~(httP-s:/IgbCnV.instructure.com/courses/1133650/aSSignments/5887

Wed Apr 10, 2019

Lectures for 4.4 Evaluating Logarithms/Change of Base
~(b!1p-s :/Ig bcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887443)

due by 5pm

Section 4.3 Logarithmic Functions
~(httP-s:/IgbCnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887475)

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 4.4 Evaluating Logarithms/Change of Base
,.i? .(b!1p-s
:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887477)

due by 11:59pm

1:I

441)

1:I

1:I

due by 5pm

Sat Apr 13, 2019

https:/Igbcnv.inslruclure.comlcourses/1133650/assig

nme nls/syllabus
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Date

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0,

I

Precalculus I

Details

Man Apr 15, 2019

c
Lectures for 4.5 Exp-onential and Logarithmic EQuations
~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructure.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887442)

due by 5pm

Wed Apr 17,2019

Lectures for 4.6 Exp-onential Growth and Decay'
~(httP-S :/Igbcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887444)

due by 5pm

c
Section 4.5 Exp-onential and Logarithmic EQuations
~(httP-s :/Ig bcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887476)

due by 11:59pm

~ Section 4.6 Models of Exp-onential Growth/Decay'
=-i?(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructu re.com/cou rses/1133650/assignments/5887478)

due by 11:59pm

~

Lectures for 9.1 Systems of Linear EQuations
.(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887447)

due by 5pm

~

Chap-ter 4 Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878333)

due by 9pm

~

Chap-ter 4 Review (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5889556)

due by 9pm

Lectures for 9.3 Determinant Solutions of Linear Systems of EQuations
(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig nments/5887446)

due by 5pm

c

Sat Apr 20, 2019

c

Man Apr 22, 2019

Wed Apr 24, 2019

c

~

c
Section 9.1 Systems of Linear EQuations
~(httP-S :/Ig bcnv.instructure .com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887479)

due by 11:59pm

Sat Apr 27, 2019
~

Man Apr 29, 2019

hllps :/Ig bcnv. inslruclure .comlcourses/1133650/assig

Section 9.3 Determinant Solution of Lin. Sys.
(http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assig nments/5887482)

due by 11:59pm

c
Lectures for 9.4 Partial Fraction Decomp-osition
~(httP-S :/Ig bcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887 445)

due by 5pm

~

due by 9pm

Grap-hing Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5878340)

nmenls/syllabus

29/30

5/15/2019

Date

Tue Apr 30, 2019

Wed May 1,2019

Syllabus for Sp19MATH126_1005_S0.

Precalculus I

Details
c

Additional

~(httP-s

c

Questions

from Chap-ter 4

due by 11:59pm

://gbcnv.i nstructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5890677)

Lecture for 9.5 Nonlinear Sy'stems of Equations
:/Igbcnv. instructure.com/courses/1133650/ass
ig nments/5887 423)

~(httP-S

Section 9.4 Partial Fractions
~(httP-S

:/Ig bcnv. instructure.com/cou

rses/1133650/assig

nments/5887 480)

due by 5pm

due by 11:59pm

Sat May 4, 2019
~

Section 9.5 Nonlinear Sy'stems of Equations

~(j(httP-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5887

Fri May 10, 2019

~

481)

Chap-ter 9 Exam (http-s:/Igbcnv.instructure.com/courses/1133650/assignments/5891337)

htlps:/lg bcnv. instructure. cornlcou rses/1133650/assignments/syllabus

due by 11:59pm

due by 9pm
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Essential Elements of Disclosures and Disclaimers
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Chapter 1: Introduction

rint

to Disclosures and Disclaimers
-----------------------

----=1

1 . Course Introduction

We encourage our customers to visit the FAQs section for fUl1
your educational experience. They have complete step-by-s
designed with YOU in mind!
Please note: Upon completion of the final exam, you will need to ad"
complete the survey. Once that is done, the course will be marked as ",
credit may be issued.

Course Description
Welcome to Essential Elements of Disclosures and Disclaimers, •
Learning!

.-.-

-.1

•..•. _ .•.__•..•
uu"' •.•.

The objectives of this course are to increase the credibility of the professional appraiser and to
promote the highest level oftmst in appraisal reporting practices.
Students who complete the course will grasp the impOliance of disclosures in ensuring that appraisal
reports contain sufficient information and are not misleading to intended users. Students also will
lmderstand the role of disclaimers in infOlming intended users about the appraiser's lack of
knowledge in certain areas, as well as helping appraisers limit their liability.
Disclosures required by USP AP will be highlighted, as will disclosures for specific situations
including FHA appraisals, environmental issues, and property deficiencies. TIle role of disclaimers in
these vaIious situations will be explored in depth.
In addition to the end-of-chapter quizzes and final exam, this course contains mini-quiZl...esthat will
test the knowledge of the material tlu'oughout each chapter. The mini-quizzes will help prepare you
fur not only the end-of-chapter quiz, but also the comprehensive review quiz at the end of the
course.

Leaming Objectives
After completion ofthis course, the paI1icipant will be able to:
• Differentiate between disclosures and disclaimers
• Summarize the appraiser's duty to disclose
• Recognize how disclosures and disclaimers can be used together or separately
~.
Recognize new USPAP requirements fur disclosme of prior services
• IdentitY the requirements for disclosure of competency, fees paid, and significant real
propet1y appraisal assistance
https:/lvc5.mcl4ssockcom'vc5lpri

nlcurrentchapter

.aspX?eid=3uVf%252fLTN AiBD6%252blV%252fuahFQ%253d%253d&coursechapllD=

29946

1/12

Print Current Chapter

212812019

If. •

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IdentifY requirements for disclosure of the use of Jurisdictional Exceptions, Hypothetical
Conditions, and Extraordinary Assumptions
Recognize requirements for disclosure of clients, intended use, intended users, and significant
professional assistance
SlUnmarize disclosure requirements for scope of work
Compare examples of disclosures related to property inspection
IdentifYassignment conditions and how they affect scope of work and disclosure
Paraphrase the advice in USPAP Advisory Opinion 9
Analyze different types of environmental issues
Summarize the importance of disclaimers in reports on properties with environmental issues
Summarize disclosure issues related to property condition
Recognize the importance of photographs in disclosures
IdentifYspecial issues and disclosure/disclaimer requirements

End of Page
2. Meet the Author

This course was authored by Daniel A. Bradley, SRA, CDEI.
Dan is a state certified general appraiser in Pennsylvania, holds an SRA designation
from the Appraisal Institute, and is currently on the FHA appraiser roster. He also holds
a CDEI (Certified Distance Education Instructor) designation from the International
Distance Education Certification Center (IDECC) and Is an AQB-Certified USPAP
Instructor. He has been authoring and instructing real estate and appraisal courses for
over 25 years.
From 2004 to 2013, Dan was a member of the Pennsylvania State Board of Certified
Real Estate Appraisers; his Board service included five years as vice-chairman and
three years as chairman. He has also has served as a contracted expert witness
appraisal reviewer for the Pennsylvania Department of State.
End of Pago

3 . Features of our LMS

Before we begin, let's cover some of the features of oW" learning management system that
appear on yoW" coW"se screen.
There is a tab at the bottom center of your screen that
says, "Show Tools". When you hover over this tab, the tab pops up and gives you a
number of icons fi'om which to choose. One of them is Documents; you can use the
Documents tab to download any necessary coW"se materials. There are handouts designed
for use in this course, and that is where to find them. There will also be links to the
handouts within the coW"se materials.
Under the Show Tools tab there is also a Help icon that you can use if you are experiencing
technical issues (e.g., the course pages aren't loading properly, you're not seeing the screen
htlps:llvc5.mcl<issockcomlvc5lprintcurrentchapter

.aspx?eid= 3uVf%252fLTNAiBD6%252btV%252fuahFQ%253d%253d&coursechaptID=

29946
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EST1 - Ethical Situations in Business
Course of Study

This course supports the assessments for Ethical Situations in Business. The course covers 2
competencies and represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview

There has been a major breakdown in corporate ethics in today's business world. The results of
a blatant disregard of ethics are prevalent. Studying business ethics takes on relevance and
immediacy that requires careful attention and effort to create an ethical environment that is good
for businesses, employees, and society as a whole.
Once you've successfully completed this course, you should be able to determine ethical and
socially responsible courses of action in a given business situation and be able to develop an
appropriate and comprehensive ethics program for a given business venture.
Competencies

This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 2 competencies:
310.2.1: Ethical Issues in Business
The graduate can determine ethical and socially responsible courses of action in a given
business situation.

• Competency

• Competency

310.2.3: Ethics Programs

The graduate can develop an appropriate and comprehensive ethics program for a
given business venture.
Course Instructor Assistance

As you prepare to successfully demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course
instructors stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts,
mentors enjoy and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers,
and critical thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to guide you through the revision process. You
should expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, so you are
welcome to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to your
success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

EST1 - Ethical Situations in Business
Course of Study

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to manually enroll in or independently acquire other resources. Read the full
instructions provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically Enrolled Resources
You will be automatically enrolled at the activity level for the following learning resources.
Simply click on the links provided in the activities to access the learning materials.
VitalSource E-Texts
The following textbooks are available to you as e-texts within this course. You will be directly
linked to the specific readings required within the activities that follow .
• Ferrell, O.C., Fraedrich, J., & Ferrell, L. (2009 Update). Business ethics: Ethical decision
making and cases (7th ed.). Boston, MA: South-Western/Cengage Learning. ISBN-13:
9781439042816
Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
purchase a hard copy at your own expense through VitalSource or a retailer of your choice. If
you choose to do so, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you receive the correct
edition. The following sites provide instruction on how to create a VitalSource account, use
features such as downloading your e-texts for offline use, and purchase a print-on-demand
option, if available.
VitalSource Navigational Video
print-On-Demand Option
SkillSoft and Books 24x7
You will access SkillSoft items at the activity level within this course. For more information on
accessing SkillSoft items, please see the "Accessing SkillSoft Learning Resources" page.

Topics and Pacing
This outline suggests a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities. It is
provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow these
guidelines carefully to complete the course in the suggested timeframe .
• Weeks 1-2:
o Concepts of Social Responsibility
• Week 3:
o Review of Major Points
• Weeks 4-5:
o Developing an Ethics Program
• Week 6:
o Performance Assessment

Social Responsibility in Business (Part I)

EST1 - Ethical Situations in Business
Course of Study

The term social responsibility is a concept which encompasses the actions, activities, and
attitudes of business and the impact a business has on the community within which it
operates-trying to maximize a positive impact and minimize any negative impact. Corporate
social responsibility is often described as an "obligation" to be fair and to do good. Issues of
corporate social responsibility span a wide range of ethical and social issues, including
environmental protection, working conditions, stakeholder rights, consumer protections, fair
competition, and community support.

Concepts of Social Responsibility
When you have completed this topic you will be able to
•
•
•
•

describe, define, and explain business ethics from an organizational perspective;
describe the historical foundations and evolution of business ethics;
list the ways in which ethical value systems support business performance;
identify courses of action in a given business situation that are socially responsible for
that situation;
• explain stakeholder orientation and perspective in corporate social responsibility and
identify the roles of stakeholders in business ethics; and
• define and identify ethical issues and delineate types of behavior as business ethics
issues.

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 310.2.1: Ethical Issues in Business
The graduate can determine ethical and socially responsible courses of action in a given
business situation.
Understanding the Importance of Business Ethics
Read the following chapter in Business Ethics:
• chapter 1 ("The Importance of Business Ethics")
After reading the chapter you should be able to answer the following questions:
• How would you define business ethics?
• How has business ethics developed over time?
• What is involved in developing an ethical culture in an organization?
• What are three benefits to business of a clear ethical framework?
Chapter 1: Review Questions - Exercises
If you need more practice with the content, please review the "Questions - Exercises" at the end
of chapter 1 ("The Importance of Business Ethics").
If you need additional guidance, navigate to the Course Chatter and post a question to get input
from your peers and course instructors.
Case Studies 1 and 2

EST1 - Ethical Situations in Business
Course of Study

If you need more practice with the content, please review the following cases in Business Ethics
and post your thoughts on the Course Chatter:
• case 1 ("Wal-Mart: The Challenge of Managing Relationships with Stakeholders")
• case 2 ("The Coca-Cola Company Struggles With Ethical Crises")
Identifying, Understanding, and Defining Stakeholder Relationships, Social
Responsibility, and Corporate Governance
Read the following chapter in Business Ethics:
• chapter 2 ("Stakeholder Relationships. Social Responsibility. and Corporate
Governance")
After reading the chapter you should be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•

What are various stakeholder roles in business ethics?
What is an accepted definition of social responsibility?
What are the relationships between stakeholder orientation and social responsibility?
What should be the role of corporate governance in structuring ethics and social
responsibility in business?
• What are the steps involved in implementing a stakeholder perspective in social
responsibility and business ethics?
Chapter 2: Review Questions - Exercises
If you need more practice with the content, please review the "Questions - Exercises" at the end
of chapter 2 ("Stakeholder Relationships. Social Responsibility. and Corporate Governance").
If you need additional guidance, navigate to the Course Chatter and post a question to get input
from your peers and course instructors.
Case Studies 3 and 4
If you need more practice with the content, please review the following cases in Business
Ethics and post your thoughts on the Course Chatter:
• case 3 ("The Fall of Enron: A Stakeholder Failure")
Identify Emerging Business Ethics Issues
Read pages 68-84 from the following chapter in Business Ethics:
• chapter 3 ("Emerging Business Ethics Issues")
After reading the chapter you should be able to
• describe ethical issues in the context of organizational ethics;
• explain how ethical issues relate to basic values of honesty, fairness, and integrity;
• delineate and identify unethical behaviors as business ethics issues; and
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• identify three challenges in determining an ethical issue in business.
Chapter 3: Review Questions - Exercises
If you need more practice with the content, please review the "Questions - Exercises" at the end
of chapter 3 ("Emerging Business Ethics Issues").
If you need additional guidance, navigate to the Course Chatter and post a question to get input
from your peers and course instructors.

Social Responsibility in Business (Part II)
The activities in this subject will complete your work with the concepts associated with social
responsibility in business and prepare you to submit your first EST1 performance task in
Taskstream.

Concepts of Social Responsibility
When you have completed this topic you will be able to
• identify issues of social responsibility within an organization's operations, and
• develop recommendations for action to improve that organization's level of soCial
responsibility.
At this point, focus on review and confirm your mastery of these concepts in preparation to
submit your work in Taskstream for grading.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 310.2.1: Ethical Issues in Business
The graduate can determine ethical and socially responsible courses of action in a given
business situation.
Determine Levels of Corporate Social Responsibility
Review the following module in SkillSoft:
• Worklplace Management: Corporate Social Responsibility

Mid-way Review
Congratulations! You have successfully completed the first section of this course. The
responsibility of business to be a "good citizen" is not only important from the social perspective,
but it is good business as well.

Performance Assessment
By this midway point in your work on the course, you should have developed competency in
"determining ethical and socially responsible courses of action in a given business situation,"
including the following:
• understanding the concept of social responsibility in business
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• recognizing the range of issues that fall under corporate social responsibility
• identifying socially responsible courses of action in given business situations
• identifying stakeholders involved in creating corporate social responsibility
Performance Task 310.2.1-05
Complete the following task in Taskstream:
• Ethical Situations in Bus: Task 310.2.1-05
For details about this performance assessment, see the "Assessment" tab in this course.
Carefully read the given information in the scenario and task instructions. Be sure to include the
following in your submission:
• Determine whether or not Company Q's actions, as described in the scenario, are
socially responsible and be sure to explain your reasoning.
• Recommend three actions that Company Q could take to improve the company's
attitude toward social responsibility.
If you need more detailed support with this assessment, watch the brief Task 1: The Grocery
Store video:

Finalize Your Document
1. Organize your recommendations into an essay.
2. Proofread your document for spelling and grammar errors.
3. Check your formatting to make sure that you have used the same format throughout the
document.
4. Read the essay closely to make sure your sentences are clear and concise.
5. If you used references, make sure that you cite them using APA style.
6. Save your document with the following naming convention: student number, last name,
EST1 Task #. (For example, 55455 Smith EST1 Task 310.2.1-05).
Check that you did the following before submission:
• You completely, thoroughly, and logically evaluated Company Q's attitude toward social
responsibility, as described in the scenario.
• You provided three clear recommendations for areas that could be improved regarding
Company Q's attitude toward social responsibility.
• You checked your Turnitin report to ensure that your origionality score was 30% or less.
For more information on how to use Turnitin, please visit the Center for Writing
Excellence.
Self-score your task using the scoring rubrics in Taskstream. In Taskstream, each task has a
posted scoring rubric. Review your work using the provided scoring rubric, which is the same
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rubric that the grader uses to score your task. Make sure that your work meets the minimum
requirements as set out by the scoring rubric.
Submit your task to Taskstream to be graded. Once your task has been evaluated, you will
recieve an email notification from Taskstream. If the grader did not give you a passing grade for
your task you can review, revise, and resubmit with corrections. If there are any areas where
you do not understand a concept, please check with the course instructor for assistance. If you
do not pass the assessment within two tries, you will need to have the course instructor's
approval to try again.

Developing an Ethics Program (Part I)
The activities for this section will introduce you to the concepts associated with developing an
ethics program for a business to foster ethical decision-making for business directors, officers,
and employees. Effective ethics programs provide the opportunity for management to establish
a culture that establishes ethical behavior both inside and outside of the organization as the
business strives to eliminate unethical conduct. You will study factors that are essential parts of
an ethical program: codes of conduct, ethics officers and delegation of authority, training,
monitoring, compliance, and improvement reviews.

Developing an Ethics Program
When you have completed this topic you will be able to
•
•
•
•
•

explain why businesses need to develop ethics programs;
list the minimum requirements of an ethics program;
describe the role of codes of ethics in identifying key risk areas for an organization;
identify keys to successful ethics training; and
explain how ethical standards are monitored, audited, and enforced.

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 310.2.3: Ethical Issues in Business
The graduate can develop an appropriate and comprehensive ethics program for a
given business venture.
Developing an Effective Ethics Program
Read the following chapter in Business Ethics:
• chapter 8 ("Developing an Effective Ethics Program")
After reading the chapter you should be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•
•

What is the responsibility of the corporation to be a moral agent?
Why does a business need to develop an ethics program?
What are the minimum requirements for an ethics program?
What is the role of a code of ethics in identifying key risk areas for an organization?
What are the keys to successful ethics training, including program types and goals?
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• How are ethical standards monitored, audited, and enforced?
• Why is continuous improvement important with an ethics program?
Chapter 8: Review Questions - Exercises
If you need more practice with the content, please review the "Questions - Exercises" at the end
of chapter 8 ("Developing an Effective Ethics Program").
If you need additional guidance, navigate to the Course Chatter and post a question to get input
from your peers and course instructors.
Implementing and Auditing Ethics Programs
Read the following chapter in Business Ethics:
• chapter 9 ("Implementing and Auditing Ethics Programs")
After reading the chapter you should be able to answer the following questions:
• What is ethics auditing and how is it performed?
• What are the benefits and limitations of ethics auditing?
• What are the challenges of measuring nonfinancial performance in an organization?
• What are the stages of an ethics auditing process?
• What strategic role does the ethics audit play?
Chapter 9: Review Questions - Exercises
If you need more practice with the content, please review the "Questions - Exercises" at the end
of chapter 9 ("Implementing and Auditing Ethics Programs").
If you need additional guidance, navigate to the Course Chatter and post a question to get input
from your peers and course instructors.

Developing an Ethics Program (Part II)
The activities for this subject will prepare you to submit the next EST1 task in Taskstream.

Developing an Ethics Program
When you have completed this topic you will be able to develop an effective ethics program for
an organization, including codes of conduct, ethics officers and their roles, ethics training,
program monitoring, program auditing, and improvement systems. Potential employees who not
only understand the significance of creating effective ethics programs, but are also able to
monitor, audit, and improve those programs, will become sought after in the workplace as the
ethical environment in business continues to change.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 310.2.3: Ethical Issues in Business
The graduate can develop an appropriate and comprehensive ethics program for a
given business venture.
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Ethics for Managers
Review the following optional module in SkillSoft:
• Introduction to Workplace Ethics

Final Review
You have successfully completed the second section of the course. You have mastered the
concepts of developing an ethics program, and how those concepts can be utilized in particular
business settings.

Performance Assessment
As you prepare to complete your work with Ethical Situations in Business, and as you complete
this course, you should have developed competency in "developing an appropriate and
comprehensive ethics program for a given business venture," including the following:
•
•
•
•

explaining why businesses need ethics programs, and the benefits from those programs
listing minimum requirements for an ethics program
understanding what is required for successful ethics training
understanding how to monitor, audit and improve ethical standards and programs in
business
Performance Task 310.2.3-08
Complete the following task in Taskstream:
• Ethical Situations in Bus: 310.2.3-08
For details about this performance assessment, see the "Assessment" tab in this course.
Carefully read the scenario for the task, as this contains the relevant facts you need to consider
as you develop your ethics program for this company. Draft your ethics program for the task. Be
sure to develop the following in your ethics program document:
• An applicable standards and procedures section that includes a minimum of four
elements of acceptable or unacceptable behavior found in a code of ethics .
• A section that identifies a minimum of three specific components for an ethics training
program .
• A section that explains the processes for monitoring and reporting misconduct.
• A section that explains your plan to audit the ethics program after implementation.
If you need more detailed support with this assessment, watch the brief Task 2: The Ethics
Program video:

Final Steps
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Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! This course has prepared you to
complete the assessments associated with this course. If you have not already been directed to
complete the assessments, schedule and complete your assessments now.
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This course supports the assessment for Taxation I. The course covers 3 competencies and
represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview
Welcome to Taxation I! This course will provide a general introduction to taxation in the United
States. It focuses on the taxation of individuals and will guide you through the steps of preparing
individual income tax returns. It will also introduce the fundamentals of conducting research on
tax-related issues. By the end of this course, you will be able to prepare an individual income
tax return and use tax research tools to conduct basic tax research.
Getting Started
In this course you will be introduced to taxation of individuals and the fundamentals of
tax-related research. You will develop the necessary skills to prepare an individual tax return
and learn how to use appropriate tools for tax-related research. As you work through each unit,
you will access the VitalSource e-text along with reviews, homework, quizzes, and a study plan
which can be accessed through MyAccountingLab links within each topic. These activities will
help you assess your progress and comprehension of the topics. Be sure to reach out to your
course instructor for support and guidance. Your pacing guide is a great resource to help you
stay on track and a printable checklist will enable you to track your progress through the course.
Competency in this course is demonstrated with an objective assessment.
Watch the following video for an introduction to this course:

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 3 competencies:
• ,Competency 3026.1.1: Federal Taxation
The graduate explains the nature, purpose, and scope of the current U.S. tax system as
it relates to individuals .
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
• Competency 3026.1.3: Tax Research
The graduate conducts basic tax research.
Course Instructor Assistance
As you prepare to demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course instructors
stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts, mentors enjoy
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and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers, and critical
thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to help you prepare for another attempt. You should
expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, and you are
encouraged to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to
your success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to enroll manually in or independently acquire other resources. Read the full
instructions provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically Enrolled Resources
You can access the learning resources listed in this section by clicking on the links provided
throughout the course. You may be prompted to log in to the WGU student portal to access the
resources.
Wiley CPAexcel
Wiley CPAexcel is a series of video resources designed to align with the course topics. You will
be directly linked to the video content upon clicking the links provided.
VitalSource E-Text
The following textbook is available to you as an e-text within this course. You will be directly
linked to the e-text within each topic and you can also download it to read offline, or purchase a
printed text using the following instructions .
• Rupert, T.J., Pope, T.R., & Anderson, K.E. (2016). Prentice Hall's federal taxation:
individuals (29th ed.). Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson. Print ISBN-10: 0134105907
For further information about using a VitalSource text, visit the following help page:
• VitalSource: Help
Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
purchase hard copies at your own expense through a retailer of your choice. If you choose to do
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so, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you receive the correct edition.
MyAccountingLab
MyAccountingLab contains the reviews, homework, quizzes, and study plan that you will need
for this course.
View the MyAccountingLab Navigational Video to become familiar with using
MyAccountingLab.

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as ...": download

~.
In the Multimedia Library, you will be able to access the textbook and PowerPoint presentations
for each chapter.
As you work through the course of study, you will find links to the assigned chapter readings
and quizzes. There are three types of quizzes for each chapter that will help you prepare for the
objective assessment:
• Chapter Review. These activities check your knowledge of the key concepts presented
in the chapter .
• Chapter Quiz. These quizzes provide additional support by assessing your
understanding of the chapter as a whole .
• Concept Quiz. These quizzes target your learning to specific topic areas (e.g., Tax Rate
Quiz).
Question Help in MyAccountingLab
Assignments in MyAccountingLab include a variety of learning aides to support you as you work
through the problems. You can access these learning aides through the Question Help button.
Below is a description of the learning aides. The available learning aides vary depending on the
question.
Help Me Solve This provides support by guiding you step by step in solving a similar problem.
eText pages direct you to the area of the textbook that relates to the question topic.
Calculator provides a calculator.
Worked Solutions are step-by-step explanations that detail how to solve the problem using the
exact numbers and data presented in the problem. The full solutions are available when
reviewing submitted assignments.
Additional Learning Tools
Use the Check Answer and Final Check buttons as you work through each problem.
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Check Answer provides feedback for each stage of a problem so you know whether or not you
are on the right track before moving on.
Final Check provides you with the correct answer for a problem step that remains incorrect
after several attempts. This allows you to progress through to the next stage of the problem
MyAccountingLab Study Plan
The Study Plan will help you to achieve mastery of each learning objective. The thumbtack icon
indicates recommendations for what to work on next. The recommendations are based on the
results from course quizzes, reviews, and homework assignments. Your Study Plan will include
items from learning objectives that you have not yet mastered and provide you with additional
practice.
The Quiz Me button provides a quiz to assess your mastery of the objective after you have
completed the practice questions.
Once you've mastered an objective, you will earn Mastery Points for that objective and the
Study Plan will recommend a new section for you to work on. The Study Plan Content page will
list the number of points you have earned alongside the number of points possible for each
objective.
Note: If you retake course quizzes, reviews, and homework assignments, the new results will be
reflected in the Study Plan.
Minimum Technical Requirements
Obtain a Calculator
You will need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel,
for computational problems throughout this course. The recommended financial calculator is the
Texas Instruments SA-II Plus. You may only use an approved financial calculator during the
pre-assessment and assessment for this course. You are unable to use Excel during the
assessments.

Topics and Pacing
The pacing guide suggests a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities. It is
provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow the pacing
guide carefully to complete the course in the suggested timeframe.
Use this printable checklist to track your progress through the course: C237 Taxation Course
Checklist
Week 1
• Preparing for Success
• Nature, Purpose, and Scope of the Current U.S. Tax System
Week 2

I
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• Individual Income Tax Formula
Week 3
• Gains and Losses
Week 4
• Deductions
• Itemized Deductions
Week 5
• Final Steps of the Individual Income Tax Formula
Week 6
• Final Steps of the Individual Income Tax Formula
• Tax Research
• Final Steps

Federal Taxation
This section introduces the history, foundations, and basic principles of the U.S. federal tax
system.

Nature, Purpose, and Scope of the Current U.S. Tax System
In this section, you will learn the background and basic principles that underlie the current U.S.
tax system. You will learn the basic principles of individual income tax rates and distinguish
between various taxes and entities that are subject to taxation. The Internal Revenue Service
and basic principles of tax practice will also be introduced here.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency

3026.1.1:

Federal Taxation

The graduate explains the nature, purpose, and scope of the current U.S. tax system as
it relates to individuals.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Describe the history of taxation in the United States.
• Identify the sources of tax law.
• Describe the criteria of an equitable tax structure (equity, certainty, convenience,
economy, simplicity).
• Describe the structure of individual income tax rates.
• Calculate an individual's federal income tax from his or her taxable income.
• Distinguish between various types of taxes.

C237 - Taxation I
Course of Study

• Identify different types of entities that are subject to taxation in the United States.
• Describe the administrative procedures of the IRS.
• Describe various components of a tax practice.
Chapter 1: An Introduction to Taxation in the U.S.
Read Chapter 1 An Introduction to Taxation in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• SOurces of Tax Authority and Research (19:57)
Complete the following MyAccQuntingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 1 Quiz .
• Complete the Chapter 1 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
•
•
•
•

Take the Tax Rate Quiz .
Take the Federal, State, and Local Tax Quiz.
Complete the Chapter 1 Review.
Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 1.

Taxation of Individuals
Millions of Americans rely on professionals to assist them in filing their taxes. This section
outlines the complex set of rules for calculating individual income taxes for individuals.

Individual Income Tax Formula
This topic will introduce the individual income tax formula and guide you through each step in
the formula for calculating individual income taxes across a wide variety of situations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Define each component of the individual income tax formula .
• Calculate an individual's income tax when provided with monetary amounts for each
component of the tax formula.
• Identify three conditions that must be met for income to be taxable.
• Identify the primary accounting methods for individual tax purposes.
• Define gross income in accordance with IRC Section 61(a).
• Explain tax planning strategies individuals can use to minimize their tax liability.
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• Identify items that the IRS does not define as income.
• Identify various types of major statutory exclusions from gross income.
Chapter 2 Determination of Tax
Access Chapter 2 Determination of Tax in Federal Taxation and read the section, "Formula for
Individual Income Tax."
View the following videos:
• personal and Dependency Exemptions (24:18)
• Filing Status (21.09)
Optional MyAccountjngLab Practice:
• Take the Income Tax Formula Quiz .
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 2, Objective 1: Use the tax formula to
compute an individual's taxable income.
Chapter 3 Gross Income: Inclusions
Read Chapter 3 Gross Income: Inclusions in Federal Taxation.
View the following videos:
• Gross Income - Concepts, Interest and Dividends (28:53)
• Gross Income - Other Inclusions (11:06)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Gross Income Quiz .
• Complete the Chapter 3 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 3 Review .
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 3.
Chapter 4 Gross Income: Exclusions
Read Chapter 4 Gross Income: Exclusjons in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• Gross Income - Exclusions (15:28)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Exclusions Quiz.
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• Complete the Chapter 4 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 4 Review.
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 4.

Gains and Losses
This topic will continue to guide you through the individual income tax formula by introducing the
process for classifying and determining the tax treatment for gains and losses for individuals.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Identify the difference between a realized gain (or loss) and a recognized gain (or loss).
• Calculate property basis.
• Differentiate between capital assets and non-capital assets .
• Calculate the tax treatment of capital gains and losses.
• Determine the holding period for an asset when a sale or exchange occurs.
Chapter 5 Property Transactions: Capital Gains and Losses
Read Chapter 5 Property Transactions: Capital Gains and Losses in Federal Taxation.
View the following videos:
• Capital Gains and Losses (33:00)
• Sales and Dispositions of Assets (22:04)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 5 Quiz .
• Complete the Chapter 5 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 5 Review .
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 5.
Access Chapter 2 Determination of Tax in Federal Taxation and read the following sections:
• "Treatment of Capital Gains and Losses"
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• "Provision Applicable to Higher-Income Taxpayers"
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Study plan activities fo(Chapter 2.
a Objective 5: Explain the basic concepts of capital gains and losses.
a Objective 6: Compute the income tax for high-income individuals.

Deductions
This topic will provide you with an overview of how to determine deductions for individual
income taxes.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Distinguish between deductions for AGI and deductions from AGI.
• Identify examples of business and investment expense deductions.
• Explain the restrictions applied to expense deductions.
• Identify the time period when an expense becomes a deduction .
• Determine deductions from Adjusted Gross Income.
Chapter 6 Deductions and Losses
Read Chapter 6 Deductions and Losses in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• Deductions for AGI (16:21)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 6 Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 6 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 6 Review.
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 6.
Access Chapter 2 Determination of Tax in Federal Taxation.
• Read the section "Deductions from Adjusted Gross Income."
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View the following video:
• Deductions - Basic Principles (15:41)
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Deductions from AGI Quiz.
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 2, Objective 2: Determine the amount of
deductions from Adjusted Gross Income.

Itemized Deductions
This topic examines a specific type of deductions: itemized deductions, which include medical
expenses, charitable deductions, and other miscellaneous deductions.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Identify the types of medical expenses that qualify as itemized deductions .
Describe the limits on the amount of qualified medical expenses that can be deducted.
Identify the types of taxes and interest that qualify as itemized deductions.
Identify examples of deductible charitable contributions.
Describe the limits on the amount of qualified charitable contributions that can be
deducted.
• Identify types of miscellaneous itemized deductions.
Chapter 7 Itemized Deductions
Read Chapter 7 Itemized Deductions in Federal Taxation.
View the following videos:
• Itemized Deductions - Medical. Taxes. Interest (28:40)
• Itemjzed Deductions - Other (23:38)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 7 Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 7 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 7 Review.
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• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 7.

Final Steps of the Individual Income Tax Formula
This topic will guide you through the remaining steps of the individual income tax formula and
help you with issues such as losses, bad debt, filing statuses, and tax form submissions.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 3026.1.2: Taxation of Individuals
The graduate determines the tax treatment for items reflected in individual income tax
returns.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Determine what constitutes a loss for tax purposes.
Explain the tax treatment for a bad debt.
Describe the different types of exemptions for an individual tax return.
Identify the different types of filing statuses.
Determine the optimum filing status for different individuals .
Calculate an individual's tax liability using the tax table.
Identify various tax credits for individuals.
Explain the difference between refundable and non-refundable tax credits .
Describe tax withholding requirements and limitations .
Explain when an individual should use a 1040, 1040EZ, 1040A, or 4868 form.
Identify when a given individual income tax is due .
Explain the differences between GAAP cost recovery and tax depreciation .
Describe common expenses that may appear on forms 2106 and 2106-EZ.
Explain the rules applicable to individuals under the Individual Shared Responsibility
provisions of the Affordable Care Act.
Chapter 8 Losses and Bad Debts
Read Chapter 8 Losses and Bad Debts in Federal Taxation.
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 8 Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 8 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 8 Review .
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 8.
Chapter 2 Exemptions, Tax Forms, Due Dates, and Extensions
Access Chapter 2 Determination of Tax in Federal Taxation.
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• Read the section, "Determining the Amount of Tax,"
• Read the section, "Compliance and Procedural Considerations."
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Chapter 2 Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 2 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 2 Review .
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 2.
o Objective 3: Calculate the income tax for individuals.
Chapter 14 Special Tax Computations Methods
Read Chapter 14 Special Tax Computation Methods. Tax Credits. and Payment of Tax
in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• personal Tax Credits (34:54)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Affordable Care AcfQuiz .
• Complete the Chapter 14 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 14.
Web Activity: Affordable Care Act
Review the resources below to learn more about the Affordable Care Act including how to
determine the shared responsibility payment for an individual and the available exemptions.
• Affordable Care Act Planning for CPAs - Video
• Individual Shared Responsibility Provision-Reporting and Calculating the Payment
• Individual Shared Responsibility Provision-Exemptions: Claiming or Reporting
Chapter 10 Depreciation, Cost Recovery, Amortization
Read Chapter 10 Depreciation. Cost Recovery. Amortization. and Depletion in Federal
Taxation.
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 10 Quiz.
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• Complete the Chapter 10 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 10.
Chapter 9 Employee Expenses and Deferred Compensation
Read Chapter 9 Employee Expenses and Deferred Compensation in Federal Taxation.
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 9 Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 9 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 9.

Tax Research
Tax law is the foundation for accounting procedures. Central to your role as an accountant is
the process of researching, understanding, and applying tax law.

Tax Research
In this section, you will study the tax research process, describe sources of tax law, and use tax
research tools to resolve tax issues related to corporations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3026.1.3: Tax Research
The graduate conducts basic tax research.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Describe the tax research process .
• Describe the various sources of tax law.
• Determine the relative weight of each tax law source in relation to one another.
• Apply various tools to assist in tax research.
Tax Research
Read Chapter 15 Tax Research in Federal Taxation. As you read, write a brief description of
each of the six steps in the tax research process.
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 15 Homework.
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Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 15 Review.
• Take the Chapter 15 Quiz.
• Take the Assessment Practice Exam.

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! You are now prepared to complete
the associated assessment. If you have not already been directed to complete it, schedule and
complete the assessment now.
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C238 - Taxation II
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This course supports the assessment for Taxation II. The course covers 7 competencies and
represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview
Welcome to Taxation II! This course focuses on the taxation of business entities, including
corporations, partnerships, estates and trusts, and LLCs. Important taxation concepts and skills
discussed in this course include tax reporting, planning, and research skills applicable to a
variety of business contexts. The activities you will complete for this course emphasize the role
of taxes in business decisions and business strategy.
welcome video for an introduction to this course:

Getting Started
In this course, you will learn using your VitalSource e-text along with reviews, homework,
quizzes, and a study plan which can be accessed through the MyAccountingLab links within
each topic. These activities will help you assess your progress and comprehension of the topics.
Your pacing guide provides suggestions on when to complete the activities and a printable
checklist will enable you to track your progress through the course. Remember to reach out to
your course instructor for support and guidance. Upon the completion of the course, your
competencies will be measured with an objective assessment.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 7 competencies:
• Competency
The graduate
entities.
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate
• Competency
The graduate

3027.1.1: Tax Implications of Different Business Structures
evaluates the tax implications of different legal structures for business
3027.1.2: C Corporations
determines the tax treatment for C corporations.
3027.1.3: S Corporations
determines the tax treatment for S corporations.
3027.1.4: Partnerships
determines the tax treatment for partnerships.
3027.1.5: Estates and Trusts
determines the tax treatment for estates and trusts.
3027.1.6: IRS Procedures
describes the administrative procedures of the IRS.
3027.1.7: Tax Research
researches tax issues related to taxation of entities.

Course Instructor Assistance
As you prepare to demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course instructors
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stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts, mentors enjoy
and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers, and critical
thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to help you prepare for another attempt. You should
expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, and you are
encouraged to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to
your success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to enroll manually or acquire other resources independently. Read the full instructions
provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically Enrolled Resources
You can access the learning resources listed in this section by clicking on the links provided
throughout the course. You may be prompted to log in to the WGU student portal to access the
resources.
Wiley CPAexcel
Wiley CPAExcel. John Wiley & Sons. 2017.
VitalSource E.Text
The following textbook is available to you as an e-text within this course. You will be directly
linked to the e-text within each topic and you can also download it to read offline, or purchase a
printed text using the following instructions .
• Rupert, T.J., Pope, T.R., & Anderson, K.E. (2016). Prentice Hall's federal taxation:
corporations, partnerships, estates (29th ed.). Upper Saddle River: Pearson. Print
ISBN13: 9780134105857
For further information about using a VitalSource text, visit the following help page:
• VitalSource: Help
Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
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purchase hard copies at your own expense through a retailer of your choice. If you choose to do
so, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you receive the correct edition.
MyAccountingLab
MyAccountingLab contains the reviews, homework, quizzes, and study plan that you will need
for this course. You will be directed to specific materials in MyAccountingLab throughout the
course.
View the MyAccountingLab Navigational Video to become familiar with using
MyAccountingLab.

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

Yidoo.
In the Multimedia Library, you will be able to access the textbook and PowerPoint presentations
for each chapter.
As you work through the course, you will find links to the assigned chapter readings and
quizzes. There are three types of quizzes for each chapter that will help you prepare for the
objective assessment:
• Chapter Review: These quizzes check your knowledge of the key concepts presented in
the chapter .
• Chapter Quiz: These quizzes provide additional support by assessing your
understanding of the chapter as a whole .
• Concept Quiz: These quizzes target your learning to specific topic areas (e.g., Tax Rate
Quiz).
Question Help in MyAccountingLab
Assignments in MyAccountingLab include a variety of learning aides to support you as you work
through the problems. You can access these learning aides through the Question Help button.
Below is a description of the learning aides. The available learning aides vary depending on the
question.
Help Me Solve This provides support by guiding you step by step in solving a similar problem.
eText pages direct you to the area of the textbook that relates to the question topic.
Calculator provides a calculator.
Worked Solutions are step-by-step explanations that detail how to solve the problem using the
exact numbers and data presented in the problem. The full solutions are available when
reviewing submitted assignments.
Additional Learning Tools
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Use the Check Answer and Final Check buttons as you work through each problem.
Check Answer provides feedback for each stage of a problem so you know whether or not you
are on the right track before moving on.
Final Check provides you with the correct answer for a problem step that remains incorrect after
several attempts. This allows you to progress through to the next stage of the problem.
MyAccountingLab Study Plan
The Study Plan will help you to achieve mastery of each learning objective. The thumbtack icon
indicates recommendations for what to work on next. The recommendations are based on the
results from course quizzes, reviews, and homework assignments. Your Study Plan will include
items from learning objectives that you have not yet mastered and provide you with additional
practice.
The Quiz Me button provides a quiz to assess your mastery of the objective after you have
completed the practice questions.
Once you've mastered an objective, you will earn Mastery Points for that objective and the
Study Plan will recommend a new section for you to work on. The Study Plan Content page will
list the number of points you have earned alongside the number of points possible for each
objective.
*Note: If you retake course quizzes, reviews, and homework assignments, the new results will
be reflected in the Study Plan.
Minimum Technical Requirements
Obtain a Calculator
You will need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel,
for computational problems throughout this course. The recommended financial calculator is the
Texas Instruments BA-II Plus. You may only use an approved financial calculator during the
pre-assessment and assessment for this course. You are unable to use Excel during the
assessments.

Topics and Pacing
The topics and pacing suggest a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities.
It is provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow the pacing
guide carefully to complete the course in the suggested timeframe.
Use this printable checklist to track your progress through the course: C238 Taxation II Course
Checklist
Week 1
• Preparing for Success
• Federal Tax System as It Relates to Different Business Structures
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Week 2
• Tax Treatment for C Corporations
• Additional Tax Issues for C Corporations
Week 3.
• Tax Treatment for S Corporations
Week 4
• Tax Treatment for Partnerships
• Special Partnership Issues
Week 5
• Estates and Trusts
• Administrative Procedures of the IRS
Week 6
• Tax Research
• Final Steps

Tax Implications of Different Business Structures
Each type of business structure has different tax implications. Accountants need to understand
these differences in order to plan effectively and account for business operations.

Federal Tax System as It Applies to Different Business Structures
It is essential to understand the tax implications of different business structures. In this topic,
you will examine the tax advantages and disadvantages of different business structures,
including sole proprietorships, partnerships, C corporations, and S corporations. You will also
examine the tax advantages and disadvantages of equity and debt in a corporation's capital
structure.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3027.1.1: Tax Implications of Different Business Structures
The graduate evaluates the tax implications of different legal structures for business
entities.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Identify the different types of business organizations.
• Identify the tax advantages and disadvantages of sole proprietorships.
• Identify the tax advantages and disadvantages of partnerships.
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• Identify the tax advantages and disadvantages of C corporations.
• Identify the tax advantages and disadvantages of S corporations.
• Identify the tax advantages and disadvantages of equity and debt in a corporation's
capital structure.
Chapter 2: Capital Formation and Corporate Structure
Read Chapter 2: "Corporate Formations and Capital Structure" in Federal Taxation.
View the following videos:
•
•
•
•

Formation (4:04)
Financial Structure (5:48)
Business Entity Choice (18:54)
Formation of a Corporation (18:05)

Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Organization Forms Quiz.
• Take the Capital Structure Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 2 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab Practice:
• Complete the Chapter 2 Review.
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 2.

C Corporations
It is fundamental for accountants to be able to understand and apply the rules and processes for
the taxation of corporations.

Tax Treatment for C Corporations
In this topic you will learn essential tax rules for corporations, including how to determine a
corporation's taxable income, loss, and tax liability. You will also learn tax planning strategies for
corporations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3027.1.2: C Corporations
The graduate determines the tax treatment for C corporations.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•

Describe the elections that a corporation makes on its initial tax return.
Calculate a corporation's taxable income.
Calculate a corporation's income tax liability.
Calculate a personal service corporation's income tax liability.
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• Explain the special tax rules used for controlled groups in corporations.
• Describe tax planning strategies to minimize the amount of corporate taxes .
• Identify the items that must be reconciled in the schedules M-2 and M-3.
Chapter 3: The Corporate Income Tax
Read Chapter 3: "The Corporate Income Tax" in Federal Taxation.
View of the following video:
• Corporate Income (17:15)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
•
•
•
•

Take the Corporate Elections Quiz.
Take the Corporate Taxable Income Quiz .
Take the Corporate Tax Liability and Filing Quiz .
Complete the Chapter 3 Homework.

Optional MyAccountingLab practice:
• Chapter 3 Review
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 3.

Additional Tax Issues for C Corporations
In this topic you will explore various issues, including nonliquidating distributions and three
additional types of taxes for C corporations.
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 3027.1.2: C Corporations
The graduate determines the tax treatment for C corporations.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Calculate a corporation's earnings and profits .
Describe the tax impact of nonliquidating distributions to shareholders.
Determine the tax treatment for stock dividends and stock rights.
Determine the tax treatment for stock redemptions.
Explain the criteria that make a corporation liable for alternative minimum tax .
Analyze a corporation to determine if it is a personal holding company.
Describe the tax treatment for accumulated earnings .
Describe tax planning strategies that are associated with AMT and PHC.
Explain the rules that must be followed for corporate liquidations.
Explain the rules applicable to business entities under the Employer Shared
Responsibility provisions of the Affordable Care.
Chapter 4: Corporate Nonliquidating Distribution in General; Earning and Profits Tax
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Read Chapter 4: "Corporate

NonliQuidating

in Federal Taxation.

Distributions"

View the following video:
• Termination

(6:47)

Complete the following MyAccountingLab

activities:

• Take the Corporate Nonliquidating Distributions
• Complete the Chapter 4 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab

Quiz .

practice:

• Complete the Chapter 4 Review .
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 4.

Chapter 5: Other Corporate Tax Levies
Read Chapter 5: "Other Corporate Tax Levies" in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• Distributions

from a Corporation

Complete the following

(20:23)

MyAccountingLab

activities:

• Take the Miscellaneous Corporate Tax Levies Quiz .
• Take the Corporate Liquidation Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 5 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab

practice:

• Complete the Chapter 5 Review .
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 5.

Chapter 6: Corporate Liquidating

Distributions

Read pages 2-14 of Chapter 6: "Corporate

liquidating

Distributions"

View the following video:
• Corporate

Redemptions

and liquidations

Complete the following MyAccountingLab

(17:39)

activities:

• Take the Liquidating Distributions Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 6 Homework.

in Federal Taxation.
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Optional MyAccountingLab

activity:

• Complete the 5tudy plan activities for Chapter 6.

Web Activity: Affordable

Care Act

Review the resources listed below to learn more about the Affordable
rules for the employer shared responsibility payment.

Care Act, including the

• Affordable Care Act Planning for CPAs - Video
• Employer 5hared Responsibility Provisions
• The Affordable Care Act: 5ummary of Employer ReQuirements

S Corporations
5 corporations have specific tax rules and regulations that are different from those of C
corporations. It is important to understand the difference between the two types of corporations.

Tax Treatment for S Corporations
In this section, you will study the unique tax advantages,
apply specifically to 5 corporations.
This topic addresses

disadvantages,

and regulations that

the following competency:

• Competency 3027.1.3: 5 Corporations
The graduate determines

the tax treatment for 5 corporations.

This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•

Explain the tax advantages and disadvantages of an 5 corporation.
Describe the requirements for being eligible to elect 5 corporation status.
Identify which events trigger the termination of an 5 corporation.
Describe the tax treatment of ordinary income and separately stated items on an 5
corporation return.
• Describe the taxation of shareholders of 5 corporations .
• Calculate the stock and debt basis of an 5 corporation shareholder.
• Identify tax planning strategies for an 5 corporation.

Chapter 11: 5 Corporations
Read Chapter 11 "5 Corporations"

in Federal Taxation.

View the following videos:
• Eligibility. Elections. Terminations
• Income and Basis (19:09)

I __

Complete the following

MyAccountingLab

(15:44)

activities:
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• Take the S Corporations

Quiz.

• Complete the Chapter 11 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab

activities:

• Complete the Chapter 11 Review.
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 11.

Partnerships
Partnerships are a major type of business structure that is widely used in the U.S. It is essential
to learn the tax guidelines that apply specifically to partnerships.

Tax Treatment for Partnerships
In this section, you will learn about the different types of partnerships; specific rules for the
formation, taxation, and termination of partnerships; tax planning strategies for partnerships;
and the advantages of limited liability companies and limited liability partnerships.
This topic addresses

the following competency:

• Competency 3027.1.4: Partnerships
The graduate determines

the tax treatment for Partnerships.

This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Describe the types of partnerships.
Describe the tax treatment of partnership income.
Describe the tax consequences to a partnership of property or service contributions.
Explain the process of establishing a tax year for a partnership.
Describe the tax treatment of ordinary income and separately stated items on a
partnership return .
Determine the tax treatment for each partner's distributive share.
Describe the impact of liabilities on a partner's basis .
Describe the tax consequences for a partnership due to property sales.
Identify tax planning strategies for partnerships.

Chapter 9: Partnership

Formation and Operations

Read Chapter 9: "Partnership

Formation and Operation" in federaL Taxation.

View the following videos:
• Formation ad Basis (30:23)
• Flow-Through of Income and Losses (31 :37)
• Partnership Distributions (17:00)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab

activities:
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• Take the Partnerships Quiz Part 1.
• Complete the Chapter 9 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab

activity:

• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 9.

Special Partnership Issues
In this section, you will learn about special issues for partnerships and various types of
partnerships including publicly traded partnerships, limited liability companies, and limited
liability partnerships.
This topic addresses

the following competencies:

• Competency 3027.1.4: Partnerships
The graduate determines

the tax treatment for partnerships.

This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Identify the types of nonliquidating partnership distributions.
Determine the tax consequences when liquidating or selling a partnership.
Determine the tax co"nsequences when a partnership is terminated.
Describe the advantages of forming a limited liability company.
Describe the advantages of limited liability partnerships.

Chapter 10: Special Partnership Issues
Read Chapter: "10 Special Partnership

Issues" in FederaL Taxation.

View the following videos:
• Transactions with partners (17: 12)
• Sales and Terminations (18:33)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab

activities:

• Take the Special Partnership Issues Quiz.
• Take the Partnerships Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 10 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab

activities:

• Complete the Chapter 10 Review.
• Complete the Study Plan activities for Chapter 10.

Estates and Trusts
Estates and trusts are unique entities that are defined as fiduciaries.

The concept of fiduciaries
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opens up a new realm of tax rules and regulations to understand and apply.

Estates and Trusts
In this section, you will define trusts and estates and determine the taxable income of each.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3027.1.5: Estates and Trusts
The graduate determines the tax treatment for estates and trusts
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Describe trusts, including inter vivos trusts and testamentary trusts.
• Define an estate .
• Determine a trust's or estate's gross income tax liability .
• Determine a trust's distributable net income (ON I).
• Determine the taxable income of a simple trust and tax treatments for beneficiaries.
• Determine the taxable income for complex trusts and estates.
Chapter 14: Income Taxation of Trusts and Estates
Read Chapter 14: "Income Taxation of Trusts and Estates" in FederaL Taxation.
View the following videos:
• Federal Estate Tax (36:04)
• Income Taxation of Fiduciaries (20:09)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Estates and Trusts Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 14 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 14 Review.
• Complete the Study Plan for Chapter 14.

IRS Procedures
The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) directs tax collection and enforcement in the United States.
Accountants need to be thoroughly familiar with its procedures.

Administrative

Procedures of the IRS

In this section, you will describe IRS procedures including auditing, private letter rulings, tax
returns and payments, penalties, and the statute of limitations.
This topic addresses the following competency:

L
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• Competency 3027.1.6: IRS Procedures
The graduate describes the administrative procedures of the IRS
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Identify the steps of the auditing process .
Describe the process for requesting a private letter ruling.
List the due dates for tax returns and tax payments (including extensions).
Describe failure-to-file and failure-to-pay penalties .
Describe the penalties for negligence, substantial understatement, civil fraud, and
criminal fraud.
• Explain when the statute of limitations applies for tax returns.
Chapter 15: Administrative Procedures
Read Chapter 15: "Admjnistrative Procedures" in Federal Taxation.
Complete the following MyAccountjngLab activities:
• Take the IRS Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 15 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 15 Review .
• Complete the Study plan activities for Chapter 15.

Tax Research
Tax law is the foundation for accounting procedures. Central to your role as an accountant is
the process of researching, understanding, and applying tax law.

Tax Research
In this section, you will study the tax research process, describe sources of tax law, and use tax
research tools to resolve tax issues related to corporations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3027.1.7: Tax Research
The graduate researches tax issues related to the taxation of entities
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•

Describe the tax research process.
Describe the various sources of tax law.
Determine the relative weight of each tax law source in relation to one another.
Apply various tools and the tax research process to resolve a tax issue related to
corporations.
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Chapter 1: Tax Research
Read Chapter: "1 Tax Research" in Federal Taxation.
View the following video:
• Sources of Tax Authority and Research (19:57)
Complete the following MyAccountingLab activities:
• Take the Tax Research Quiz.
• Complete the Chapter 1 Homework.
Optional MyAccountingLab activities:
• Complete the Chapter 1 Review.

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! You are now prepared to complete
the associated assessment. If you have not already been directed to complete it, schedule; then
complete the assessment now.
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This course supports the assessment for Cost and Managerial Accounting. The course covers 3
competencies and represents 3 competency units.

Introduction
Overview
The Cost and Managerial Accounting course will cover managerial accounting as part of the
information managers' use for planning and controlling operations. It prepares students to
consider cost behavior and employ various cost methods. Job-order costing, process costing,
and activity-based costing methods will be covered, along with cost-benefit analysis, standard
costing, variance analysis, and cost reporting.
Getting Started
Welcome to Cost and Managerial Accounting! This course uses McGraw-Hili LearnSmart and
Connect. In LearnSmart, you can alternate between reading text and answering questions
about the reading. The interspersed questions will focus your studying on the important
concepts and help you to store this information effectively in your memory. If you need help
learning to use LearnSmart, click on the "Show coach" icon in the lower right-hand corner of
the LearnSmart screen. Connect activities include practice assignments, quizzes, guided
example videos, and tests to help you practice retrieving and applying your knowledge. You will
need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel, for
computational problems throughout this course. It is recommended that you complete the
topics in the order listed in the pacing outline. Competency will be demonstrated by the
successful completion of an objective assessment.
Watch the following video for an introduction to this course:

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 3 competencies:
• Competency 3033.1.1: Applying Cost Methods
The graduate applies appropriate cost methods to various production scenarios in order
to accurately account for costs of a product or service.
• Competency 3033.1.2: Decision Making
The graduate performs cost-benefit analyses for decision making .
• Competency 3033.1.3: Budgets and Performance Evaluation
The graduate prepares various forms of operating budgets, including a flexible budget
system for planning and evaluating the performance of business segments.
Course Instructor Assistance
As you prepare to successfully demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course
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instructors stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts,
mentors enjoy and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers,
and critical thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to help you prepare for another attempt. You should
expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, and you are
encouraged to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to
your success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to enroll manually or acquire other resources independently. Read the full instructions
provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically Enrolled Resources
You can access the learning resources listed in this section by clicking on the links provided
throughout the course. You may be prompted to log in to the WGU student portal to access the
resources.
Mcgraw-Hill Connect
McGraw-Hili Connect is a web-based assignment platform that allows students to pre-assess
their knowledge of the subject matter through completing LearnSmart and Connect activities,
reading the online textbook, watching chapter videos, completing homework assignments, and
taking quizzes. Students are required to click on the chapter and the appropriate links to
perform each task.
Connect practice assignments and quizzes have learning features to assist you as you
complete the activities. The "Hint" feature provides a guided example video. The "eBook &
Resources" feature directs you to the related section of the text. You can access these features
directly below each question.
The "Guided Example Videos" section of Connect includes video examples related to each
chapter.
Textbooks
• Garrison, R., Noreen, E., & Brewer, P. (2015). Managerial Accounting (15th ed.). New
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York: McGraw-Hili Education. ISBN: 978-0-07-802563-1
Minimum Technical Requirements
Obtain a Calculator
You will need a financial calculator or access to spreadsheet software, such as Microsoft Excel,
for computational problems throughout this course. The recommended financial calculator is the
Texas Instruments BA-II Plus. You may only use an approved financial calculator during the
pre-assessment and assessment for this course. You are unable to use Excel during the
assessments.

Pacing Guide
The pacing guide suggests a weekly structure for completing your learning activities. It does not
represent a mandatory schedule. Following the pacing guide carefully will help you complete the
course in the suggested timeframe.
Week 1
•
•
•
•

Preparing for Success
Managerial Accounting Cost Concepts
Job-Order Costing
Process Costing

Week 2
• Activity-Based Costing (ABC)
• Cost-Volume-Profit Relationships
Week 3
• Variable Costing
• Differential Analysis and Decision-Making
Week 4
• Preparing a Master Budget and Flexible Budget
• Flexible Budgets and Performance Evaluation
Week 5
• Standard Cost and Variances
• Performance Measurement in Decentralized Organizations
Week 6
• Final Steps
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Note: This pacing guide does not replace the course. Please continue to refer to the course for
a comprehensive list of the resources and activities.

The Student Success Center
The Student Success Center provides support and information on learning styles, study and
test-taking strategies, time- and stress-management strategies, computer skills, and many other
important academic skills. If you would like to work with a Student Success mentor to improve
your academic skills, please contact the SSC at studentsuccess@wgu.edu or visit the Student
Success Center website.

Applying Cost Methods
These topics introduce the role of managerial accounting, how costs in both a manufacturing
and service firm are classified, and then goes in depth on the three most widely used costing
systems: job-order costing, process costing, and activity-based costing.

Managerial Accounting and Cost Concepts
This topic will introduce how costs may be classified in managerial accounting and discuss the
impact these classifications have on both decision making and financial statements.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.1: Applying Cost Methods
The graduate applies appropriate cost methods to various production scenarios in order
to accurately account for costs of a product or service.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Describe cost classifications .
• Prepare income statements for a merchandising company using the traditional and
contribution formats.
• Define cost classifications used in making decisions.
Read: Chapter 1 Managerial Accounting: An Overview
Chapter 1 reviews accounting concepts that you've learned before. Skim chapter 1, paying
particular attention to Exhibit 1-1: Comparing Financial with Managerial Accounting.
Skim the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 1 Managerial Accounting: An Overview
Reflect on question 1-1 on page 19 to describe the specific role of managerial accounting.
Read: Chapter 2 Managerial Accounting and Cost Concepts
Chapter 2 focuses on the different types of cost classifications and income statement formats.
Read this chapter carefully, especially exhibit 2-9 on page 44: Comparing Traditional and
Contribution Format Income Statements for Merchandising Companies, which illustrates the
classifications. You may want to copy this in your notes to refer to later.
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Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 2 Managerial Accounting and Cost Concepts
Watch: Videos on Cost Classification
The following videos demonstrate how the cost classifications are recorded. The videos are
located below the links for each chapter. Watch the following videos in McGraw Hill Connect:
• Guided Example 2-4
• Guided Example 2-6
• Guided Example 2-8
Practice
These practice exercises will help you to determine various cost classifications for managerial
accounting purposes.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 2 Practice
• Chapter 2 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 2 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and help prepare
you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Job-Order Costing
This topic covers when job-order costing is used and how the three manufacturing costs-direct
labor, direct materials, and manufacturing overhead-are calculated to determine cost of goods
manufactured on both a total and per unit basis.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.1: Applying Cost Methods
The graduate applies appropriate cost methods to various production scenarios in order
to accurately account for costs of a product or service.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Identify various products and services that use job-order costing.
Describe the types of costs included in job order costing.
Calculate a predetermined overhead rate.
Calculate the applied manufacturing overhead.
Calculate the total cost and the per-unit cost of a job.
Calculate underapplied or overapplied overhead.
Prepare a journal entry to close out under- or overapplied overhead.
Calculate the manufacturing cost.
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• Calculate the cost of goods manufactured for an income statement.
• Calculate the cost of goods sold in an income statement.
Read: Chapter 3 Job-Order Costing
Read Chapter 3 Job-Order Costing. Pay particular attention to these major concepts:
• When job-order costing is appropriate
• The three broad cost categories:
o direct materials
o direct labor
o manufacturing overhead
• The difference between a traditional income statement and a contribution format
statement
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 3 Job-Order Costing
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of using job-order systems to
calculate costs.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 3 Practice
• Chapter 3 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 3 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Process Costing
Process costing differs from job-order costing and is used in different types of businesses. In
this topic you will learn when process costing is suitable and then calculate total product costs
and per equivalent unit costs using process costing.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.1: Applying Cost Methods
The graduate applies appropriate cost methods to various production scenarios in order
to accurately account for costs of a product or service.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Identify various products that use process costing.
• Explain how various costs are treated differently in job-order costing versus process

l_
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•
•
•
•
Read:

costing.
Calculate the number of equivalent units.
Calculate the cost per equivalent unit.
Calculate the total cost of ending work in progress and goods transferred out.
Prepare a cost reconciliation report.
Chapter 4 Process Costing

Chapter 4 clarifies the characteristics and requirements for process costing.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 4 process Costing
Practice: Distinguishing Job-Order and Process Costing
Apply your knowledge of the differences between job-order and process costing and the journal
entries in a process costing system by reflecting on the following questions at the end of chapter
4 in the e-text. The Guided Example videos can help if you have trouble:
Chapter 4 process Costing
o Question 4-1 on page
o Question 4-2 on page
o Question 4-5 on page
o Question 4-6 on page
Practice
o

159 of
159 of
159 of
159 of

the
the
the
the

e-text
e-text
e-text
e-text

These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of process costing.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 4 Practice
• Chapter 4 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 4 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Activity-Based

Costi ng (ABC)

Activity-based costing (ABC) is a costing method that is designed to provide managers with cost
information for strategic and other decisions that potentially affect capacity and therefore have
"fixed" as well as variable costs. Activity-based costing is ordinarily used as a supplement to a
company's usual costing system. Most organizations that use activity-based costing have two
costing systems-the official costing system that is used for preparing external financial reports
and the activity-based costing system that is used for internal decision making and for managing
activities.
topic addressesthe followingcompetency:
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• Competency 3033.1.1: Applying Cost Methods
The graduate applies appropriate cost methods to various production scenarios in order
to accurately account for costs of a product or service.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
Read:

Identify when it is appropriate to use activity-based costing.
Assign costs to cost pools.
Calculate activity rates per pool.
Assign overhead costs to cost objects.
Chapter 7 Activity-Based Costing: A Tool to Aid Decision Making

Activity-based costing is an efficient tool to better allocate overhead to products. When reading
this chapter, be sure and focus on how the various cost drivers are determined and then used to
allocate overhead costs.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 7 Activity-Based Costing: A Tool to Aid Decision Making
Reflect on question 7-1 on page 315 to distinguish activity-based costing from traditional
costing.
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of activity-based costing.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 7 Practice
• Chapter 7 Quiz

Decision Making
Managers use cost accounting information to make a variety of decisions. In this section we will
look at how we can use cost accounting to make decisions regarding break-even points, at what
level of sales a desired profit will be realized, and determine if we should continue the
production and sale of various products.

Cost-Volume-Profit

Relationships

In this topic we will see how cost-volume-profit (CVP) analysis helps managers make many
important decisions, such as what products and services to offer, what prices to charge, what
marketing strategy to use, and what cost structure to maintain. Its primary purpose is to
estimate how profits are affected by changes in sales and the mix of fixed and variable costs.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.2: Decision Making
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The graduate performs cost-benefit analyses for decision making.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Explain how changes in activity affect contribution margin and net operating income.
Interpret a cost-volume graph.
Determine the break-even point given a product mix .
Calculate the sales level needed to reach a desired target profit.
Calculate the impact of cost changes.
Calculate the margin of safety.
Calculate the degree of operating leverage .
Predict changes in operating income using the operating leverage .
Calculate the break-even point for a multiproduct company .
Calculate the change in the break-even point given a shift in sales.

Read: Chapter 5 Cost-Volume-Profit

Relationships

This chapter covers cost-volume-profit (CVP) analysis and how it can help managers make
many important decisions, such as what products and services to offer, what prices to charge,
what marketing strategy to use, and what cost structure to maintain. Its primary purpose is to
estimate how profits are affected by changes in sales and the mix of fixed and variable costs.
After reading this chapter you should be able to calculate break-even points and how changes
in sales and/or costs affect profitability.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 5 Cost-Volume-Profit Relationships
Reflect on question 5-1 on page 215.
Practice

These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of how cost-volume-profit
(CVP) analysis helps managers make many important decisions.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 5 Practice
• Chapter 5 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 5 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Variable Costing
This topic describes two applications of contribution format income statements. First, it explains
how manufacturing companies can prepare variable costing income statements, which rely on
the contribution format, for internal decision making purposes, and then the variable costing
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approach will be contrasted with absorption costing income statements.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.2: Decision Making
The graduate performs cost-benefit analyses for decision making.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Explain the difference between variable costing and absorption costing.
Prepare an income statement using both absorption costing and variable costing.
Identify the costs included in a segment income statement.
Explain the difference between common fixed cost and traceable fixed cost.
Calculate companywide and segment break-even points with traceable fixed cost.
Chapter 6 Variable Costing and Segment Reporting: Tools for Management

This chapter covers two applications of contribution format income statements. First, it explains
how manufacturing companies can prepare variable costing income statements, which rely on
the contribution format, for internal decision making purposes. Next, the variable costing
approach will be contrasted with absorption costing income statements. After reading, you
should be able to prepare a contribution format income statement and distinguish variable
costing from full absorption costing.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 6 Variable Costing and Segment Reporting: Tools for Management
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of variable costing.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 6 Practice
• Chapter 6 Quiz

Differential Analysis and Decision Making
Every decision involves choosing from among at least two alternatives. In making a decision,
the costs and benefits of one alternative must be compared to the costs and benefits of other
alternatives. The key to making such comparisons is differential analysis-focusing on the costs
and benefits that differ between the alternatives.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.2: Decision Making
The graduate performs cost-benefit analyses for decision making.
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This topic highlights the following objectives:
• Analyze costs and benefits for relevancy .
• Calculate the impact on profits when a product or business segment has been
discontinued .
• Analyze whether to continue or discontinue a product or business segment.
• Calculate the impact on profits from a make or buy decision .
• Analyze a make or buy decision .
• Calculate the impact on profits of a special order.
• Determine the most profitable use of a scarce resource.
• Determine the value of obtaining more of a scarce resource.
• Determine whether it is more profitable to sell at a split-off point or to process further.
Read: Chapter 12 Differential Analysis: The Key to Decision Making
This chapter covers how cost accounting can be used to make various decisions. In making
these decisions, managers must choose between alternatives and compare costs and benefits
of the different alternatives. After reading, you should be able to apply the tools of differential
analysis to make managerial decisions.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 12 Differential Analysis: The Key to Decision Making
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of how cost accounting can
be used to make decisions.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 12 Practice
• Chapter 12 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 12 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Budgets and Performance Evaluation
Budgets are a planning and control tool used by managers to better manage their business and
are often used to evaluate performance of both employees and products. In this section we will
learn how budgets are prepared and how they can be used to evaluate performance.

Preparing a Master Budget and Flexible Budget
In this topic you will learn the importance of budgeting to an organization and the various types
of budgets that are required to complete a master budget.
This topic addresses the following competency:
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• Competency 3033.1.3: Budgets and Performance Evaluation
The graduate prepares various forms of operating budgets, including a flexible budget
system for planning and evaluating the performance of business segments.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Identify the advantages of budgeting.
Calculate components of a sales budget.
Calculate components of a production budget.
Calculate components of a direct materials budget.
Calculate components of a direct labor budget.
Calculate components of a manufacturing overhead budget.
Calculate components of a selling and administrative expense budget.
Calculate components of a cash budget.
Calculate components of a budgeted income statement.
Prepare a budgeted balance sheet.
Chapter 8 Master Budgeting

This chapter covers the importance of budgeting in a business environment. After reading, you
should be able to prepare a master budget and comprehend the role budgeting plays in
planning and controlling a business.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 8 Master Budgeting
Reflect on questions 8-1,8-2,8-3,
Practice

and 8-4 on page 370.

These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of the importance of
budgeting in a business environment.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Chapter
Chapter
Chapter
Chapter
Chapter
Chapter

8
8
8
8
8
8

Practice:
Practice:
Practice:
Practice:
Practice
Quiz

Part
Part
Part
Part

1
2
3
4

In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 8 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Flexible Budgets and Performance Evaluation
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In this topic, you will look at how budgets can be used to guide operations through performance
evaluation. The analysis of variances from budgeted projections is a key tool used in controlling
and monitoring business operations.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.3: Budgets and Performance Evaluation
The graduate prepares various forms of operating budgets, including a flexible budget
system for planning and evaluating the performance of business segments.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Explain the purpose of a flexible budget.
Calculate the bottom line of a flexible budget.
Calculate activity variances .
Calculate revenue and spending variances.
Interpret activity variance and revenue and spending variance.
Chapter 9 Flexible Budgets and Performance Analysis

This chapter covers how budgets are used to assist managers in evaluating performance. After
reading, you should be able to prepare a flexible budget and interpret variances.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 9 Flexible Budgets and performance Analysis
Reflect on questions 9-1 and 9-2 on page 410.
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of how budgets are used to
assist managers in evaluating performance.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 9 Practice
• Chapter 9 Quiz
In the Cohort Tests area, complete either the timed or not timed version of the Chapter 9 test.
The timed version will provide practice for taking tests with a time constraint and will help
prepare you for the course pre-assessment and objective assessment.

Standard Costs and Variances
This section introduces standard costing and resultant variance analysis. When analyzing
variances from established standards, you must be able to determine if a variance is favorable
or unfavorable and what might have given rise to such a variance and what organization, unit,
or individual was responsible for any variance.
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This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.3: Budgets and Performance Evaluation
The graduate prepares various forms of operating budgets, including a flexible budget
system for planning and evaluating the performance of business segments.
This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
Read:

Calculate direct materials price and quantity variances.
Calculate direct labor rate and efficiency variances.
Calculate variable overhead rate and the variable overhead efficiency variances.
Interpret material, labor, and variable overhead variances.
Chapter 10 Standard Costs and Variances

This chapter introduces standard cost and resultant variance analysis. After reading, you should
be able to analyze variances from established standards and determine if a variance is
favorable or unfavorable. In addition you should understand what might have given rise to such
a variance and what organization, unit, or individual was responsible for any variance.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 10 Standard Costs performance Analysis
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of standard costs and
variances.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 10 Practice
• Chapter 10 Quiz

Performance Measurement in Decentralized Organizations
In this section, you will look at performance measurement tools that a manager may use in a
decentralized organization. In a decentralized organization, decision-making authority is spread
throughout the organization rather than being confined to a few top executives. Decentralized
organizations need responsibility accounting systems that link lower-level managers'
decision-making authority with accountability for the outcomes of those decisions. The term
"responsibility center" is used for any part of an organization where the manager has control
over and is accountable for cost, profit, or investments.
This topic addresses the following competency:
• Competency 3033.1.3: Budgets and Performance Evaluation
The graduate prepares various forms of operating budgets, including a flexible budget
system for planning and evaluating the performance of business segments.

J
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This topic highlights the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
Read:

Identify the advantages and disadvantages of decentralized organizations.
Calculate return on investment.
Calculate residual income.
Identify nonfinancial performance measures.
Identify components to be included in a balanced scorecard.
Chapter 11 Performance Measurement in Decentralized Organizations

This chapter covers performance measurement tools that managers may use in a decentralized
organization. In a decentralized organization, decision-making authority is spread throughout
the organization rather than being confined to a few top executives. After reading this chapter
you should understand why decentralized organizations need responsibility accounting
systems that link lower-level managers' decision-making authority with accountability for the
outcomes of those decisions.
Read the following in Managerial Accounting:
• Chapter 11 performance Measurement in Decentralized Organizations
Reflect on questions 11-1 and 11-2 on page 497.
Practice
These practice exercises will enable you to apply your knowledge of performance measurement
tools.
Complete the following activities in Connect:
• Chapter 11 Practice
• Chapter 11 Quiz

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! You are now prepared to complete
the associated assessment. If you have not already been directed to complete it, schedule and
complete the assessment now.
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This course supports the assessments for Concepts in Auditing and Information Systems. The
course covers 9 competencies and represents 4 competency units.

Introduction
Imagine you have been hired by a regional accounting firm that audits a local manufacturer.
You are assigned to the audit team. The lead certified public accountant (CPA) assigns you the
task of doing the audit steps on accounts receivable. What is the first step you need to take?
You will be prepared to take on an assignment like this as a result of developing your
competence through this course.
Accounting is an information and measurement system that identifies, records, and
communicates relevant, reliable, and comparable information about an organization's activities
and investments. Accounting is often called the "language of business" because all
organizations set up an accounting information system to communicate data to help people
make better decisions. An accounting information system is really a database. For some small
businesses, it could be a file cabinet and some ledger pages. For large businesses, the
database could be encompassed in a large system of interrelated modules. In either case there
needs to be a system of controls that work to prevent inaccuracies in any data that could affect
the validity and reliability of the financial statements. The financial audit is conducted by a CPA
team that does testing of the accounts to provide assurance that the financial statements
accurately represent the financial well-being of the company. The CPA firm provides an opinion
at the end of the audit. During your assessment preparation, you will study the opinion options
that can be issued.
Watch the following welcome video for an introduction to this course:

Note: To download this video, right-click the following link and choose "Save as... ": download

~.
Competencies
This course provides guidance to help you demonstrate the following 9 competencies:

l__

• Competency 302.1.1: Nature and Purpose
The student understands the nature and purpose of information systems .
• Competency 302.1.2: Internal Control Systems
The student understands the need for and uses of internal control systems.
• Competency 302.1.3: Information System Auditing
The student understands information system auditing.
• Competency 302.4.1: Public Accountants
The student understands the roles, responsibilities, and professional standards of the
public accountant.
• Competency 302.4.2: Code of Professional Conduct
The student understands the Code of Professional Conduct for public accountants.
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• Competency

302.4.3: Internal Control Structure

The student understands Internal Control Structure .
• Competency

302.4.4: Auditing Financial Statements

The student understands how to audit financial statements.
• Competency

302.4.5: Audit Documentation

The student understands what information to include in each form of audit
documentation.
• Competency

302.4.6: Assurance Services

The student is knowledgeable about assurance services unrelated to auditing but
provided by auditors.
Course Instructor Assistance

As you prepare to demonstrate competency in this subject, remember that course instructors
stand ready to help you reach your educational goals. As subject matter experts, mentors enjoy
and take pride in helping students become reflective learners, problem solvers, and critical
thinkers. Course instructors are excited to hear from you and eager to work with you.
Successful students report that working with a course instructor is the key to their success.
Course instructors are able to share tips on approaches, tools, and skills that can help you
apply the content you're studying. They also provide guidance in assessment preparation
strategies and troubleshoot areas of deficiency. Even if things don't work out on your first try,
course instructors act as a support system to guide you through the revision process. You
should expect to work with course instructors for the duration of your coursework, so you are
welcome to contact them as soon as you begin. Course instructors are fully committed to your
success!

Preparing for Success
The information in this section is provided to detail the resources available for you to use as you
complete this course.

Learning Resources
The learning resources listed in this section are required to complete the activities in this course.
For many resources, WGU has provided automatic access through the course. However, you
may need to manually enroll in or independently acquire other resources. Read the full
instructions provided to ensure that you have access to all of your resources in a timely manner.
Automatically

Enrolled Resources

You will be automatically enrolled at the activity level for the following learning resources.
Simply click on the links provided in the activities to access the learning materials.
VitalSource

E- Texts

The following textbooks are available to you as e-texts within this course. You will be directly
linked to the specific readings required within the activities that follow .
• Simkin, M.G., Rose, J.M. & Strand-Norman, C.A. (2011). Core concepts of accounting
information systems (12th ed.). Hoboken, NJ: John Wiley and Sons. ISBN:
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9781118022306
• Whittington, R., & Pany, K. (2010). Principles of auditing and other assurance services
(17th ed.). New York: McGraw-HilI. ISBN: 0073379654
Note: This e-text is available to you as part of your program tuition and fees, but you may
purchase a hard copy at your own expense through VitalSource or a retailer of your choice. If
you choose to purchase the text from a retailer, please use the ISBN listed to ensure that you
receive the correct edition.
Directions for purchasing a printed text from VitalSource:
1. Access the text using the course links.
2. Click on the Main Menu Icon in the upper left corner.
3. Click Print on Demand
4. If your text is available, it will be listed.
5. Click on the text and follow the prompts for purchasing the book.
For more information, review the print on Demand Option for VitalSource Texts; Help
documentation.
SkillSoft and Books 24x7
You will access SkillSoft items within this course. For more information on accessing SkillSoft
items, please see the "Accessing SkillSoft Learning Resources" page.
Other Learning Resources
You will use the following learning resources for this course.
Financial Accounting Standards Boards Database
Activities within this course will direct you to utilize the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) database. Here is the log-in information for access to the FASB Codification database.
Log in at the link above using the following:
• Username: AAA52071
• Password: 2EXZr8V

Pacing Guide
The pacing guide suggests a weekly structure to pace your completion of learning activities. It is
provided as a suggestion and does not represent a mandatory schedule. Follow the pacing
guide carefully to complete the course in the suggested timeframe .
• Pacing Guide: Concepts in Auditing and Information Systems
Note: This pacing guide does not replace the course. Please continue to refer to the course for
a comprehensive list of the resources and activities.

Accounting Information Systems
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The modern computerized accounting database is much like the manual system you learned
about in your studies during the accounting cycle. It has a system of journals, ledger pages, and
reports that make the work of the accountant easier. However, it is still important for an
accountant to know the basics so the system can be set up correctly to meet the users' needs.
Accounting information systems come in various forms, ranging from clients with their database
in a shoebox to very complex systems. Each of these examples, plus any systems in between,
is a collection of data and processing procedures that creates needed information for its users."

An Introduction to Accounting Information Systems
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• What is the difference between transaction processing systems, management
information systems, and decision support systems?
• How is a flowchart used?
• How is the accounting information system documented?
• What are effective coding systems used in AIS?
• How do accounting information software packages differ?
• What are the roles of accounting information systems in e-commerce?
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.1.1: Nature and Purpose
The student understands the nature and purpose of information systems.
Basics of Accounting Information Systems
Read the following chapters in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 1 ("Accounting Information Systems and the Accountant")
• chapter 2 ("Information Technology and AISs")
• chapter 6 ("Documenting Accounting Information Systems")
After reading these chapters, you should understand the basics of accounting information
systems, the information flow charts can provide, and how flowcharts are used to document the
business processes.
Review Chapters
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("Accounting Information Systems and the Accountant")
• chapter 2 ("Information Technology and AISs")
• chapter 6 ("Documenting Accounting Information Systems")

Nature and Purpose of Large-Scale Information Systems
The large scale systems studied in this section are more complex and serve many departments
in a firm. This adds to the risks that data could be misused. The system administrator needs to
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create a control environment that limits access for most users to certain parts of the system.
Accounting information systems come in various sizes to meet the needs different businesses.
In this section, you will learn about the different systems that are available.

Nature and Purpose of Enterprise Resource Planning Systems
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• How do accounting information software packages differ by business size?
• Do enterprise resource planning systems add productivity to a business enterprise?
• What are the roles of accounting information systems in e-commerce?
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.1.1: Nature and Purpose
The student understands the nature and purpose of information systems.
Enterprise Software
Read the following chapters in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 14 ("Accounting on the Internet")
• chapter 15 ("Accounting and Enterprise Software")
After reading these chapters, you should understand the use of enterprise software and the
advantages it provides to a broad range of businesses.
Review Chapters
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 14 ("Accounting on the Internet")
• chapter 15 ("Accounting and Enterprise Software")

Internal Control for Information Systems
In your study for this section, you will learn about the protections that should be in place in a
business to protect its information system. It is imperative that a company has controls in the
system to help ensure data validity. The effectiveness of the company would certainly be
affected if the underlying information was seriously compromised.
Internal controls are necessary to provide protection for company assets. This study focuses on
accounting information systems. You will also cover internal controls in the auditing section of
this course.

Information System Internal Controls
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• How could unethical behavior related to the use of information systems impact a
business?
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•
•
•
•
•

How can a business secure its electronic financial data?
What are some vulnerabilities and threats in information systems?
How would input controls, processing controls, and output controls be used?
What are parts of an information security system?
How do disaster risk management practices benefit a company?

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.1.2: Internal Control Systems
The student understands the need for and uses of internal control systems.
Irregularities
Read the following chapter in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 11 ("Computer Crime. Ethics. and Privacy")
After reading this chapter, you should understand irregularities that have or could occur and
how a company can protect itself from these issues.
Review Chapter 11
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 11 ("Computer Crime. Ethics. and Privacy")
Internal Control Systems
Read the following chapter in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 9 ("Introduction to Internal Control Systems")
After reading this chapter, you should understand security and control issues at the technology
level and what a company can do to protect sensitive data.
Review Chapter 9
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 9 ("Introduction to Internal Control Systems")
Computer Controls
Read the following chapter in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 10 ("Computer Controls for Organizations and Accounting Information
Systems")
After reading this chapter, you should understand security and control issues at the technology
level and what a company can do to protect sensitive data.
Review Chapter 10
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Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 10 ("Computer Controls for Organizations and Accounting Information
Systems")

Information System Auditing
You will study various aspects of integrated accounting software and enterprise systems in
some detail. Once you understand the software relationships, you will discover some of the
important auditing activities associated with computerized accounting information systems.
How do accounting and enterprise resource planning systems integrate to help create an
internal control system that will provide the security needed for company resources? To audit
information technology, the auditor must assess risk, use test data, and audit using data with
known outcomes.

Information Technology Auditing
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•
•

What are the techniques used for analyzing internal control systems?
How do internal auditing and external auditing of information systems differ?
What are information system audits?
What potential risks must be evaluated during an information system audit?
What control procedures should be used to minimize risks in an information system?

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.1.3: Information System Auditing
The student understands information system auditing.
Developing Accounting Information Systems
Read the following chapter in Core Concepts of Accounting Information Systems:
• chapter 13 ("Deyeloping and Implementing Effectiye Accounting Information Systems")
After reading this chapter, you should understand how internal controls are used to provide
protection for a company's information system.
Review Chapter 13
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 13 ("Developing and Implementing Effective Accounting Information Systems")
SkillSoft Resources for Chapter 13
Review the following SkillSoft lessons:
• Internal Auditing
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• Auditing for Internal Control and Risk Assessment
• External Auditing
Information Technology Auditing
Read the following chapter in Core Concepts of Accounting Information System:
• chapter 12 ("Information Technology Auditing")
After reading this chapter, you should understand the audit steps necessary to ascertain that
the protections provided for the accounting information system are working.
Review Chapter 12
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 12 ("Information Technology Auditing")
SkillSoft Resources for Chapter 14
Review the following SkillSoft lesson:
• Banking Industry Qyerview: Version 4

Auditor Roles, Responsibilities, and Professional
Standards
In the audit process, the CPA firm conducts a series of tests on the financial statements to
provide sufficient evidence that the amount reported for each account is fairly represented.
Publicly traded corporations are required to have an independent audit of their financial
statements. Why? As you study, you will discover the reasons for conducting an audit and the
procedures used during an audit.

What Is an Audit and How Is It Used?
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•

Why is a financial statement audit required?
What are the auditor's responsibilities in performing an audit engagement?
How are generally accepted auditing standards used?
What analytical procedures are used during an audit?

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.1: Public Accountants
The student understands the roles, responsibilities, and professional standards of the
public accountant.
Audit
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Read in the following chapters in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 2 ("Professional Standards")
• chapter 5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
After reading these chapters, you should understand why an audit is required, what the auditor
does during the audit, and what standards are used to guide the auditor's actions when
performing the independent audit.
Review Chapters

Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 2 ("Professional Standards")
• chapter 5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
SkillSoft Resources

Review the following SkillSoft lesson:
• Introduction to Auditing
Interactive

Quizzes

Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the Public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 2 ("Professional Standards")
• chapter 5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
Review any items you answered incorrectly.

Planning the Audit and Assessing Risk
There are various levels of risk an auditor must assess when undertaking an audit. You will
study these risk types and determine the impact they would have on audit results.
Publicly-traded corporations are required to have an independent audit of their financial
statements. In this segment, you will study audit engagements and risks.

Audit Planning and Risk Assessment
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•
•

How is an audit engagement planned?
What are some types of accounting engagements?
What is included in an audit engagement letter?
What is the relationship between audit risk and materiality?
What risks are present that affect the procedures to be used during an audit?

-

----------------------------------------,
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This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.1: Public Accountants
The student understands the roles, responsibilities, and professional standards of the
public accountant.
The Audit Process
Read the following chapters in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
• chapter 6 ("Audit Planning. Understanding the Client. Assessing Risks. and
Responding")
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
• chapter 19 ("Additional Assurance Services: Historical Financial Information")
After reading these chapters, you should understand the audit engagement letter, the audit
planning process, and the risks in the audit process that the auditor must consider.
Review
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 6 ("Audit Planning. Understanding the Client. Assessing Risks. and
Responding")
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
• chapter 19 ("Additional Assurance Services: Historical Financial Information")
Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 6 ("Audit Planning. Understanding the Client. Assessing Risks. and
Responding")
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
• chapter 19 ("Additional Assurance Services: Historical Financial Information")
Review any items you answered incorrectly.

Code of Professional Conduct
Everyone has different views on ethics. Your views might differ somewhat from the view of the
person working with you, thus creating the possibility of conflict. The auditing standards and
related guidelines set forth very specific prohibitions, designed to remove any doubts about the
expected ethics in a situation.
Auditors perform an audit based on the generally accepted auditing standards. Independence
from the client is required. In this section, you will discover some other standards for
independence and the impact the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has on corporate reporting.

Ethics and Independence Requirements
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After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• How do the ethical standards set by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA), Securities Exchange Commission (SEC), and Government
Accounting Office (GAO) differ?
• How do rules of independence impact the CPA and the client?
• What is prohibited by the code of professional conduct?
• How did the Sarbanes-Oxley Act change the audit process?
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.2: Code of Professional Conduct
The student understands the Code of Professional Conduct for public accountants.
Independence Rules
Read the following chapters in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 3 ("professional Ethics")
After reading these chapters, you should understand independence rules. Graduates hired to
perform audits will be required to maintain these guidelines.
Review
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 3 ("Professional Ethics")
SkiliSoft Resources
Review the following SkillSoft lesson:
• Banking Industry Overview: Version 4
Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 3 ("Professional Ethics")

Internal Control Structure
The internal controls used in a company are procedures used to protect the company from
improper use of company resources.
Auditors begin audit testing with an assessment of the company's internal control. If the internal
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control tests prove that the controls provide the desired protections, the auditor will perform less
stringent testing.

Internal Controls
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• What elements should be included in an internal control structure?
• How would an auditor test the relationship between control risk and the internal control
structure?
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.3: Internal Control Structure
The student understands Internal Control Structure.
Internal Control Systems
Read the following chapter in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
After reading this chapter, you should understand how an internal control system is established
and whether the established system will be effective.
Review
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 7 ("Internal Control")
Review any items you answered incorrectly.

Auditing Financial Statements
Audit tests are conducted on two levels. Compliance testing is used by the auditor to ascertain if
the internal control structure is working correctly. Substantive testing is more exhaustive and is
used to varying degrees, depending on the compliance testing results. Risk is also assessed.
Testing levels are also impacted by the risk assessment.
The audit is conducted on individual accounts and based on sampling techniques. Auditors
consider whether a deviation from the reported financial statement amount is significant enough
to cause a user to make incorrect assumptions about the company's financial statements. The
management representation letter is used to ensure that management takes responsibility for
the financial statements.
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Audit Considerations
After completing the. activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

What is materiality?
What audit sampling is used by the auditor?
What is evidential matter?
How is evidential matter used?
What should a CPA include in a standard management representation letter?
What information should the entity's internal control structure report include?

This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.4: Auditing Financial Statements
The student understands how to audit financial statements.
Auditor and the Client
Read or review the following chapters in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
•
•
•
•

chapter
chapter
chapter
chapter

1 ("The Role of the Public Accountant in the American Economy")
5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
9 ("Audit Sampling")
16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")

After the review and reading of these chapters, you should understand the auditor's interaction
with the client prior to the audit and the steps in the audit process.
Review
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the Public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
• chapter 9 ("Audit Sampling")
• chapter 16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
Attributes Sampling
Read problem 9-53 in chapter 9 ("Audit Sampling") of Principles of Auditing and Other
Assurance Services.
In a one paragraph reflection, identify one incorrect assumption, statement, or inappropriate
application of attributes sampling in Baker's procedures.
Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the public Accountant in the American Economy")
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• chapter 5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
• chapter 9 ("Audit Sampling")
• chapter 16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
Review any items you answered incorrectly.

Audit Documentation
The auditor issues an opinion after completing the audit. The opinion expressed will be one of
four different options. During this section's study, be sure to identify the differences in the
opinions available and consider the impact of each opinion on the company.
Many documents are included in the audit process and maintained in the audit working papers
file when completed. In this section, you will study some decision support documentation and
then the final audit report that becomes part of the company's annual report.

Audit Report
After completing the activities in this section, you will be able to answer the following questions:
• What information is included in the standard audit report?
• What information is included in an audit exit interview?
• What can the CPA learn from the attorney representation letter?
This topic addresses the following competencies:
• Competency 302.4.5: Audit Documentation
The student understands what information to include in each form of audit
documentation.
Opinion Documentation
Read or review the following chapters in Principles of Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
•
•
•
•

chapter
chapter
chapter
chapter

5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
7 ("Internal Control")
17 ("Auditors' Reports")

After the review and reading of these chapters, you should understand accounting opinions, the
attorney representation letter, and other documentation used to support the expressed opinion.
Review
Review the PowerPoint slides at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
•
•
•
•

chapter
chapter
chapter
chapter

5 ("Audit Evidence and Documentation")
16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
7 ("Internal Control")
17 ("Auditors' Reports")
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Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive
•
•
•
•

chapter
chapter
chapter
chapter

quizzes at the textbQQk cQmpaniQn website fQr the fQIIQwing chapters:

5 ("Audit Evidence and DQcumentatiQn")
16 ("Auditing OperatiQns and CQmpleting the Audit")
7 ("Internal CQntrol")
17 ("AuditQrs' RepQrts")

Review any items YQUanswered incQrrectly.

Assurance Services
In this sectiQn, YQUwill study SQme Qther services that accQunting firms Qffer. Only CPA firms
can cQmplete an audit, but Qther accQunting firms can dQ cQmpilatiQns, reviews, and
management

advising.

CPA firms are asked tQ provide a variety Qf different services. In this sectiQn, YQUwill discQver
SQme Qf these Qther services, including cQmpiiatiQns, reviews, and the services needed by Qther
types Qf entities.

Services Other Than the Audit
After cQmpleting the activities in this sectiQn, YQUwill be able tQ answer the fQIIQwing questiQns:
•
•
•
•

What Qther services can CPA firms provide?
What is an attestatiQn engagement?
HQW dQ gQvernmental auditing standards and financial auditing standards differ?
DQ gQvernmental regulatiQns have an effect Qn financial statement audits?

This tQpic addresses

the fQIIQwing cQmpetencies:

• Competency 302.4.6: Assurance Services
The student is knQwledgeable
prQvided by auditQrs.

Other Accounting

abQut assurance services unrelated tQ auditing but

Services

Read Qr review the fQIIQwing chapters in Principles Qf Auditing and Other Assurance Services:
• chapter 1 ("The RQle Qf the public AccQuntant in the American
• chapter 16 ("Auditing OperatiQns and Completing the Audit")
• chapter 21 ("Internal. OperatiQnal. and CQmpliance Auditing")

ECQnQmy")

After the review and reading Qf these chapters, YQUshQuld understand the Qther services
Qffered by accQunting firms.

Review
Review the PQwerPQint slides at the textbQQk cQmpaniQn website fQr the fQIIQwing chapters:
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• chapter 1 ("The Role of the Public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
• chapter 21 ("Internal. Operational. and Compliance Auditing")
Interactive Quizzes
Take the interactive quizzes at the textbook companion website for the following chapters:
• chapter 1 ("The Role of the Public Accountant in the American Economy")
• chapter 16 ("Auditing Operations and Completing the Audit")
• chapter 21 ("Internal. Operational. and Compliance Auditing")
Review any items you answered incorrectly.

Final Steps
Congratulations on completing the activities in this course! This course has prepared you to
complete the assessments associated with this course. If you have not already been directed to
complete the assessments, schedule and complete your assessments now.
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The email addressisNNvAGA@GMail.com.

We will then respond acknowledging

your registration.

If possible,

please register by noon on Tuesday, April 8, 2019. For AGA members the webinar is complimentary.
For non-AGA members the fee is $10 collected at the webinar (EFT/check or cash). So please become a member
to receive valuable benefits. The day before the webinar, we will email you information and web links for the
presentation

materials. Please bring the materials with you. Afterward,

we will email information

to complete
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the reality of the fraud triangle. In this webinar, we will cover a number of strategies to prevent fraud including
fraud awareness training, ethics training, forensic analytics, internal control framework testing, goal setting, core
values, fear of failure, transparency, and positive organizational behavior and how those would have affected
this fraud.
Speaker
Nathan Mueller
Fraud & Ethics Awareness Speaker, Co-a\Jthor of Lessons From An $8 Million Fraud
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What was missing at ING that allowed the Fraud?
Lack of segregation of duties (Check Retrieval)

•
•

Lessons learned on prevention
Importance of controls

•

Physical safeguards (Checks, inventory)

Please join us for two hours of lively discussion about this important
speaker's commentary, about 20 minutes is set aside for Q&A.
Association of Government Accountants,
(Nv. State vendor number 132000845)
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My Fraud
- PeopleSoft Implementation
- Get Out of Debt
-Ace
- How I was Caught
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Procedures and Processes
• Requesting and Procuring Checks
• Hiding Fraud from Company and Auditors
• Making it Disappear
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What Was Missing
• Missing Oversight (Reconciliations)
• Lack of Control (Approvals)
• Lack of Segregation of Duties (Check Retrieval)
• Sharing Passwords

IL'- GA
~

@

WEBINARS

1)

::>

0
!.-..

LL

0
C

0
U")

!.-..

Q)

0....

t

0)

c

lo.-

0-

Q)

c

\J

::>

0

0-

-I

0

+-

(/)

-0

Q)

•

0

0

E

..0

0-

C

0)

0

V')

(/)

0

.c. U
+-

E
0
l0.LL

Q)

>
0-

Q)

+-

l0.-

Q)

U
(/)

•

-

co
w
~

-.
0)
c
.+-o
D-

e-

U
.t
o

D-

!.....

o

>-

o

:J

'+-

~

C

o

..c

I-

('-.
«n

c:

o

.•••
«n
(IJ

:)

G

APPRAISER CERTIFICATION BOARD
June 17, 2019

Agenda Item VIII
Briefing to and from Appraiser Certification Board and Department Staff

Agenda Item IX
Schedule Date and Review Agenda Topics for the Next Appraiser
Certification Board Meeting

Agenda Item X
Public Comment

Agenda Item XI
Adjourn

